Q)BAL HOUSING

FINANCE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24




CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BANKERS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Mr. Rajesh Sharma — Managing Director State Bank of India

Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka - Non-Executive & Independent Director Union Bank of India

(Ceased to be director w.e.f March 31, 2024) Indian Bank

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani - Non-Executive & Independent Director Bank of Maharashtra

Mr. T.R. Bajalia - Non-Executive & Independent Director Punjab National Bank

Mr. S. Ranganathan - Non-Executive & Independent Director UCO Bank

Mr. Murali Talasila - Non-Executive & Independent Director Bank of Baroda

Punjab & Sind Bank

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER YES Bank Limited

Mr. Partha Chakraborti Bank of India

National Housing Bank

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER Indian Overseas Bank

Mr. Yashesh Bhatt Karnataka Bank

LIC Housing Finance Limited

BOARD COMMITTEES Canara Bank

Central Bank

Audit Committee Dhanlaxmi Bank

Mr. S. Ranganathan - Chairman
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani - Member REGISTERED AND CORPORATE OFFICE
Mr. T.R. Bajalia — Member 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE Mumbai 400 013

Mr. S. Ranganathan - Chairman Tel. No. (022) 40888100

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani - Member Fax No. (022) 40888170

Mr. Rajesh Sharma — Member
REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE Link Intime India Private Limited

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani - Chairperson C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mr. S. Ranganathan - Member Mumbai 400 083, Maharashtra (India).

Mr. T.R. Bajalia — Member Tel: +91 (22) 49186270

Fax: +91 (22) 49186060

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. S. Ranganathan - Chairman DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Mr. Rajesh Sharma - Member Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani - Member GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony
(Right), Paud Road, Pune - 411 038, India.
AUDITORS Phone: 020-2528 0081

M/s. G.M Kapadia & Co. Email: dt@ctltrustee.com

Chartered Accountants
1007, Raheja Chambers, 213, CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
Nariman Point, (CIN)

Mumbai 400 021 U65990MH2006PLC161153

Tel. no. (022) 6611 6611
Fax no. (022) 6611 6600



mailto:dt@ctltrustee.com

CONTENTS

1. Notice of 18" Annual General Meeting
2. Directors’ Report

3. Independent Auditor’s Report & Financial Statements




Notice of 18" AGM
FY 2023-24




Q)BAL HOUSING

FINANCE

CIN No.: U65990MH2006PLC161153
Regd. Office: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Website: www.caprihomeloans.com
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NOTICE OF THE 18™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that Eighteenth Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Members of
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (‘the Company’) will be held at shorter notice on, Thursday, May 16,
2024 at 11:00 A.M., at the registered office of the Company at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), who retires by rotation, and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint the Statutory Auditor of the Company from the conclusion of Eighteenth Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of Twenty-First Annual General Meeting.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, as amended from time to time, M/s. SCA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Firm
Registration no. 101174W), be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company for a term of Three
years i.e. from the conclusion of Eighteenth Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the
Twenty-First AGM, at such terms and remuneration as may be agreed upon between the Audit
Committee/ the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

4. Borrowing in excess of Paid- up Capital & Free reserves of the Company and conversion of loan into
equity.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders at its Extraordinary General
Meeting held on September 22, 2022 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act"), or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, the
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter


http://www.caprihomeloans.com

referred to as the “Board” and shall include duly constituted Committee(s) thereof, to exercise powers
conferred by this resolution) to borrow from time to time as it may think fit, by way of loans or any other
financial facilities from, or issue of bonds, debentures or other securities whether convertible into
equity/preference shares and/or securities with or without detachable warrants with a right exercisable by
the warrant holder(s) to convert or subscribe for equity/preference shares to, bank(s), financial or other
institution(s), mutual fund(s), non-resident Indians, foreign institutional investors or any other person(s),
body(ies) corporate, etc., whether shareholder of the Company or not, whether unsecured or secured and
on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit, any sum or sums of monies which together with
the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained
from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up
share capital of the Company and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific
purpose, provided that the total amount so borrowed by the Board shall not at any time exceed the limit
of Rs.7,000 Crores (Rupees Seven Thousand Crores).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to arrange
or fix the terms and conditions of all such borrowings, from time to time, viz. terms as to interest,
repayment, security or otherwise as it may deem fit and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and
to sign all such agreements, documents, papers and writings as may be deemed necessary, expedient and
incidental thereto and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Committee of Directors
and/or director(s) and/or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 62(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re enactment
thereof, for the time being in force) and the applicable Rules made there under (“Act”), and the enabling
provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999, (‘FEMA’) as amended and rules and regulations framed there under as in force and
in accordance with other applicable policies, rules, regulation, circulars, notifications, clarifications and
guidelines thereon issued from time to time by the Government of India, the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’),
the Register of Companies (‘ROC’) and subject to requisite approvals, consents, permissions, and/ or
sanctions, from RBI and any other appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and subject to such
conditions and modifications as may be prescribed, stipulated or imposed by any of them while granting any
such approvals, consents, permission, and / or sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to include any
Committee which the Board may have constituted or may hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers
including the powers conferred hereunder), and subject to any other alterations, modifications, conditions,
corrections, changes and variations that may be decided by the Board in its absolute discretion, the consent
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board, in respect of financial assistance availed and/or to
be availed and/or continued to be availed from various banks and financial institutions (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Lenders”) on the terms and conditions contained in the financing documents,
such terms and conditions to provide, inter alia, to convert the whole or part of the outstanding loans of the
Company (whether disbursed on or prior to or after the date of this resolution and whether then due or
payable or not), with various Lenders , at the option of the Lenders, the loans or any other financial
assistance categorized as loans (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Assistance”), in Foreign Currency or
Indian Rupees, which have already been availed or as may be availed from the Lenders, from time to time,
not exceeding % 7,000 Crore (Rupees Seven Thousand Crore) and consistent with the borrowing powers of
the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, into fully paid- up equity shares of the Company on such
terms and conditions as may be stipulated in the financing documents and subject to the approval of
shareholders and provisions of the applicable laws and in the manner specified in a notice in writing to be
given by the Lenders (or their agents or trustees) to the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Notice of
Conversion”) and specifically in accordance with the conditions given below:



the conversion right reserved as aforesaid may be exercised by the Lenders on one or more occasions
during the currency of the Financial Assistance;

on receipt of the notice of conversion, the Company shall, subject to the provisions of the financing
documents, allot and issue the requisite number of fully paid-up equity shares to the Lenders or any
other person identified by the Lenders as from the date of conversion and the Lenders may accept the
same in complete satisfaction of the part of the loans so converted;

the part of the loan so converted shall cease to carry interest as from the date of conversion and the
loan shall stand correspondingly reduced, upon such conversion, the repayment instalments of the loan
payable after the date of conversion as per the financing documents shall stand reduced
proportionately by the amounts of the loan so converted. The equity shares so allotted and issued to
the Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders shall carry, from the date of conversion, the
right to receive proportionately the dividends and other distributions declared or to be declared in
respect of the equity capital of the Company;

in the event that the Lenders exercise the conversion right as aforesaid, the Company shall at its cost
get the equity shares, issued to the Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders as a result of
the conversion, listed with such stock exchanges as may be prescribed by the Lenders or such other
person identified by the Lenders and for the said purpose, the Company shall take all such steps as may
be necessary to the satisfaction of the Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders, to ensure
that the equity shares are listed as required by the Lenders or such other person identified by the
Lenders;

the loans shall be converted into equity shares at a price to be determined in accordance with the FEMA,

RBI'and / or all other regulations/ guidelines, at the time of such conversion.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares to be allotted and issued to such Lenders pursuant to its
exercising the right of conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares in
the Company and be listed on the stock exchange(s) where the existing shares of the Company are listed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to finalise the terms and conditions to
convert the Financial Assistance into equity shares of the Company anytime during the currency of the
Financial Assistances, on the terms specified in the financing documents, including upon happening of an
event of default by the Company in terms of the loan arrangements with the Lenders.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT on receipt of the notice of conversion, the Board be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary and shall allot and issue requisite number of fully
paid-up equity shares in the Company to such Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept such modifications and to
accept such terms and conditions as may be imposed or required by the Lenders arising from or incidental
to the aforesaid terms providing for such option and to do all such acts and things as may be necessary to
give effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolutions, the Board, be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, proper or desirable as may be required to create, offer, issue and allot the aforesaid shares, to
dematerialize the shares of the Company and to resolve and settle any question, difficulty or doubt that
may arise in this regard and to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things in connection or incidental
thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit, without being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers
herein conferred to any Committee of the Board or any Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company and to
generally do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required in connection with the aforesaid
resolutions, including making necessary filings with the Regulatory Authorities and execution of any
documents on, behalf of the Company and to represent the Company before any governmental authorities
and to appoint any Merchant Bankers or other Professional Advisors, Consultants and Legal Advisors to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board and its Committee in connection with any
matter(s) referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing resolutions be and are approved, ratified
and confirmed in all respects.”

5. Mortgage / Create charge on the assets of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders at its Extraordinary General
Meeting held on September 22, 2022 and pursuant to Section 180 (1) (a) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof,
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company or any
Committee thereof as may be authorized by the Board of Directors for mortgaging and/or charging in such
form and manner and on such terms and at such time(s) as the Board of Directors may deem fit, the
movable and / or immovable properties of the Company, wherever situate, present and future, whether
presently belonging to the Company or not, in favour of any person including, but not limited to,
financial/investment institution(s), bank(s), insurance company(ies), mutual fund(s), corporate body(ies),
trustee(s) to secure the debentures, loans or finance and other credit facilities availed by the Company up
to a sum not exceeding Rs. 7,000 Crores (Rupees Seven Thousand Crores).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any Committee thereof as may be authorized by the
Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to finalise the form, extent and manner of, and the
documents and deeds, as may be applicable, for creating the appropriate mortgages and/or charges on
such of the immovable and/or movable properties of the Company on such terms and conditions as may
be decided by the Board of Directors for reserving the aforesaid right and for performing all such acts and
things as may be necessary for giving effect to this resolution.”

6. Payment of Commission to Non - Executive Directors of Rs. 10,00,000 p.a. to the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company subject to applicable laws

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modifications, as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 and Section 198 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) including rules made thereunder, RBI/NHB regulations and other applicable laws and
policies, if any, consent be and is hereby accorded for payment of commission of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees
Ten Lakhs only), individually on quarterly basis to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company, for each
financial years commencing from April 1, 2024, provided however that the aggregate commission paid to
such Directors in a financial year shall not exceed 1% of the net profits of the Company computed in the
manner referred to in Section 198 of the aforesaid Act.”



By Order of the Board
For Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Sd/-
(Yashesh Bhatt)
Company Secretary
ACS: 20491
Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 14, 2024

REGISTERED OFFICE

502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400 013

NOTE:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument
appointing proxy in order to be effective, should be lodged at the registered office of the company
not less than forty-eight hours before the time of the meeting.

2. An explanatory statement, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), in
respect of the special businesses as set out in the Notice is annexed hereto.

Information under Secretarial Standard 2, pursuant to Section 118 (10) of the Act, issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relating to Directors proposed to be appointed/re-
appointed is provided in the Annexure | to this Notice.

3. The Statutory Registers and other document required to be kept open for inspection under the Act
read with rules made thereunder at the AGM, will be available for inspection by the members at the
AGM of the Company.

4. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours up to and including
the date and time of the AGM of the Company.

5. Members / Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting. Proxies form as
prescribed under the Act and Attendance Slip are enclosed herewith.

6. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote at the AGM.

7. The Members may note that the Notice of 18™ AGM of the Company along with the Annual Report
will be available on the Company’s website https://caprihomeloans.com/.

8. The landmark of the venue of the meetings and the Route map is enclosed with the Notice and same
has also been posted on the website of the Company.


https://caprihomeloans.com/

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT RELATING TO SPECIAL BUSINESS MENTIONED IN THE NOTICE AS REQUIRED BY
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Iltem No. 4 & 5 - Borrowing in excess of Paid- up Capital & Free reserves, and conversion of loan into equity.
and Mortgage / Create charge on the assets of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") a Special Resolution was passed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on September 22, 2022, the Shareholders of the Company had
authorized the Board of Directors of the Company to borrow moneys for the purpose of the Company’s
business in excess of the paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves, provided the sum or sums
so borrowed and remaining outstanding at any point of time not to exceed Rs.4000 Crores (Rupees Four
Thousand Crores).

Keeping in view, the Company’s existing and future financial requirements to support its business
operations, the Company needs additional funds. For this purpose, the Company is desirous of raising
finance from various Banks and/or Financial Institutions and/or any other lending institutions and/or
Bodies Corporate and/ or such other persons/ individuals as may be considered fit, which, together with
the moneys already borrowed by the Company may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital and the
free reserves of the Company. Hence, it is proposed to increase the maximum borrowing limits up to
Rs.7,000 Crores (Rupees Seven Thousand Crores). Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, the Board of
Directors cannot borrow more than the aggregate amount of the paid-up capital of the Company and its
free reserves at any time except with the consent of the members of the Company in a general meeting by
a Special Resolution.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is being sought for borrowings in excess of the paid-up capital and
free reserves of the Company.

Further, pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) the Act, a Special Resolution was passed at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on September 22, 2022, the Shareholders of the Company had authorized the Board
of Directors of the Company to create mortgage, charge on or hypothecate its property(ies), both movable
and immovable, to secure borrowings upto Rs.4000 Crores (Rupees Four Thousand Crores).

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(3) of the Act and Rules made there-under, consent of the
Members is being sought, to enable the Lenders to convert the outstanding Financial Assistance, in foreign
currency or Indian Rupee, already availed from the Lenders or as may be availed from the Lenders, from
time to time, at their option, into equity shares of the Company upon such terms and conditions as may be
deemed appropriate by the Board not exceeding 7,000 Crores (Rupees Seven Thousand Crores) and at a
price to be determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act,
1999, Reserve Bank of India/National Housing Bank and all other applicable regulations / guidelines, at the
time of such conversion.

In order to facilitate securing the enhanced borrowings upto Rs.7,000 Crores (Rupees Seven Thousand
Crores) envisaged under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, and contained in Item No. 4 and 5 it would be
necessary to create charge on the assets or whole of the undertaking of the Company.

Section 180(1)(a) of the Act, provides for the power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or
substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company subject to the approval of members in the
general meeting. Creation of charge on the assets of the Company is construed as disposal of undertaking.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Iltem No. 4 and 5 of the Notice for approval of
the Members.



None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives is, in any way
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at item no. 4 and 5 except to
the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

Item No. 6: Payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors of Rs. 10,00,000 p.a. to the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company subject to applicable laws

Pursuant to provisions of Sections 197, 198 and any other relevant provisions of the Act, and taking into
account the increased participation of the directors in Board and Committee meetings, roles and
responsibilities of the directors and with a view to align the remuneration payable to non-executive
directors with the industry standards, it is now proposed that the Directors other than Managing Director
and the Whole-time Directors, be paid for each of the financial years during their tenure commencing from
April 1, 2024, remuneration not exceeding 1% p.a. of the net profits of the Company computed in
accordance with Section 198 of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company at the meeting held on May 3, 2024 recommended for the
approval of the Members, for payment of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakh only) p.a. payable on quarterly
basis by way of commission to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company, individually in line with the
current industry trends and commensurate with the time devoted, contribution made, and guidance &
oversight provided by them, with effect from April 1, 2024.

The remuneration referred above shall be in addition to fee payable to the non-executive directors for
attending the meetings of the Board or Committee(s) thereof or for any other purpose whatsoever as may
be decided by the Board of Directors, and reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and
other meetings.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval of the
Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives is, in any way
interested (otherwise than in capacity of Non-Executive Directors) or concerned, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at item no. 6.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
FOR CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Sd/-
Yashesh Bhatt
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai ACS: 20491
Dated: May 14, 2024

REGISTERED OFFICE

502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400 013



Annexure | to the Notice of 18" AGM

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF THE

SECRETARIAL STANDARD- 2 ON GENERAL MEETING

Mr. Rajesh Sharma is a qualified Chartered Accountant. He is the Promoter Director of the Company with
over 28 years of experience in capital market and financial advisory services. Mr. Sharma has expertise in
various aspects of corporate finance, investment banking, merchant banking and asset financing. He has
successfully leveraged his expertise and experience to steer the Company’s growth and played an

instrumental role in making it one of the emerging housing finance providers in India.

He is not related to any of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The Board of

Directors recommend passing of the resolution set out in item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice.

Except Mr. Rajesh Sharma, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their

relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in Item No.2.

Other Details:

Name of the Director

Mr. Rajesh Sharma

Date of Birth February 28, 1970
Age 54

Nationality Indian

Date of appointment on the board April 17, 2006
Qualifications Chartered Accountant
Last Remuneration drawn 12,00,000
Remuneration to be paid 12,00,000

Terms and conditions of
Re-appointment

Retire by rotation:

Liable to retire by rotation

Code of Conduct:

Abide by the Code of Conduct devised by the Company

Number of shares held in the company

100

Relationship with other Directors, | None

Manager and other KMP

Number of Meetings of the Board | 3/4

attended / held

Directorships held in other companies 1. Capri Global Capital Limited

(excluding foreign companies and | 2. Parshwanath Buildcon Private Limited

Government Bodies) 3. Dnyaneshwar Trading and Investment Private Limited
4. Capri Global Asset Reconstruction Private Limited
5. Capri Global Holdings Private Limited
6. Capri Global Finance Private Limited

Membership / Chairmanship  of
Committees of other companies

Audit Committee
Nil
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

Capri Global Capital Limited — Member

Corporate Social Responsibility
Capri Global Capital Limited — Member
Capri Global Holdings Private Limited — Member
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

CIN No.: U65990MH2006PLC161153
Regd. Office: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Website: www.caprihomeloans.com
Tel. No.: +91 22 40888100 Fax No.: +91 22 40888160

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Regd. Folio No./Client ID No.

DP ID No.

No. of shares held

|/We hereby record my/our presence at EIGHTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited, held at shorter notice on Thursday, May 16, 2024, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra (India).

Member’s/ Proxy’s name in BLOCK Letters Signature of Member/Proxy

NOTE: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue for the meeting.
Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting.
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN No.: U65990MH2006PLC161153
Regd. Office: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Website: www.caprihomeloans.com
Tel. No.: +91 22 40888100 Fax No.: +91 22 40888160

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint:
1. of having E-mail ID or failing him,
2. of having E-mail ID or failing him,
3. of having E-mail ID

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Eighteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held at shorter notice on Thursday, May 16, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at
the Registered Office of the Company at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai-400 013. Maharashtra (India) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3.  To approve appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve increase the Borrowing limit in excess of Paid- up Capital & Free reserves and conversion
of loan into equity.
5. To approve increase the limit under section 180(1)(a) for Mortgage / Create charge on the assets of
the Company.



6. Payment of fixed commission of Rs. 10,00,000 p.a. to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company
subject to applicable laws.

Signed this day of 2024

Signature of shareholder(s):

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

(First proxy holder) (Second proxy holder) (Third proxy holder)

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed, sighed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their Eighteenth Annual Report together with
the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The summary of the financial results for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and the previous
financial year ended March 31, 2023, is given below:

(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Total Revenue 4,871.90 3,236.72
Less: Operating Expenses & Provisions 1727.99 934.17
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes (PBIDT) 3143.91 2,302.55
Less: Depreciation 78.49 49.46
Less: Interest & Finance Charges 2,158.62 1,479.80
Profit Before Tax 906.8 773.29
Less: Tax Expenses 189.81 152.82
Profit After Tax (PAT) 716.99 620.47
Transfer to Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National 143.40 164.98
Housing Bank Act, 1987)
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 9.51 8.71
Net Worth 7,901.56 5,188.83
Loan Book / Assets Under Management (AUM) 42091.03 26656.91

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE & STATE OF AFFAIRS

Company continued to focus on providing housing loan to first time home buyers belonging to
middle and lower income earning families, much in line with focus of the Prime Ministers Awas
Yojana (PMAY). Loan book of the Company grew by 57.89% to INR 42,091.03 Million as compared to
INR 26,656.91 Million of the last year.

The Company’s total revenue from operations increased by 50.51% to INR 4,871.90 Million as
compared to INR 3,236.72 Million of the previous year. Profit After Tax increased by 13.46% to INR
716.99 Million for the year as compared to profit of INR 620.47 Million of the previous year.

The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 1.3% and the Net NPA was at 0.8% as of March 31, 2024.
Average ticket size of the loan was maintained at INR 1.31 Million with 32,000+ live loan accounts at
the end of the year under review.

Company carried out business through presence at 160+ locations spread over 9 states i.e.,
Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, Chhattisgarh and
Uttarakhand during the year. Company has disbursed loans amounting to INR 19,557 Million as
compared to INR 12,430 Million in the previous year, recording a growth of 57.33%.



SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was INR 900 Million.

As at March 31, 2024, the equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs. 78,80,83,530 divided into
7,88,08,353 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. The Company has allotted 76,04,563 equity shares of Rs. 10
each on Rights basis to its holding company l.e. Capri Global Capital Limited.

RESOURCE MOBILIZATION

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial institution and got sanctions
of INR 19,500 Million. As of March 31, 2024, total borrowings have increased to INR 32,632.62
Million from INR 21,228.90 Million as of previous year. The Company has cash and bank balance of
INR 4438.96 Million and liquid mutual fund investment of INR 1553.34 Million as of March 31, 2024.

The Company has raised fresh additional resources of INR 11,403.72 Million during the year from
multiple sources as under:

a. Term loans and overdraft from banks

The Company has raised an additional net term loans and other facilities from banks for INR
9,204.45 Million during the year.

b. Refinance from National Housing Bank

The Company has raised an additional net refinance from National Housing Bank for INR 2,199.04
Million during the year.

During the period under review, the Company had no NCDs as of March 31, 2024.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

As on March 31, 2024, the Company’s Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), stood at 30.51%, compared to
33.13% for the previous year, which is well above the regulatory minimum, providing much needed
headroom for fund raising for business operations of the Company.

DIVIDEND

To conserve resources for business growth of the Company and to build up reserves, your Directors
do not recommend payment of any dividend on equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2024.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Pursuant to Section 29C (i) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to
transfer at least 20% of the net profits every year to a Reserves. The Company proposes to transfer
INR 143.40 Million (previous year INR 164.98 Million) to Reserves created for the purpose.

DEPOSITS



During the year under review, the Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the
public, within the meaning of Section 73 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY GUIDELINES

During the year under review, the Company has complied with applicable statutory provisions,
including those of Companies Act, 2013 and Income Tax 1961.

The Company is registered with the National Housing Bank as a Housing Finance Company. RBI
compiled and released Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 for the better functioning of the financial system and HFCs.
The Master Directions also consolidates and repeals the directions issued by NHB and indicates the
List of NBFC regulations applicable to HFCs.

The RBI has issued comprehensive guidelines on Fair Practice Code, reporting, and monitoring of
frauds, Know Your Customer (KYC), Anti Money Laundering (AML) standards and IT Framework.
During the year under review, the Company has been complying with all the guidelines and
directions issued by RBI.

POLICIES AND CODE

The Company has revised/ adopted various policies basis amendments to the respective applicable
laws including but not limited to following:

Co-lending Policy, Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Policy, Related Party Transaction Policy, Customer
Grievances Redressal Policy, Policy/Procedure for return of original movable / immovable property
documents IT Outsourcing Policy, IT Governance Policy, Fair Practice Code, Interest Rate Model and
Policies and Procedures for determining Interest Rates and other Charges, Asset Liability
Management (ALM) Policy, Demand Call Loan Policy, ECL Provisioning, NPA management, Write off
and settlement Policy, Corporate IT Policy, Information Security Policy, Cyber Crisis Management
Plan, IT Systems and Operations Policy, Policy on Compromise Settlements and Technical Write-offs,
Foreign Currency Risk Hedging Policy, Compliance Policy, Customer Grievance Redressal Policy,
Policy on Business Correspondent (BC) Arrangement between Banks and Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited for Home Loan, MSME Loan and Other Products, CGHFL - Construction Finance
Policy, Policy on Valuation of Properties, Know Your Customer and Anti Money Laundering Policy
(KYC Policy), Fraud Risk Management Policy, Interest Rate model and Policy, Treasury Investment
Management Policy, Risk Management Policy, IT Risk Management Policy, IT Compliance Management
Policy, Master Policy for Business, Whistle Blower Policy,Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
Policy

CREDIT RATING

The Credit rating details of the credit facilities of the Company as on March 31, 2024, were as below:



Amount .
Rating Azenc Latest Press Facilit (Rs in Current Previous
g Agency release Date v Crore) Rating Rating

Fund based — Long

Inf ics Valuati T IVR AA
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Facilities Stable Stable

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Board has adopted accounting policies which are in compliance with Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The internal financial control system of the Company is supplemented with internal audits, regular
reviews by the management and checks by external auditors. The Audit Committee monitors these
systems and ensures adequacy of the same. The Audit Committee undertakes an evaluation of the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems. It also oversees the implementation of audit
recommendations especially involving the risk management measures. The Statutory Auditors of the
Company also provides their opinion on the internal financial control framework of the Company.

In addition to reviewing the internal control systems put in place by the Internal Audit Department,
the Audit Committee also imparts guidance and crucial directions for upgradation of systems and
controls on ongoing basis.

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been highlighted for
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis report for the year under review as required under Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 forms part
of the Directors’ Report as Annexure |.

SUBSIDIARY ENTITIES

As on March 31, 2024, your Company does not have any subsidiaries.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL




Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN:
00020037), Managing Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (‘AGM’) and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

The resolution seeking re-appointment of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), as Director of the
Company has been included in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. Your Directors recommend the
Resolutions for your approval for the aforesaid re-appointment.

The brief details of Mr. Rajesh Sharma proposed to be re-appointed as required under Secretarial
Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in the Notice
convening AGM of the Company. Mr. Rajesh Sharma has confirmed that he is not disqualified to act
as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had four Independent Directors including one Woman Director.
Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan was appointed as Non-Executive - Independent Director (Additional)
Director with effect from October 28, 2023, Mr. Murali Talasila was appointed as Non-Executive -
Independent Director (Additional) Director with effect from January 27, 2024 and Mr. Beni Prasad
Rauka ceased to be an Independent Director with effect from close of business hours on March 31,
2024. Mr. Partha Chakraborti, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f
October 28, 2023. Mr. Yashesh Pankaj Bhatt is Company Secretary of the Company.

As on the date of this Report, Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Partha Chakraborti, Chief
Financial Officer and Mr. Yashesh Pankaj Bhatt, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial
Personnel of your Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) read with Section 203
of the Act.

Declaration of Independence by Independent Directors & adherence to the Company’s Code of
Conduct for Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they meet the criteria of
independence as specified under Section 149(6) of the Act and that they qualify to be Independent
Directors pursuant to the Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014.

Further, all the Independent Directors have affirmed that they have adhered and complied with the
Company’s Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which is framed in accordance with Schedule
IV of the Act.

Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under the Master Direction Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, the
Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declaration from Mr. Rajesh Sharma for his re-
appointment as Director of the Company, Mr. Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan, Mr. Murali Talasila,
Mr. T.R Bajalia and Ms. Bhagyam Ramani, which have been taken on record by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. All the Directors meet the ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria as per the policy of the
Company and as stipulated by RBI.

Board Meetings




The Board of the Directors of the Company met 4 (Four) times during the year 2023-24 to deliberate
on various matters. The meetings were held on May 16, 2023, July 29, 2023, October 28, 2023, and
January 27, 2024.

The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the Board Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held | Attended

Mr. Rajesh Sharma Managing Director 4 3
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4
(Ceased to be the director w.e.f March
31, 2024)
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4
Mr. T. R. Bajalia Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan Non-Executive Independent Director 4 2
(appointed w.e.f October 28, 2023)
Mr. Murali Talasila Non-Executive Independent Director 4 0
(appointed w.e.f January 27, 2024)

CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted following Committees:

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Risk Management Committee

Asset Liability Management Committee

IT Strategy Committee

oo o0 T o

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-defined composition of
members and terms of reference are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and applicable rules thereto and Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing
Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As on March 31, 2024, the Audit Committee of
the Board comprised of 3 (three) Non-Executive Independent Directors. The members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate and have accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times viz. on May 16, 2023, July 29,
2023, October 28, 2023 and January 27, 2024. The required quorum was present for all the Audit
Committee Meetings. The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the Audit
Committee Meetings are given below:



Name of the Members Categories | No. of Meetings

Held | Attended
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Chairman 4 4
(Ceased to be the director w.e.f March 31, 2024)
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 4 4
Mr. T. R. Bajalia Member 4 4
Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan Chairman 4 0

The Chief Financial Officer is a permanent invitee to the Audit Committee meetings. The Statutory
Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company are also invited to the Audit Committee meetings.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-
defined composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereto and Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As on March 31, 2024, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board comprised of 3 (three) Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is an
Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) times viz. on
May 16, 2023 and October 28, 2023, January 27, 2024. The recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee have been accepted by the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy is annexed as Annexure Il. The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Chairperson 3 3
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Member 3 3
(Ceased to be the director w.e.f March 31, 2024)
Mr. T. R. Bajalia Member 3 3
Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan Member 3 0

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-
defined composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with Section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Rules thereto. As on March 31, 2024, the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Board comprised of 2 (two) Non-Executive Independent Directors
and 1 (one) Executive Director. The Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is an
Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance




During the year under review, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 2 (Two) times viz. on
May 16, 2023 and October 28, 2023. The recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee have been accepted by the Board. The details of Composition and attendance of the
members at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Chairman 2 2
(Ceased to be the director w.e.f March 31, 2024)
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 2 2
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Member 2 1
Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan Chairman 2 0

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-defined
composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with Master Direction — Non-
Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. As on
March 31, 2024, The Risk Management Committee of the Board comprised of 2 (two) Non-Executive
Independent Directors and 1 (one) Executive Director. The Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee is Managing Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, Risk Management Committee met 3 (Three) times viz. on May 16,
2023, July 29, 2023 and October 28, 2023. The recommendations of the Risk Management
Committee have been accepted by the Board. The details of Composition and attendance of the
members at the Risk Management Committee are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Rajesh Sharma Chairman 3 2
(Ceased to be the Chairman w.e.f May 3, 2024)

Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Member 3 3
(Ceased to be the director w.e.f March 31, 2024)

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 3 3

Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan Member 3 0

Asset Liability Management Committee

The Asset Liability Management Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-
defined composition of members and terms of reference and are in accordance with the guidelines



for introduction of ALM system by housing finance companies as issued by the National Housing
Bank vide circular NHB (ND)/HFC (DRSREG)/ ALM/1407 /2002 dated June 28, 2002. As on March 31,
2024 the Asset Liability Management Committee comprised of Managing Director, Chief Financial
Officer and 2 (two) Senior Management Personnel from Treasury-, Credit, Risk & Policy business
functions of the Company. The Chairman of the Asset Liability Management Committee is Managing
Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, Asset Liability Management Committee met 4 (Four) times viz. on
June 29, 2023, September 28, 2023, December 28, 2023, and March 20, 2024. The details of
Composition and attendance of the members at the Asset Liability Management Committee
Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Rajesh Sharma Chairman 4 4
Mr. Bhavesh Prajapati Member 4 2
(Ceased to be the Members w.e.f May 7, 2024)

Mr. Sandeep Kudtarkar Member 4 4
Mr. Varun Malhotra Member 4 2
Mr. Satish Shimpi (Appointed w.e.f December 26, 2023) Member 4 2
Chief Financial Officer(Appointed w.e.f October 28, 2023) Member 4 2

IT Strategy Committee

The IT Strategy Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors has a well-defined
composition of members and terms of reference are in accordance with the Information Technology
Framework for HFCs (“Guidelines”) vide its notification no. NHB/ND/DRS/ Policy Circular No.
90/2017-18 dated June 15, 2018. As on March 31, 2024, the IT Strategy Committee of the Board
comprised of an Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel. The Chairman of the IT
Strategy Committee is an Independent Director of the Company.

Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review, the IT Strategy Committee met 2 (Two) times viz. on April 22, 2023
and October 14, 2023. The details of Composition and attendance of the members at the IT Strategy
Committee Meetings are given below:

Name of the Members Categories No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Chairman 2 2
(Ceased to be the director w.e.f March 31, 2024)

Mr. Murali Talasila (Appointed w.e.f April 1, 2024) Chairman 2 0
Mr. Rajesh Sharma (Appointed w.e.f April 1, 2024) Member 2 0
Mr. Subramanian Ranganathan (Appointed w.e.f April 1, 2024) Member 2 0
Ms. Divya Sutar Member 2 2
Chief Technology Officer Member 2 2




Chief Financial Officer Member 2 0
Chief Data Science and Analytics Officer Member 2 1
National Credit Head Member 2 1
Chief Information Officer (Appointed w.e.f May 3, 2024) Member 2 0
Chief Information Security Officer (Appointed w.e.f May 3, Member 2 0
2024)

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AND MANAGING
DIRECTOR

The Company has formulated a Policy on Board Evaluation. An annual performance evaluation of the
Board, its Committees, individual directors and managing director, in an independent and fair
manner was carried out in accordance with the Company’s Board Evaluation Policy for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

The performance of the Board, individual directors and managing director was evaluated by the
Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by
the Board seeking inputs from the Committee Members. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee reviewed the responses received and forwarded its recommendations to the Board. This
was followed by a Board Meeting that discussed the performance of the Board, its Committees,
individual directors and managing director. A separate meeting of Independent Directors was also
held to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the Board as a whole
and performance of the Managing Director of the Company.

The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board composition and
structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning etc. The criteria for
performance evaluation of Committees of the Board included aspects like composition of
committees, effectiveness of Committee Meetings etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of
the individual directors included aspects on contribution to the Board and Committee Meetings like
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in
meetings etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of Managing Director included aspects on
fulfillment of his duties, skills and knowledge updation and his participation during board
deliberations on strategy, performance, risk management etc.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was based on the criteria viz. attendance at
Board and Committee Meetings, skill, experience, ability to challenge views of others in a
constructive manner, knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s business, understanding of
industry and global trends etc.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, the Directors hereby confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that no material departure has been made in following the same;

b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of



affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

c) proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of Act have been taken for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) internal financial controls to be followed by the Company had been laid down and such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f)  proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS
A. STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Act and the rules made thereunder and RBI Circular
DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, appointed M/s. G.M. Kapadia & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 104767W), as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a period of three years from the conclusion of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors’ Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors, in their
Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed
M/s. Sandeep P Parekh & Co., Company Secretaries (COP No.: 7693), for conducting Secretarial Audit.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is appended to this Report
as Annexure lll. There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
Secretarial Auditors, in their Audit Report.

C. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor have not reported
any instances of frauds committed on the Company by its Officers or Employees, to the Audit

Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act, details of which need to be mentioned in this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.



The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by your Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with
Section 135 of the Act. The CSR Policy of the Company, inter alia, lists the activities that can be
undertaken or supported by the Company for CSR as envisaged in Schedule VIl of the Act,
composition and meetings of CSR Committee, annual allocation for CSR activities, areas of CSR
projects, criteria for selection of CSR projects, modalities of execution/implementation of CSR
activities, the monitoring mechanism of CSR activities/projects.

The details of CSR Policy of the Company are available on the website of the Company at
https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_CSR_POLICY.pdf.

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, the details of the CSR spent during the year under review is
provided in the Annual Report on CSR activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and attached to this report as Annexure V.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place and robust structure for
managing and mitigating risks. Your Company has a Board approved Risk Management Policy which
has laid down a framework for identifying, assessing, measuring various elements of risk involved in
the business and formulation of procedures and systems for mitigating such risks.

Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company has overall responsibility
for overseeing the Risk Management activities of the Company, approving measurement
methodologies and appropriate risk management procedures across the organization.

Business team periodically places its report on risk management to the Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. During the year, your Company has
incorporated various practices and suggestion as directed by the Risk Management and Audit
Committee which helped the Company in attaining an improved vigilance and security system.

Details regarding the developments and implementation of risk management policy have been
covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED INFORMATION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the
disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under the Act and the above
Rules, are appended to this Report as Annexure V.

As per the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the
Members of the Company excluding the information regarding employee remuneration as required


https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_CSR_POLICY.pdf

pursuant to Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors affirm that the remuneration paid to employees of the Company is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company and none of the employees listed in the said

Annexure/information is related to any Director of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party
Transactions, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act. The same is displayed on the website
of the Company at https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL RPT Policy.pdf.

During the year under review, all the related party transactions were entered in the ordinary course
of business and on arm’s length basis. All related party transactions as required under Indian
Accounting Standards - 24 (Ind AS-24) are reported in Note 52 of Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
there are no related party transactions that are required to be reported under Section 188(1) of the
Act, as prescribed in Form AOC-2.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and subsection (3) of Section 92 of the Act, the Annual
Return of the company as of March 31, 2024 is displayed on the website of the Company at
https://www.caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/MGT-07%20-%20Website.pdf.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to ensuring that the work
environment at all its locations is conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations between
employees. It strongly believes in upholding the dignity of all its employees, irrespective of their
gender or seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited.

The Company has in place an appropriate Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, to prevent
sexual harassment of its employees. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees)
are covered under this Policy. The Policy has been widely communicated internally and is placed on
the Company’s intranet portal. The Company ensures that no employee is disadvantaged by way of
gender discrimination.

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

During the year under review, no complaints were received from any of the employees.


https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_RPT_Policy.pdf
https://www.caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/MGT-07%20-%20Website.pdf

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuUTGO

The Company is engaged in the financial services activities, its operations are not energy intensive
nor does it require adoption of specific technology and hence information in terms of Section
134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company. Nevertheless, the Company is vigilant on the need for conservation of energy.

There was no inflow or outflow of foreign exchange during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Company being a housing finance company is exempt under the provisions of section 186(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and is not required to disclose particulars of loans given, guarantees given and
security provided.

The details of investments made by the Company are provided under note forming part of Financial
Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the financial year 2023-24, there were no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations
in future.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records, for the services rendered by the Company, is not required
pursuant to Section 148 (1) of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors place on record their gratitude for the support of various regulatory authorities
including National Housing Bank, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies and the
Depositories. The Company acknowledges the role of all its key stakeholders - shareholders,
borrowers, channel partners and lenders for their continued support to the Company. Your Directors
place on record their appreciation for the hard work and dedication of all the employees of the
Company.



Sd/-

Rajesh Sharma
Managing Director
(DIN: 00020037)

Date: May 3, 2024
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
S. Ranganathan
Independent Director
(DIN: 00125493)



Annexure |
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Overview

Capri Global Housing Limited (“CGHFL") is a Housing finance Company registered with National Housing
Bank. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Capri Global Capital Limited and is engaged in the business of
providing home finance to “unbanked, undeserved and unserved”. Housing Finance Industry is being
viewed as an engine of economic growth with a major role to play in the country’s development.

The Global Economy recovered in early 2023, however, growth is slowing down due to the impact of
tightening financial conditions and elevated inflation. Across the economies, growth remains moderate
and uneven. IMF projects global growth to slow down from 3.5% in 2022 to 3% in 2023 and 2.9% in
2024. Advanced economies are expected to slow from 2.6% in 2022 to 1.5% in 2023 and 1.4% in 2024
due to policy tightening. Emerging market and developing economies are projected to have a modest
decline in growth from 4.1% in 2022 to 4.0% in both 2023 and 2024. Growth in India is projected to
remain strong at 6.3% in both 2023 and 2024, with an upward revision of 0.2 percentage point for 2023,
due to resilient domestic demand and strong investment inflows.

Industry Structure and Developments

Housing plays a key role in the growth of many aspects of a country’s economy including the
development of the construction industry, job creation and improving the living conditions of
households. Every country has a distinct housing and housing finance system and its own legal and
regulatory environment, leading to different housing outcomes.

Globally, the residential housing market is experiencing a surge in demand for properties in suburban
and rural areas. As people have more flexibility to work remotely, many are opting to move away from
crowded cities in search of larger homes and a better quality of life. This trend is also driven by the
desire for more space and privacy, as well as the lower cost of living in suburban and rural areas.

The demand for residential properties and its conversion into sales across the country’s top 8 cities has
scaled an all-time high in 2023 led by heightened activity in the mid-income, premium and luxury
segment despite higher mortgage rates and prices. India’s top 8 property markets have registered a 5%
growth in annual sales at over 3.29 lakh apartments in 2023, showed data from Knight Frank India.
Mumbai region registered the highest sales of 86,871 units demonstrating a 2% growth, while Kolkata
witnessed the highest home sales growth, in terms of percentage, at 16% followed by Ahmedabad at
15% while Pune grew at 13%. A total of 350,746 units were launched across the eight markets
registering a rise of 7% on year.

Affordable Housing Finance

Affordable housing is a crucial sub-segment in the housing and real estate sector. Real estate prices are
gradually rising led by the pent-up ready inventory and keenness of potential homebuyers. Continuous
support of the Indian government in the affordable real estate sector is driving demand further. With
the Credit-linked Subsidy Scheme, homebuyers of the economically weaker sections are finding it easier
to acquire a home. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) doubled the limit for individual housing loans
offered by urban cooperative banks (UCBs) and rural cooperative banks (RCBs) to improve credit flow
for the housing sector. Given the rise in housing prices, the revised limits will facilitate the growth of
the sector.

In the Interim Union Budget 2024-25, the Finance Minister announced increased allocation for Pradhan
Mantri Awas Yojna to Rs 80,671 Crore. Further, the programme has been extended to December 31,
2024, to complete the houses sanctioned till March 31, 2022. Under the massive housing project, Prime



iv.

Minister Awas Yojana — Gramin (PMAY Rural), the government has already committed to build 3 crore
houses and that target is nearing completion and delivery. The Finance Minister further announced
additional 2 crore houses in the next five years under Prime Minister Awas Yojana - Gramin (PMAY
Rural).

According to Techsiresearch, the Indian affordable housing sector was valued at USD 1.8 Billion in 2022
and is expected to grow at ~19.8% CAGR during 2022-2028. The sector is reaping the benefits that the
government has placed on urban infrastructural development and planning. The unwavering focus on
infrastructure will indirectly drive real estate growth in the future.

Opportunities and Threats

The demand for residential housing is driven by rapid pace of urbanization, growing disposable incomes
of individuals, government initiatives on affordable housing through PMAY(U), stamp duty concessions
etc. Also, despite the increase in repo rate by 250 bps between the years 2022 and 2023, the demand
for residential housing has remained strong.

As such, the Outstanding Individual Housing Loan of Primary Lending Institutions (Housing Finance
Companies, Public Sector Banks and Private Sector Banks) registered a Y-o-Y growth of 14.88% in March
2023. For the same period, Individual Housing Loan disbursement by Primary Lending Institutions grew
by 19.88%. For the period, H1 23-24, PLIs reported Y-o-Y growth in outstanding and disbursement of
Individual Housing Loan by 12.92% and 4.04% respectively.

India’s home loan (HL) market (INR26trn; 17% of overall credit) is poised to double by FY28E on the
back of secular trends around improving affordability, rising urbanisation and penetration beyond Tier-I
locations. Driven by the combination of a sustained funding cost advantage, structural shift in sourcing
models, renewed focus on retail HL, and transient rate cycle tailwinds, banks (~67% of HL market) are
likely to continue dominating the prime HL segment. Affordable-focused HFCs (~INR1trn; 4% of HL
market) have emerged as high-growth, high-RoA businesses; however, given the superior economics,
HL segment is witnessing rising competitive intensity. Going forward, the market micro-structure is
likely to reflect newer collaborative models which are still evolving.

Secular demand trends: It is expected that India’s housing demand (largely end-use) to witness ~15-
16% CAGR during FY23-28E on the back of improving affordability, increasing penetration beyond Tier-I
locations, and rising pace of urbanization.

Affordable-focused HFCs (AHFCs) - sweet but crowded trade: Affordable focused HFCs (VINR1trn) have
emerged as a high-growth (FY18-FY22 CAGR at 18%+) profit pool (RoA of ~3%) within the sub-INR2.5mn
segment. While even 2-year lagged credit costs for AHFCs are healthy at ~140bps (vs. pricing premium
of ~300bps), the early growth-RoA dynamic has attracted intense competition, and is likely to exert
pressure on either the growth curve or the super-normal spreads (~5%+).

Going forward, house prices are expected to increase. However, the price increase is likely to be
gradual and not as sharp as that being witnessed in many of the other countries. The housing sales
boom in India has so far been led by end-user demand. Hence, increase in prices and interest rates may
not destabilize the housing growth momentum.

Business and Operational Overview
(Amount in INR Millions)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Total Revenue 4,871.90 3,236.72
Less: Operating Expenses & Provisions 1727.99 934.17
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes (PBIDT) 3143.91 2,302.55
Less: Depreciation 78.49 49.46




Less: Interest & Finance Charges 2,158.62 1,479.80
Profit Before Tax 906.8 773.29
Less: Tax Expenses 189.81 152.82
Profit After Tax (PAT) 716.99 620.47
Transfer to Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National 143.40 164.98
Housing Bank Act, 1987)

Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 9.51 8.71
Net Worth 7,901.56 5,188.83
Loan Book / Assets Under Management (AUM) 42091.03 26656.91

The company continued its focus on providing housing loan to first time home buyers belonging to middle
and lower income earning families, much in line with focus of the Prime Ministers Awas Yojana (PMAY).
Loan book of the Company grew by 57.89% to INR 42,091.03 Million as compared to INR 26,656.91 Million
of the last year.

The Company’s total revenue from operations increased by 50.51% to INR 4,871.90 Million as compared to
INR 3,236.72 Million of the previous year. Profit After Tax increased by 13.46% to INR 716.99 Million for
the year as compared to profit of INR 620.47 Million of the previous year.

The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 1.3% and the Net NPA was at 0.8% as of March 31, 2024. Average
ticket size of the loan was maintained at INR 1.31 Million with 32,000+ live loan accounts at the end of the
year under review.

Company carried out business through presence at 160+ locations spread over 9 states i.e., Maharashtra,
Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, Chhattisgarh and Uttarakhand during
the year. Company has disbursed loans amounting to INR 19,557 Million as compared to INR 12,430
Million in the previous year, recording a growth of 57.33%.

Liquidity Position and Borrowings

The Company has comfortable liquidity cushion in terms of Cash & bank balances of INR 4438.96Million as
at end of FY 2024. The Company is well positioned in meeting its short term and medium-term obligations.

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial institution and got sanctions of
INR 19,500 Million during FY2024. As of March 31, 2024, total borrowings have increased to INR 32,632.62
Million from INR 21,228.90 Million as of previous year. The Company has cash and bank balance of INR
4438.96 Million and liquid mutual fund investment of INR 1553.34 Million as of March 31, 2024.

Product Performance

The Company had continued with strategy of going granular and focused on sourcing small ticket size loans
in its vertical, spread over wider geographical area resulting into de-risking the loan portfolio, better
control over delinquencies and better risk spread in the medium to long term.

v. Risks and Concerns

Being in the lending business, Risk Management forms a vital element of our business. The Company has
a well-defined Risk Management framework, approved by the Board of Directors. It provides the
mechanism for identifying, assessing and mitigating risks.

The company has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) and an Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy
approved by the Board. The Board has constituted the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) to assess the risk
arising out of the liquidity gap and interest rate sensitivity.



During the year, the RMC reviewed the risk associated with the business, its root cause and the efficacy
of the measures taken to mitigate the same. ALCO also reviewed the risks arising from the liquidity gap
and interest rate sensitivity and took decisions to mitigate the risk by ensuring adequate liquidity through

the maturity profile of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Major risks and their mitigation measures:

SI. Risk Impact Mitigation measures

No.

1 Credit risk The delinquencies may | Origination and appraisal
The most result in monetary losses, | CGHFL has stipulated prudent lending policies for
common risk | higher NPAs and | each of the business vertical, considering the risk
faced by any | deterioration  of  asset | involved with different products and customer
lending quality  and  ultimately | profiles. The Company has designed a robust and
institution is capital adequacy. dynamic credit appraisal system to minimise the
the inability This is followed by a | probability of default. Its credit appraisal system
on the part of | thorough assessment of the | conducts customer meetings (business and
the borrower | potential customers’ | residence) and field investigations, credit
to repay the soundness of business and | information bureaus checks, in-house technical
loan. long-term viability by | and legal verification, adequate loan to value ratio

analysing cash flows. and term cover for insurance. There is thorough
reference checks of the borrower’s overall
goodwill and integrity in the market. This is
followed by a thorough business assessment and
long-term viability by analyzing cash flows of the
potential customers.
All loans are fully secured by way of mortgages
and CGHFL has first and exclusive charge on
collateral properties.
Company has put in place an inhouse Fraud
Control Unit, having expert knowledge in fraud
detection and forensic analysis of documents, this
helps in detection and elimination of potential
frauds on the Company.

2 Operational Operational lapses could | CGHFL has a state-of-the-art technology driven
risk lead to adverse impact on | process flow and operational control system and
Operational the sustainability of the | a responsive customer portal for enhanced
Risk is the risk | business in the long-term | efficiency and deeper engagement with the
of possible and loss of profitability. customers. The Company’s internal control
losses, arising infrastructure is well-aligned with its underwriting
due to lack of and collection processes, which are managed by a
proper flow highly competent and trained team.
and
inadequate
controls over
the internal
processes,
people,
systems and
operations of
the Company.




Liquidity risk
Liquidity risks

A skewed
profile  can

asset-liability
potentially

CGHFL has dedicated treasury team to manage
liquidity and monitor fund availability and

emanate initiate a liquidity shortfall | deployment on daily basis. Reports are submitted
from the gaps | and result in significantly | to ALCO members, and are used to make relevant
in financing higher costs of funds. liquidity forecasts on quarterly basis for the
activity. succeeding 6 months. Company’s has exposure to
all long-term funds with repayment tenure of 5-8
years and are sourced from banks and FI’s. There
is nil exposure to commercial papers. CGHFL's is
in strong position to mobilise funds for its growth
having decent capital adequacy ratio.
Strategicand | Lack of timely response to | The CGHFL's strategy, business and risk teams
business risk | such unforeseen conditions | keep a track of key economic trends, sector
It is the risk can lead to major tremors | developments and market competition, which
to earnings in the business. Entry of | allows us to take well-informed and in-time
and capital new competitors leading to | strategic decisions. CGHFL’s customised and
arising from loss of market share, higher | tailor-made lending solutions are designed
volatile costs of funding resulting in | keeping in mind the needs of individuals for a
macro- contraction of available | faster market penetration. Business issues which
economic spreads, slow-down in | are of strategic importance are referred to the
conditions, certain customer segments, | Board members, who are experts with rich
sudden employee  attrition are | experience in their respective fields. Intense
changes in some of the potential | brainstorming sessions are conducted to evaluate

the business

business risks faced by the

and design the relevant strategies, which help us

environment | Company. in tackling the business uncertainties and
or adverse circumventing business disruptions.

business

decisions.

Interest rate | Volatility in interest rates | Interest rate movements are tracked and

risks

can have a negative impact
on the borrowing costs of
the Company, decline in
interest income and net
interest margins. This can
cause a mismatch on the

reviewed by ALCO on a quarterly basis. The base
lending rate i.e. Long Term Reference Rate (LTRR)
is fixed. Most of Company’s portfolio is built on
floating interest rates. Interest rates are primarily
market driven and CGHFL’s interest risk strategy
is well adept at managing the changing market

Company’s  asset—liability | dynamics.

position and could lead to

lower  profitability  and

lower returns.
Regulatory Non-compliance of the | CGHFL has a separate compliance department,
and rules,  regulations and | headed by a Senior Personnel. The Company
Compliance statutes leads to stringent | keeps itself abreast with all recent developments
risk actions and penalties from | and changes in the regulatory framework/
CGHFL is | the Regulator or Statutory | guidelines to ensure a timely, effective and
registered Authorities. proper implementation and compliance. CGHFL
with the diligently complies with Capital Adequacy Norms,
National Fair Practice Code, Asset Classification, KYC/PMLA

Housing Bank
as a Housing
Finance
Company

Guidelines,  Provisioning Norms, Corporate
Governance framework, Timely Reporting with
NHB/RBI/SEBI /Ministry of Corporate Affairs, etc.
among others to ensure a comprehensive

Compliance framework. This is continuously
reviewed and monitored by a robust Internal




Audit and control framework.
Information Data integrity and physical | To mitigate risks, the Company deployed
Technology safeguarding of assets. Application Whitelisting solution to specify index
risk (including of approved software applications or executable
Cyber Risks could primarily arise | files that are permitted to be present on the
Security) from the unavailability of | systems, deployed MDM solutions, blocked USB
Company systems and / or loss or | Ports of all IT assets, deployed EMS security,
deploys manipulation of | policy based DLP solution.
Information information, Information
Technology data security, freeware or | To curb cyber security risk the company also
systems unlicensed software | proposed to implement WAF (Web Application
including installed on end points. Firewall) to mitigate threats against all web facing
ERP, loan applications
management
applications, Systems are upgraded regularly with the latest
Data security standards. For critical applications,
Historian and security policies and procedures are updated on a
Mobile periodic basis and wusers are educated on
Solutions to adherence to the policies so as to eliminate data
support its leakages.
business
processes,
communicati
ons and
customer
details  and
loan records.

vi.

vii.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations. Internal control systems comprising of policies and procedures and well-defined risk and
control matrix are designed to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business operations, safeguard
company’s assets, prevention and detection of errors and frauds, ensure strict compliance with
applicable laws and assure reliability of financial statements and financial reporting.

An extensive program of internal audits, and regular reviews by the Audit Committee is carried out to
ensure compliance with the best practices. The efficacy of internal control systems is tested periodically
by Internal Auditors and internal control over financial reporting is tested and certified by Statutory
Auditors.

Human Resource Development

Company values its relationship with all employees and ensures that each of team members feel
connected and share the broader vision of making a positive social impact by bridging the credit gap.

Company’s people’s team, guided by the top management, relentlessly undertakes various people-
centric activities to keep employees engaged and provides them with suitable opportunities.

The Company has ensured that the employees’ skills are continuously uplifted so that employees can
handle challenges while staying abreast with the functional domain knowledge of the Non-Banking
Financial Services Industry. Employee recognition has always been an essential element for the Company



in motivating, retaining and fully engaging the employees which leads to achieving the organizational
goals and in turns helps to create a positive environment at workplace. The Company has quarterly as
well as yearly rewards for exceptional performers and the performance appraisal systems have been
designed to recognize and reward exceptional performers. There are contests for employees to boost
their performance and reward them. Employees who have completed 5 year & 10 years have been
recognized for their loyalty in their services.

Company focuses on providing opportunities to each employee to grow and utilise their full potential.
Employee Engagement Initiatives:

CGHFL believes that Engagement relates to the level of an employee’s commitment and connection with
the organization. Employee engagement has emerged as a critical drive of business success in today’s
competitive marketplace. High level of engagement promotes retention of talent, foster customer loyalty
and improves organizational performance. Company’s focus lies in nurturing talent and recognizing their
efforts contributing towards meeting the organizational goal. Employees are given opportunities to take
up challenging role, this helps to keep employees engaged.

Fine balance between People & Technology:

While the advancement in HR technology is accelerating, the ongoing pace of progress of these
technologies is transforming how people carry out their work, and how HR supports their employees.
Technology makes it easier to gather and break down data on employees to get an overall picture. A
collaboration between people and technology has becomes an essence in today’s world and it becomes
important at building a collaborative workforce by bringing people and technology in one frame.
Collaboration has always been known to make things work more effectively. CGHFL with the help of in-
house technology team have evolved HR process which, has reduced manual intervention and has
automated routine administrative tasks and has helped focus on strategic aspects of HR functions. In
order to facilitate the process, tools like self-service employee portals, on-boarding, exits, performance
reviews and an interface is created for prospective candidates to complete their process during the offer
stage. With the help of technology data management is simplified, and the data is available with a click of
a button. The technology has enabled, collection and delivery of information, as well as communicate
with employees more easily and efficiently.

Gender equality among organization:

In today’s dynamic business environment, achieving gender equality is the factor for competitiveness and
growth of any organization. To create an inclusive and dynamic economy, CGHFL ensures that everyone
receives an equal opportunity to succeed. Gender equality in the workplace refer to a variety of culture,
practices and attitude that promotes or subvert attempts to create a gender equal workplace. CGHFL
ensures that equal opportunity is given to all employees without gender discrimination. It also includes
providing equal chances of promotion, pay-rises, and inclusion in decision making process. CGHFL has
prioritized work life balance, strict and effective policies are created against harassment at workplace. An
open-minded culture is created which gives the employees an opportunity to exchange ideas & nurture
their career in the organization which leads to long term success for the organization as well as the
employee’s.
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

This Policy has been laid down on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board, and is in compliance with the requirements of the Section 178 Companies Act, 2013.

1.1  Objectives

The Policy lays down the:

(i) Criteria for determining inter-alia qualification, positive attributes and independence of Directors for
their appointment on the Board of the Company;
(ii) Criteria for payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

1.2  Definitions
i. “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

ii. “Company” means “Capri Global Housing Finance Limited.”

iii. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the Directors, Officers or Employees of a company
or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such Directors, Officers
or Employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future
date at a pre-determined price.

iv. A. ‘fit and proper ‘shall mean an individual who is :
a. more than thirty years in age;
b. agraduate;
c. has minimum five years experience;
d. aperson of integrity, reputation and character in the opinion of the Committee;

V. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means
a) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing / Executive Director or the Manager,
b) Company Secretary,
c) Whole-time Director,
d) Chief Financial Officer and
e) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

vii. “Committee” shall mean the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the

Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

viii. “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”
iX. “Managerial Person” means the Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager.
X. “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered

by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Xi. “Senior Management” means, personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team
excluding Board of Directors and who may be qualified to become directors.

13 Interpretation

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI Act, 1992, as notified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India from time to time.



1.4

1.5

Appointment and Removal of Managerial Person, Director, Key Management Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

a)

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Managerial Person, Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel who
may be qualified to become directors and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by
a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the designated position.

With respect to appointment of a Senior Management Personnel other than the one mentioned
above, the Human Resource Department with the consultation/advice/recommendations of the
respective Functional Heads/Promoter Director of the Company, as the case may be, can decide on
their appointments and the same need not be recommended to the Committee/Board as the case
may be.

Term / Tenure:

a)

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint a person as its Managerial Person by passing of a
resolution and disclosure of such appointment in the Directors Report forming part of the Annual
Report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive Terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.
Term can be for a maximum period of five years.

the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person
is serving as a Whole-time Director of the Company.

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), rules made there
under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the
Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Managerial Person, Director, subject to the
provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement:

The Managerial Person, Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to
retain the Managerial Person, Director, and KMP, Senior Management in the same position / remuneration
or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Disqualifications for Appointment of Directors

A person shall not be eligible for appointment as director of the company if:

a)
b)
c)

he is of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent court;
he is undischarged insolvent;
he has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his application is pending;



d) He has been convicted by a court of any offence, weather involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and
sentenced in respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six months and a period of five years
has not elapsed from the date of expiry of the sentence:

Provided that if a person has been convicted of any offence and sentenced in respect thereof to
imprisonment for a period of seven years or more, he shall not be eligible to be appointed as a
director in any company:

1) An order disqualifying him for appointment as a director has been passed by a court or
Tribunal and the order in force;

2) He has not paid any calls in respect of any shares of the company held by him whether alone
or jointly with others and six months have elapsed from the last day fixed for the payment of
the call;

3) He has been convicted of the offence dealing with related party transactions under section
188 at any time during the last preceding five years; or

4) He has not complied with sub-section (3) of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii. A person who has been a Director of the company which:

a) has not filed financial statements or annual returns for any continuous period of three financial years;
or

b) has failed to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to redeem any debentures
on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay dividend declared and such failure to pay or
redeem continues for one year of more,

shall be ineligible to be appointed as a director of the Company for a period of five years from the date
on which the other company fails to do so.

iii. A person shall not be eligible for appointment and continuance as a Director, if he / she is not found ‘fit
and proper’ by the Committee.

1.6  Remuneration Policy

Remuneration Policy of Company is designed to attract, motivate, and retain manpower in a competitive
environment considering qualification, positive attribute, integrity and independence, and is guided by the
common reward framework and set of principles and objectives. The Remuneration Policy applies to the
Company’s Senior Management Personnel, including its Key Managerial Person and the Board of Directors.

The policy captures remuneration strategies, policies and practices of Company, including compensation, variable-
compensation, equity-based plans and the process for the measurement and assessment of employee and
executive performance. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Managerial Person, Director,
KMP and Senior Management Personnel (who may be qualified to become directors) will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

1.6.1 Remuneration Strategy for Employees at Company

The Company adopts a total compensation philosophy in rewarding employees. The Total compensation package
for the employees comprises of Fixed and Variable Component. Fixed pay consists of the base salary and any
recurring, regular allowances payable in the specific location. Variable pay includes performance bonuses and
ESOP’s for eligible employees.

The level of Total compensation is designed to be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate employees to
contribute their best. In determining the Total compensation of employees, the Company takes into account the
role and its responsibilities, the individuals” and teams’ performance, and the Company’s performance, as well as
market factors. The Company’s remuneration strategy is market-driven and aims at attracting and retaining high
caliber talent.

Factors such as profitability and achievement of key performance indicators are taken into consideration, in
determining the bonus pool for the Company and its business units. Individual bonus allocation is based on



performance against various set of pre-defined objectives.

The strategy is in consonance with the existing industry practice and is directed towards rewarding performance,
based on review of achievements, on a periodical basis.

16.2

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Company shall review, at least annually, the Key Management personnel’s remuneration arrangements in light
of current market benchmarks and expert advice on remuneration levels and, with due consideration to law and
corporate governance principles.

Remuneration of the Key Management Personnel consists of a fixed component and a variable performance
incentive. The annual appraisal of the Key Management personnel is based on a detailed performance evaluation
of their Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)

vi.

vii.

viii.

1.6.3

Fixed Component: Consists of Basic Pay (Usually 40%-60% of the gross Fixed Salary).

Perquisites: In the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, reimbursement of medical expenses,
conveyance, children education, telephone, communication equipments like Ipad’s etc.

Retirement Benefits: Pension contributions, Gratuity payments are made in accordance with applicable
laws and employment agreements.

Severance payments: In accordance with termination clauses in employment agreements, the severance
payment is in accordance with applicable local legal framework.

Personal benefits: Based on employment agreements and Company policy, Company Car and Driver is
provided to specific grade.

Medical Insurance — Coverage of Rs. 5 Lacs every year to the personnel, his/her spouse, two children and
parents (In case of female employees they can choose the option for including their in-laws in lieu of her
parents).

Term Insurance — Coverage between Rs. 50 Lacs to Rs. 1 Cr. based on the grade.

Variable pay is linked to the below three factors:

a) the financial results of the company;

b) targets achieved;

c) theindividual performance and that of the department/team

Annual Performance Linked Bonus: Individual bonus allocation takes performance ratings and
performance against various set of objectives mentioned below into consideration:

In the beginning of the year the Board sets the organization performance objectives based on qualitative
and quantitative measures.

These objectives are reviewed periodically to ensure they remain consistent with the Company’s priorities
and the changing nature of the Company’s business.

These objectives form part of the performance targets for the Managerial Personnel.

Performance against these objectives is reviewed annually by the Board and is reflected in the Managerial
Personnel’s remuneration review.

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (who are not in the employment of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries/associates) shall be paid sitting fees as per the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.



Commission, if any, payable to NEDs shall be approved by the Board of the Company based on the
recommendation of the Committee.

An independent Director shall not be entitled to any Stock Options of the Company.
1.7  Deviations from the Policy

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of
the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case.

1.8 Amendments

The Remuneration policy may be reviewed by the Board of the Company on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board.
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153

502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable, statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter
called the “Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
Opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the data provided to us, w.r.t Minutes, forms and its attachment and returns
filed by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended 315 March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the data provided by Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; - (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014; - (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; - (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

B-410, BSEL Tech Park, Sector — 30A, Opp. Vashi Railway Station, Vashi, Navi Mumbai — 400705.
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(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; -
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 ;-(Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(6) The following laws, regulations, directions, orders are applicable specifically to the Company and
as confirmed by Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Managing Director, same have been Complied by the
Company :

a) The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

b) The Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010;

c) Master Circular on Fair Practice Code for Housing Finance Companies;

d) Master Circular-Housing Finance Companies- Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016;

e) Master Directions — Non-banking financial companies — Housing Finance Companies (Reserve
Bank of India ) Directions, 2021; and

f) The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 read with the rules made thereunder

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
2. The Listing Regulation entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were also sent adequately, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Maijority decision at the Board meeting is taken unanimously.

As informed to us, we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with provisions of Acts and Rules made
thereunder.

For Sandeep P Pasekh & Co.
Company ries

FCS No: 7118, CP No: 7693

Sandeep P. Parekh

Place: Navi Mumbai

Date: 13/05/2024

UDIN: FO07118F000360878

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of
this report.
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ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. | believe that the
process and practices | followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Sandeep P Parekh & Co.
Company Secrefaries

FCS No: 7118, CP No: 7693
Sandeep P. Parekh

Place: Navi Mumbai

Date: 13/05/2024

UDIN: FO07118F000360878

B-410, BSEL Tech Park, Sector — 30A, Opp. Vashi Railway Station, Vashi, Navi Mumbai — 400705.
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Annexure |V

Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year 2023-2024

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

At CGHFL, we have always viewed CSR as an instrument for impactful transformation, and not an obligation that needs to be complied with.

Over the years, we have developed a strong culture of caring and giving back to the society, which fit together with our core business.

The CSR projects of the Company are focused on communities that are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized. The Company strives to
contribute positively to improve their standard of living, through its interventions in integrated rural development, quality education, nutrition
and capacity building.The Company’s CSR Policy framework details the mechanisms for undertaking various programmes in accordance with

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) for the benefit of the community.

Integrated rural development: The objective of the program was to improve the livelihood of tribal people through agricultural projects. It was
successful in increasing the agricultural output as well as the income of farmers in a sustainable way while also achieving an increase in the
land under diverse crops. A decrease in distress migration, both in terms of reduced number of migrants and reduced number of days of
migration was also observed which was made possible through availability of farm and non-farm livelihood employment for participants in the
project activities. A step towards sustainability was achieved through encouragement of optimal use of water for irrigation purposes and
increase in the sowing and harvesting of local varieties. As an added benefit, there was a reduction in the number of thirst days and water-

borne diseases. The program also ensured the resilience of the stakeholders to sustain interventions in the future.

Education: The project/program has a multifaceted approach with a focus on education as well as capacity building for budding entrepreneurs.
To ensure the holistic development of children, both girls and boys, there was a focus on strengthening infrastructure, learning environments,
foundational literacy and numeracy as well as STEM education in government schools. In order to make this possible, a learning friendly

school infrastructure was established for children, 50% of which were girls. There was a focus on strengthening the existing school support



structures and building the capacity of teachers on subject-specific and child-centric pedagogy. Furthermore, school community relations were
strengthened through active parent engagement in the school's management committees. Quality education, nutrition and health care was
ensured for the welfare of the targeted children through daycare centers. Children living on construction sites got access to a safe and
stimulating environment which ensured that they are safe, healthy, educated and able to enjoy their childhood.

In terms of capacity building, a fellowship was initiated to enhance moral leadership skills among social builders, both in-person and online and
to create a lifelong community to amplify the fellows’ impact. The project was successful in bringing together a diverse group of entrepreneurs
and policy makers working on the country’s most pressing social issues. It resulted in building a network of social leaders and support was

given to them for scaling their organization.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of CSR| Number of meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held during the | Committee attended during the
year year
1 Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Chairman of the Committee 2 2
2 Ms. Bhagyam Ramani Member 2 2
3 Mr. Rajesh Sharma Member 2 1

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of
the company.

https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/ CGHFL CSR POLICY.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). NA

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any : NA


https://caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_CSR_POLICY.pdf

Amount required to be set-off for the

/Amount available for set-off from preceding
financial year, if any (in Rs)

Sl. No.|Financial Year
financial years (in Rs)

Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).
The average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years is Rs.5693.06 Lakhs.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

Rs. 113.86 Lakhs.
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.

NA
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

NA
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).
The Company is required to spend an amount of Rs 113.86 Lakhs as CSR expenditure during the financial year 2023-24

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent
for the F.inancial Year. Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR |Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VIl as
(inRs.) Account as per section 135(6). per second proviso to section 135(5).
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer.
Rs. 119.69 Lakhs NA - NA




spent towards various
activities for the benefit
of the community.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NA

(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 7 (8)
SI. No. | Name of the Item from the list of Local Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of implementation - Through
Project activities in schedule Vil to | area project. spent for | implementation - implementing agency.
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Total

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: 5.69 Lakhs
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 119.69 Lakhs.

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any : NA

SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]
(

iv)  [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years, if any

(v)  |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

SI. No. |Preceding Financial Amount transferred] Amount spent in Amount transferred to any fund Amount
Year. to Unspent CSR the reporting specified under Schedule VIl as per | remaining to be
Account under Financial Year (in section 135(6), if any. spent in
section 135 (6) (in Rs.). Name of the| Amount (in| Date of .succ.eedlng
Rs.) Fund R t P financial years.
un s). ransfer. (in Rs.)
1.
2.




Total

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NA

(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) 7 (8) 9
Sl. No. Project ID. | Name of the | Financial Project |Total amount| Amount Cumulative |Status of the
Project. |[Year in which| duration. |allocated for|spent on the amount spent project -
the project the project |project in the| at the end of | Completed
was (in Rs.). reporting reporting /Ongoing.
commenced. Financial Financial

Year (in Rs). | Year. (in Rs.)

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial
year

(asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset).

Details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year.

(a) (b) (c) (d)




Date of creation

Amount of CSR

Details of the entity or public

Sr. | or acquisition of spenf for authority or beneflmary under Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired including
. creation or whose name such capital . .
No. | the capital . .. . . . complete address and location of the capital asset.
acquisition of asset is registered, their
asset(s). .
capital asset. address etc.
Action Related To The
Organisation  Of  Education,
) Health And Nutrition (Aroehan), | Installation of new solar Lifting system unit,Ghatkarpada, Tal.
1 March - 2024 311,69,956.00 | 4355 A, Landmark Tower, G. D. | Mokhada, Dist. Palghar, Maharashtra Pin: 401604
Ambekar Marg, Dadar East,
Mumbai, Mh18, Mh, 40 0014
2
Grant Total %11,69,956.00

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

Sd/-

(Chief Executive Officer or Managing
Director or Director).

Sd/-

(Chairman CSR Committee).

Sd/-

[Person specified under clause (d) of sub-
section (1) of section 380 of the Act]
(Wherever applicable).




Annexure V

Details pertaining to employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sr. No Particulars Relevant details

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director | - | Mr. Rajesh Sharma (Managing Director) — 3.33x.
to the median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year 2023-24

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of | - | Directors:
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 1) Mr. Rajesh Sharma (Managing Director) - NIL
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, if any, in the financial year Key Managerial Personnel:

1) Mr. Partha Chakraborti, Chief Financial Officer —
NA
2) Mr. Yashesh Bhatt, Company Secretary — NA

iii. The percentage increase in the median | - | 15.00%
remuneration of employees in the financial year

iv. The number of permanent employees on the | - | 2008 employees as on 31.03.2024 (1483
rolls of Company employees as on 31.03.2023)

V. Average percentile increase already made in the | - | Average increase in salary of eligible employees
salaries of employees other than the other than managerial personnel is 12.52%.
managerial personnel in the last financial year
and its comparison with the percentile increase in Remuneration of Managing Director was not
the managerial remuneration and justification increased during FY 2023-24.
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration

Vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is paid as per the Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key

Managerial Personnel and employees

* Remuneration does not include variable pay.
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(REGISTERED)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
1007, RAHEJA CHAMBERS, 213, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI 400 021. INDIA

PHONE : (91-22) 6611 6611 FAX : (91-22) 6611 6600

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the standalone financial
statements”™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“the Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (“the SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibility for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Director’s Report and Management Discussion and Analysis

(collectively referred to as “the other information™) but does not include the standalone

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be
AD/qmade available to us after the date of this report.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
$0.

The Board of Directors of the Company is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
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As part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit on the standalone financial




b)

d)

€)

g

h)

KAPADIA & CO.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the
matters stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)(“the Rules™).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the
Rules.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statement.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its Managing Director during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statement;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;
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iv.

Vi.

Place: Mumbai

(a)

(b)

(©)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as stated in note no. 61.7(a), no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has also represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, as stated in note no. 61.7(b), no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the audit
trail was not enabled for direct database changes, if any. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104767W

W
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Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 039569
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Date : May 3, 2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUIQ1520
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report of even date to the members of Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company

and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state
that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets
under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of
three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of
right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties. The lease agreements, where
the Company is the lessee, are duly executed in favour of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable;

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable; and

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order
is not applicable.

(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory as it is primarily engaged in lending
activities. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable; and

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(ili) The Company is a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (“NBFC”)
registered with National Housing Bank (“NHB”).

During the year, in the ordinary course of its business, the Company has made
investments in, provided guarantee / security to and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans, secured and unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships
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(iv)

(v)

and other parties. With respect to such investments, guarantees / security and loans and
advances:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

As the principal business of the Company is to give loans, the paragraph 3(iii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company;

The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees
provided in the normal course of business are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company;

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the year in the
ordinary course of business, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest have been stipulated and the repayment of loan and receipts of interest are
generally regular except there were cases which were not repaid / paid when they
were due or were repaid / paid with a delay. Such loans have been accounted for in
accordance with the Company’s policy on asset classification and provisioning as
described in note 2.06.1 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to
furnish party-wise details of irregularities in this report. However, such details are
available with the Company. For details of total loans and advances which were
overdue as of March 31, 2024, refer note no. 46 to the Standalone Financial
Statements;

The following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days from companies or
any other parties to whom loan has been granted. The Company has taken reasonable
steps for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest;

(Rs. in millions)

Number of Principal Amount | Interest Overdue Total Overdue
Cases Overdue

428 9:59 - 9.55

(e)

ty

The provisions of paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
as its principal business is to give loans; and

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has not advanced loans or made investments in or provided guarantees or
security to parties covered by section 185 and 186 of the Act. Hence reporting under
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a non-banking finance company and consequently is exempt from
provisions of section 73 or any other relevant provisions of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

_(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under

_\U*PAD/‘? e\section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence
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(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and any other
statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on verification carried out by us
on test basis, there are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as on the last day of
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they
became payable; and

(b) The details of statutory dues referred to in sub paragraph (a) above which have not
been deposited with the concerned authorities as on March 31, 2024, on account of
dispute are given below:

(Rs. in millions)

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Amount | Period to | Forum where
statute dues involved | unpaid which  the | dispute is
amount pending
relates
Income Tax | Regular 1.380 1.380 | A.Y 2017- | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Assessment 2018 of Income Tax
ws 143(3) (Appeal)
of the Act
Income Tax | Regular 0.729 0.729 | AY 2018- | Assessing
Act, 1961 Assessment 2019 Officer
ws 143(3)
of the Act
Income Tax | Intimation 0.008 0.008 | A.Y 2019- | Assessing
Act, 1961 ws 143(1) 2020 Officer
of the Act
Income Tax | Regular 1.623 1.623 | AY 2020- | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Assessment 2021 of Income Tax
w/s 143(3) (Appeal)
of the Act
Income Tax | Intimation 0.004 0.004 | A.Y 2021- | Assessing
Act, 1961 w/s 143(1) 2022 Officer
of the Act

(viii) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account and have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender;

(b) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender;

(c) The term loans availed by the Company during the year, were applied by the
Company for the purposes for which the loans were obtained other than temporary
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deployment pending application of proceeds;

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on verification
carried out by us, the Company has not raised funds on short term basis.
Accordingly, reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable;

(e) The Company does not have subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable; and

(f) The Company does not have subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
reporting on paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised monies by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public
Offer (including debt instruments) during the year; and

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year under audit and
hence reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) (a) No instance of fraud by the Company or any material instance of fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year;

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed during the year by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; and

(¢) No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business; and

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (“the RBI Act™);

(b) The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing
Bank and is not required to obtain a Certificate of Registration from RBI as per the
RBI Act;

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the
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regulations made by RBI. Accordingly, reporting on paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable; and

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group as per definition of Group

contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and
hence the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

(xix)

reporting under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report, that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  There is no amount remaining unspent by the Company under section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) and (xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.104767W

gt

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai ' Membership No. 039569
Date : May 3, 2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUIQ1520
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the members of Capri Global Housing Finance
Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Act
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (*‘the Company’’) as of March 31,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to the standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to the standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to the standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness.

r audit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements
ed obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the
lone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing

11
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and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAL

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to the standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
the standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Date : May 3, 2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUIQ1520
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

ASSETS
(I) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(c) Derivative financial instruments
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Other Receivables
(e) Loans
(f) Investments
(g) Other financial assets

(II) Non Financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (net)
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
(c) Property, plant and equipment
(d) Intangible assets under development
(e) Intangible assets
(f) Other non financial assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(I)  Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Payables
i) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
ii) Other Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
(c) Debt securities
(d) Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
(e) Other financial liabilities

(I) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net)
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-financial liabilities

EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

. . As at As at
Note No.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3 4.227.82 31862
4 21114 200.82

14 9.82 4
5 354 0.91
6 1.24 1.23
7 37.971.52 2545829
8 1,596 83 1.805.41
9 162.44 75.50
44,184.35 27,860.78
10 19.28 5.29
11 134.80 110.99
12 214.08 182.25
12 99,94 74.33
12 88.01 15.79
13 79.74 29,11
635.85 409.76
44,820.20 28,270.54
14 - 17.67

15
0.82 0.36
261.74 121.63
16

19.56 39.07

17 - -
18 32,632.62 21,229.13
19 3,925.33 1,607.69
36,840.07 23,015.55
10 2.80 7.12
20 48.74 38.10
21 27.03 20.94
78.57 66.16
22 788.08 712.04
23 7.113.48 4.476.79
7,901.56 5,188.83
44,820.20 28,270.54

In terms of our report attached
For G.M. Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 104767W)

Y =t

Atul Shah

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153

'%:\i"

Rajesh Sharma

S. Rangaﬁathan

Partner
Membership No. - 039569
Place : Mumbai

May 03, 2024

Managing Director
DIN 00020037
Place : Mumbai

L r
Ol
Yashesh Bhatt
Company Secretary
ACS-20491
Place: Mumbai

May 03, 2024

Independent Director
DIN 00125493
Place : Mumbai

Partha Chakraborti
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
May 03, 2024




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars Note For year ended For year ended
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(1) Revenue from operations
(a) Interest income 24 4,013.22 2,769.19
(b) Fee and commission income 25 49.75 46,10
(c) Net gain on fair value change 26 138.88 110.01
(d) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 27 253.50 33.56
category
(e) Sale of services 188.28 119.97
(f)  Other operating income 28 138.27 93.72
Total revenue from operations 4,781.90 3,172.55
(IT)  Other income 29 90.00 64.17
Total income 4,871.90 3,236.72
(III)  Expenses
(a) Finance costs 30 2,158.62 1,479 80
(b) Impairment on financial instruments 31 205.01 154.02
(c) Employee benefits expenses 32 1,114.80 510.52
(d) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 33 78.49 49 46
(e) Others expenses 34 408.18 269.63
Total expenses 3,965.10 2,463.43
(IV)  Profit before tax for the year (I + II - I1I) 906.80 773.29
(V)  Tax Expense:
(a) Current tax 213.83 178.09
(b) Deferred tax (21.39) (10.81)
(c) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years (2.43) (14.46)
189.81 152.82
(VI)  Net profit after tax for the year (IV - V) 716.99 620.47
(VII) Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(1) Remeasurement on defined benefit plans (3.94) (6.00)
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 0.99 1.51
Total (a) (2.95) (4.49)
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss
(1) Fair Value Gain on time value of forward element of forward contract in (5.56) (9.73)
hedging relationship
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 1.40 245
Total (b) (4.16) (7.28)
Other Comprehensive Income (a+b) (7.11) (11.77)
(V) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VI+ VII) 709.88 608.70
(IX)  Earnings per equity share in Rupees (Face value Rs. 10 each)
Basic 35 9.51 8.71
Diluted 35 9.51 8.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For G.M. Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 104767W)

S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153

-

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. - 039569
Place : Mumbai

May 03, 2024

Rajesh Sharma
Managing Director
DIN 00020037
Place : Mumbai

[
phed 2
Yashesh Bhatt
Company Secretary
ACS-20491
Place: Mumbai
May 03, 2024

il

S. Ranganathan
Independent Director
DIN 00125493

Place : Mumbai

WT

Partha Chakraborti
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
May 03, 2024




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation & amortisation
Impairment on financial instruments
Net Gain on Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments
Net Gain on Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Loss/(Gain) on sale of Fixed Assets
Write off - Fixed Assets
Gain on early termination of Lease
Gain on sale of Investment Property
Share Based Payments to employees
Interest on Lease Liability
Interest income
Finance cost
Interest received
Interest Paid

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in
Loans
Trade receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Other Financial Assets
Other Non-financial Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in
Trade pavables
Other financial liability
Other Non-financial liability
Provision

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid (Net of Refunds Received)

Net cash used in operating activities -A

B Cash flow from investing activities

Increase/(decrease) in Fixed deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalent
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Intangible Assets Under Development

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of investment in Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of investment in Mutual funds
Sale/(Purchase) of investment in Mutual Funds (net)
Investment in shares of subsidiaries

Purchase of shares/bonds (Net)

Proceeds from Sale of investment (PTC)

Purchase of Investment (PTC)

(Purchase)/ sale of PTC (Net)

Interest received on Investments

Proceeds from sale of Investment Properties

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B

- gy

For vear ended

For year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

906.80 773.29
78.49 49.46
205.01 154.02
(138.88) (110.01)
(253.50) (33.56)
0.13 026

0.14 119
(272 (1.40)
; (6.30)

19.48 13.26
(4.013.22) (2,769.19)
2.139.14 1,466.54
3,.841.52 2,728 60
(2,234.31) (1,483.71)
548.08 782.45
(12,607.89) (8,709.84)
250 86 43.04
(33.05) 415
(86.94) (39.14)
(58.63) (10.59)
123.91 8221
228182 42584
6.09 6.56
1157 12.00
(9,564.18) (7,403.32)
(229.54) (177.99)
(9.793.72) (7,581.31)
(2.90) 94.78
(115.62) (42.82)
(25.61) (63.51)
0.20 (0.77)
(410.43) (16,893.61)
- 15,935.42
59.70 446

- 207.77
694.06 (361.86)
53.19 67.95

- 10.76
252.59 (1,041.43)




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars

C  Cash flow from financing activities

Proceed from Borrowings other than debt securities
Repayment of Borrowings other than debt securities Repaid
Payments for the principal portion of the lease liability
Payments for the interest portion of the lease liability
Dividends paid

Proceed from issue of equity Shares

Net cash generated from financing activities - C

Net increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
a) Cash on hand

b) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
1) In current accounts
ii) Fixed deposits with original maturity of 3 Months or less

¢) Cheques on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

Notes:

For year ended

For year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
23,768.44 12,273.98
(12,269.76) (5.606.02)

(28.88) (27.54)
(19.48) (13.26)
2,000.01 -
13,450.33 6,627.16
3,909.20 (1,995.58)
318.62 2,314.20
4,227.82 318.62
9.34 434
2.405.88 204.23
1,750.83 100.06
61.77 999
4227.82 318.62

1 Cash flows arising on account of taxes on income are not specifically bifurcated with respect to investing & financing activities

2 Figures in brackets represent outflows.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For G.M. Kapadia & Co
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 104767W)

gt

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. - 039369
Place : Mumbai

May 03, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153

R >

Rajesh Sharma
Managing Director
DIN 00020037
Place : Mumbai

L
e
Yashesh Bhatt
Company Secretary
ACS-20491
Place: Mumbai

May 03, 2024

S. Ranganathan
Independent Director

DIN 00125493
Place : Mumbai

Partha Chakraborti "—\4 \
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

May 03, 2024
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

2.01

Corporate Information

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the Company) having principal place of business at Registered office, 502,
Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg. Lower Parel. Mumbai - 400013 is engaged in the business
of providing loans primarily to customers for purchase / construction / repair and renovation of residential property.
The Company holds registration certificate No. 07.0139.16 with National Housing Bank under section 29A of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987 dated 18th July 2016

The standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on May 03, 2024.

Material accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act, Master Direction —
Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021. RBI/2020-21/73
DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21, dated 27 December, 2022 as amended (‘the RBI Master Directions’)
and notification for Implementation of Indian Accounting Standard vide circular RBI/2019-20/170
DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 (‘RBI Notification for Implementation of Ind
AS’) issued by RBI The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties [Refer
note 2.03 (A),(C).(D).(E)]. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented unless
otherwise stated.

Any application of guidance / clarification / directions issued by National Housing Bank (NHB) or other regulations
are implemented prospectively when they become applicable.

The standalone financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with and comply in all material aspects with
Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below and the
relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers
conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the
guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied along
with compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Any application
guidance/clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/
applicable.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved for issue in accordance
with the resolution of the Board of Directors on May 03, 2024.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The preparation of Standalone financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of
contingent liabilities

Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity. or areas where assumptions are significant to the
Company are discussed in Note 2.13 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) and all values are rounded to two decimal
Millions, except when otherwise indicated.




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

2.02 Presentation of financial statement
The Company presents its balance sheet in the order of liquidity.

The Company prepares and present its Standalone Financial Statements in the format prescribed by Division [II of
Schedule 1T to the Act as amended from time to time.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties
intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:

1. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

2.03 Revenue from operations

2.03.1 Interest Income
Interest income is recognised by applying EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. In case of credit-impaired financial assets (as set out in note no. 2.6(vii) regarded as ‘Stage
3"). the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset. If the
financial asset is no longer creditimpaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

The EIR is computed:

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the weighted average
behavioral life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset

b. By considering all the weighted average behavioral life of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows

¢. Including all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Loan processing fees on loans is collected towards processing of loan, this is amortised on EIR basis over the weighted
average behavioral life of the loan for Home Loan and Indirect Lending.

2.03.2 Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.
2.03.3 Fees & Commission Income
The Company recognises the fee and commission income not integral to EIR under Ind AS 109 in accordance with the

terms of the relevant customer contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the
consideration for items.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of
variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services
rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part
of the contract.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than
one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount
that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation. Fees for sale of services are
accounted as and when the service is rendered, provided there is reasonable certainty of its ultimate realisation.

e




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

2,034

2.03.5

2.03.6

2.03.7

Bounce/ penal charges levied on customers for non payment/delay payment of instalment on the contractual date &
Foreclosure charges are collected from loan customers for early payment / closure of loan, are recognised on a point in
time basis and are recorded when realised.

Distribution income is earned by selling of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements. The
income so earned is recognised on successful distribution on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant
uncertainty of its recovery

Sale of service

Sale of services includes advertising income, representing income earned from the activities incidental to the business

and is recognised when the service is performed. Revenue is net of applicable indirect taxes as per the terms of the
contract.

Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on the balance
sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised
in “Net gains on fair value changes™ under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed as
“Net loss on fair value changes™ under Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured
at FVOCI is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

However, Net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately
under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assignment transactions

In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of assignment transactions with significant transfer of risks and rewards without
any retention of residual interest, gain arising on such assignment transactions is recorded upfront in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the corresponding asset is derecognized from the Balance Sheet immediately upon execution of
such transaction.

Further, the transfer of financial assets qualifies for derecognition to the extent of portion trasnsferred, the whole of the
interest spread at its present value (discounted over the life of the asset) is recognized on the date of derecognition itself

as interest only strip receivable (interest strip on assignment) and correspondingly recognized as profit on derecognition
of financial asset.

Securitization transactions

In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of securitization transactions, the Company retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.04 Expenses

2.04.1 Finance costs
Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the contractual life of loan.
The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to
the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts
Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest expense with the
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability.
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability
and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to
advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are
directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

a4




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

2.04.2 Retirement and other employee benefits

2.04.3

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected
cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee benefits

a) Defined contribution schemes

All the eligible employees of the Company who have opted to receive benefits under the Provident Fund and
Employees State Insurance scheme, defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company
contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future benefits other than its annual
contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the Balance
Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides
for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after
serving for the stipulated years mentioned under “The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972".

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation, carried
out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes
each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yiclds on
Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount
rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees - CGHFL Employees Group Gratuity
Assurance Scheme (Formerly known as Money Matters Securities Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity
Assurance Scheme)”. Trustees administer contributions made to the trust and contributions are invested in a scheme
of insurance with the IRDA approved Insurance Companies.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Leases Rent

The Company leases most of its office facilities under operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic
basis at the option of the lessor and the lessee. The lease agreements contain rent free periods and rent escalation
clauses.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset, (ii) the company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the company has the right to
direct the use of the asset.
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2.04.4

2.04.5

2.04.6

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a ROU asset and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements under which it is a lessee, except for short-term leases and low value leases. ROU assets
represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the
Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. For short-term leases and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. For leases
under which the rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate based on the information available at the date of commencement of the lease in determining the present value of
lease payments. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the
Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Taxes

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity when they relate to items that are recognized in the
respective line items.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty. if any, related to income
taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax law) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.
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2.05
2.05.A

2.05.B

2.06

2.06.A

Goods and services tax /service tax/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/service tax/value added taxes paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

1. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or pavable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Company
and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions and balances

Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year- end, are
translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange
rates as at the date of recognition.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the company’s balance sheet on trade date, i.e. when the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues of
financial assets or financial liabilities carried at fair value through the profit or loss account are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Trade Receivables are measured at transaction price.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets” cash flows and the Company’s business
model for managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to
achieve its business objective.

The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis. but at a higher level of
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated
and reported to the entity’s key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment. The
business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s
original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that
business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial
assets going forward.

g
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2.06.B

2.06.C

2.06.D

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify
whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal” for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial liabilitics at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through
the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative
liabilities.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments

These financial assets comprises of bank balances, receivables, investments and other financial assets.

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments

[nvestments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income
within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in Profit and Loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by the
Company in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’ applies, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable election has been made by management and when such
instruments meet the definition of definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such
classification is determined on an instrument- by-instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments
measured at FVTOCL

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in Profit or Loss.

Items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

* Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

* debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments held at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.
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2.06.E

2.06.F

2.06.G

g

Financial instruments designated as measured at FVTPL

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated FVTPL. A financial asset may only be designated at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets or liabilities on a different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at FVTPL if it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch or:

» if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or
« if financial assets and liabilities are both managed. and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at FVTPL, the movement in fair value attributable to changes in the
Company’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above observable market
interest rates and is presented separately in other comprehensive income. As at the reporting date, the Company has
not designated any financial instruments as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an
integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Reclassification

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets undergoes changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively
from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the
Company’s financial assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered under the accounting policy on
Modification and derecognition of financial assets described in subsequent paragraphs.

Recognition and Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recognition:

a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the Financial Instruments are transferred to the customers.

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

¢) Debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised when funds are received by the Company.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as
Credit Impaired (POCI). In case of an existing exposure to the borrower in the company the newly recognised loans
are classified as per the staging of the existing exposure,

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

a) Financial assets:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also
derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if. the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset.

-—
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2.06.H

2.06.1

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has
transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional
restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control
of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL,
in this section all referred to as *financial instruments. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS
109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
loss). unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based
on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending
on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a
financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the
risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of
significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. If a borrower has various facilities having different past due
status, then the highest days past due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low
credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The
Company classifies all standard advances and advances up to 0-30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also
include facilities where the credit risk has reduced and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit
impaired are classified under this stage. Financial assets past due for 31 to 90 days are classified under this stage. Stage
2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has reduced, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount. more than 90 days Past Due is considered as
default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.
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Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial
assets carried at FVTOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not consider otherwise:

d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation: or
¢) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The mechanics of ECL:

The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted. It incorporates all
information that is relevant including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts of
future events and economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into account the
time value of money. Forward looking economic scenarios determined with reference to external forecasts of economic
parameters that have demonstrated a linkage to the performance of our portfolios over a period of time have been
applied to determine impact of macro economic factors.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - Probability of default (“PD") is defined as the likelihood of default over a particular
time horizon. The PD of an obligor is a fundamental risk parameter in credit risk analysis and depends on obligor
specific as well as macroeconomic risk factors.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - Loss Given Default (“LGD™) is defined as the loss rate on the exposure, given the
borrower has defaulted. LGD is being calculated for all financial instruments under risk parameter approach by way of
evaluation of historical data on defaults, recovery amounts, collateral liquidation, direct expenses. and opportunity cost
for each default.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date
including the undrawn commitments. EAD is taken as the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor.
The principal outstanding, overdue principal, accrued interest. overdue interest less excess received from the
customers is considered as EAD for the purpose of ECL computation.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key
economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India. inflation etc. with
the estimate of PD determined by the Company based on its internal data/external data. While the internal estimates of
PD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded
in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Collateral repossessed

In its normal course of business, company repossess assets under SARFAESI/ arbitration Act, but do not transfer these
assets in its book of accounts. The company continues to show these loans account as Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
in the books, till the liquidation of the secured assets through public auction and realise actual payment against these
loans.

2.06.J Write-offs
The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
o
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2.06.K Determination of fair value
On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, the
Company measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in note.) at fair value on each balance sheet
date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the
identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation are significant and are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets
and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it
relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable
inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement
as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

Difference between transaction price and fair value at initial recognition

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based
on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition
(i.e. on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a
valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between
the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models
for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is not
recognised at the initial recognition stage.
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2.06.L Derivative Financial Instruments

2.07

2.08

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated
with its floating rate borrowings arising from changes in interest rates and exchange rates. At inception of designated
hedging relationships.

The Company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also
documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the
changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of
the derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the other equity under “effective portion of cash flows hedges’.
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in OCI is limited to the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge.
Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as the
hedging instrument in cash flow hedge relationships change in fair value of the forward element of the forward
exchange contracts (*forward points’) is separately accounted for as cost of hedging and recognised separately within
equity.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated or
is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedged future cash flows are no longer
expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less) and are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash
commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as
defined above.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment,
(if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the management. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future
benefits of the existing asset. beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured
reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.
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Depreciation

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future
benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured
reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and
loss in the year the asset is derccognised. The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date
the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance
obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset.

2.09 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected
future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use
and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumnulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a
separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is
recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible under
development”

2.10 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting
the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

o

g—




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

2.11

2.13.A

2.13.B

2.13.C

2.13.D

2.13.E

2.13.F

2.13.G

2.13.H

2.13.1

2.13.J

2.14

@

—_—

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 1s a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Eamnings per share. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity
shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities
Refer note 2.04.2

Impairment of loans portfolio
Refer note 2.06.1

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
Refer note 2.03.1 and 2.04.1

Lease accounting
Refer note 2.04.3

Impairment test of non-financial assets
Refer note 2.04.5

Useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles
Refer note 2.08 and 2.09

Provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions
Refer note 2.04.6

Recognition and Measurement of Provision and Contingencies
Refer note 2.1 and 2.11

Determination of the fair value of financial instruments
Refer note 2.06.K

Business Model Assessment
Refer note 2.06.A

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

The Company does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements.




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3. Cash and cash equivalents
a) Cash on hand 9.34 434
b) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

i) in current accounts 2,405.88 204.23
i) in deposit accounts having original maturity less than 3 months 1,750.83 100.06
c) Cheques, drafts on hand 61.77 9.99

Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 4,227.82 318.62
Of the above, the balances that meet the definition of Cash and Cash equivalent as per [nd AS 422782 318.62

7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ is:

4. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank balances

1) Fixed deposit accounts with maturity more than 3 months 211.14 200.82
Total 211.14 200.82
Notes :
a Out of the above % 189.6 million (March 31, 2023 - 2 186.4 million) balance in deposit accounts with banks are being earmarked towards

Borrowings from National Housing Bank.
b Deposits are made for varying period from 7 days to 10 years and earn interest at the respective fixed rate.
5. Trade receivables

a) Trade receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 3.67 091

b) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
1) Secured, considered doubtful -
i) Unsecured, considered doubtful -

c) Trade receivables - Credit impaired - -

367 091
Less: Impairment loss allowance (0.13) -
Total 3.54 0.91
Note:
a Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
b No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor

any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

6. Other Receivables

a) Other Receivables considered good - Secured 1.24 .23
b) Other Receivables considered good - Unsecured - -
c) Other Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
d) Other Receivables - Credit impaired = -

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses - -

Total 1.24

- el
i




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)
5.B Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Unbilled due  Current but Less than 6 6 months to 1 more than 3 Total
Not due months year -4 0 FeR A0 years

Trade Receivables

a) Undisputed - Considered Good - - 367 - - - ” 3.67
b) Undisputed - considered credit impaired - - - - - 5 - - .
¢) Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - - - -
d) Disputed - considered credit impaired - - - = - 2 - ’
Total Trade Receivables (Gross) - - 3.67 - - - - 3.67
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful debts. - - 0.13 - - - - 0.13
Total Trade Receivables (Net) - - 3.54 - - - - 3.54

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Unbilled due  Current but Less than 6 6 months to 1 more than 3 Total
Not due months year kel yeens s years

Trade Receivables

a) Undisputed - Considered Good - - 0.91 - - - - 091
b) Undisputed - considered credit impaired & - - - - - a -
¢) Disputed - Considered Good - - - ” & - w =
d) Disputed - considered credit impaired - - s ¥ = - " R
Total Trade Receivables (Gross) - - 0.91 - - - - 091
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful debts. - - - - - - - -
Total Trade Receivables (Net) - - 0.91 - - - - 0.91

&~




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7. Loans
A. Category of Loans wise Details
I. Atamortised cost
Secured
Term loans 38.439.17 25.800.71
Unsecured
Loan to employees 0.17 0.39

Loans and advanees to related parties - Subsidiary - -
II. At Fair value through profit or loss
Secured
Term loans = .
[I1. At Fair value through OCI
Secured
Term loans - a
IV. Purchased credit - impaired (POCI)
Secured
Term loans 19.23 22.40

Total (i) - Gross 38.458.57 25.823.50

Less: Impairment loss allowance on loans
a) at Amortised cost (496.14) (365.48)
b) at Fair value through profit or loss - -
¢) at Fair value through OCl - -

d) Purchased credit - impaired (POCI) 9.09 0.27
Toal (ii) - Impairment loss allowance (487.05) (365.21)
Total (A) = (i - ii) Net 37,971.52 25,458.29

B. Nature fo Security wise details

i) Secured by Tangible Assets 38.439.17 25.800.71
ii) Secured by Book Debts - -
iii) Unsecured 0.17 0.39
Total (B) - Gross 38,439.34 25,801.10
Less: Impairment loss allowance (487.05) (365.21)
Total (B) - Net 37,952.29 25,435.89

C. Location wise details
i) Loans in India
a. Public Sector w k)

b. Others 38,458.57 25,823.50
Total 38,458.57 25,823.50

ii) Loans outside India - -
Total (C) - Gross 38,458.57 25,823.50
Less: Impairment loss allowance (487.05) (365.21)
Total (C) - Net 37,971.52 25,458.29

Notes:
1 The Company's business model is to hold contractual cash flows, being the payment of Principal and Interest till maturity and
accordingly the loans are measured at amortised cost.

2 Underlying for the term loans secured by tangible assets are properties
(Read above note with note no. 59.12)

-
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)
Particulars As at
March 31, 2024
8. Investments
A. Investments Carried at amortised cost

a) Investments in Debt Securities
i Pass Through Certificates 43 .48

B. Investments Carried at fair value through profit and loss
a) Mutual Fund (Quoted/ Unguoted)

b) Investments in Debt Securities
i) Debt Instrument
¢) Egity Shares - Listed

d) Commercial paper

Investments Carried at cost
a) in Subsidiary

As at
March 31, 2023

741.67

1,063.74

1,596.83

1,805.41

i. Investments outside India -
ii. Investments in India 1,596.83

1,805.41

1,596.83

1,805.41

C. Script wise details of investments

Face As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particular
whars Value Quantity Amt. Quantity

Amt.

A. Investment in Pass Through Certificates (Unquoted)
1 Indian Receivable Trust 2019 Series 5 - 175.00 43.48 2,175.00
Series A2 PTC 01 Mar 2019

B. Investment in Mutual Fund units (Quoted)
1 Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund - - 6.,92.366.470

2 Axis Mutual Fund 37,311.732 100.13 80,394.500
3 Nippon India Money Market Fund - - 1,00,752.440
4 ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Fund - - 1,00,34.017.043
5

Aditya Birla Sunlife Money Manager 5,90,305.113 201.17
Fund

Nippon Liquid Fund 16,945.305 100.13
DSP Liquid Fund 29,012.461 100.13
Tata Money Market Fund 34,441.801 150.43
$BI Savings Fund 74,30,106.823 300.48
10 SBI Liquid Fund 26,495.290 100.13
11 Mirae Liquid Fund 39.261.777 100.13
12 ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund 2.80,162.705 100.13
13 ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund 8.60,398.509 300.49

o e -

1,596.83

N

741.67

251.39
201.06
357.42
253.87

1,805.41




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
9. Other financial assets
Unsecured. considered good
a) Security Deposits 14.35 13.99
b) Spread receivable on assigned portfolio 127.08 32.26
¢) Accrued Income 6.70 28.16
d) Others 14.31 1.09
162.44 75.50
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 162.44 75.50
10. Current tax assets (net)
10.A Current tax assets (net) 19.28 5.29
[Advance tax net of provision for tax % 22548 million (March 31, 2023 2225.48
million)]
Total 19.28 5.29
10.B Current tax liabilities (Net) 2.80 712
[Provision for tax net of advance tax # 546.03 million (March 31,2023 ¥323.10
million)]
Total 2.80 7.12

11. Deferred tax assets (net)

A. Deferred tax assets / (Deferred tax liabilities)

a) Difference between WDV as per books and tax books 592 453
b) Provision for Loans 120.74 93.70
¢) Provision for employee benefits 12.81 6.19
d) Amortised Fees Income - 0.33
e) ECL on Interest on NPA 19.94 11.43
f) Others (net) 5.82 4.01
g) Unrealised gain on Financial Instruments at FVTPL 1.71
Total Deferred Tax Assets 166.94 120.39
a) Amortised Finance Cost (0.16) (0.39)
b) Unrealised gain on Financial Instruments at FVTPL - (0.90)
¢) Gain on derecognition of financial instruments (31.98) (8.11)
Total Deferred tax liabilities (32.14) (9.40)
Net Deferred tax assets / (Deferred tax liabilities) 134.80 110.99

B. For yearly movement in balances of deferred tax assets/( liabilities) refer Note no. - 43




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(Currency * Indian Rupees in millions)

12. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets *

Computer

Intangible assets

Particulars 4 oo .
s Leasehold Computer Furniture and Office o Electrical . . s -
Buildings Premises Pt " Equipments Vehicles igtillation Total Premises Others Total SiRwine Trade Mark Total
- » G
) (B) © o) ®) (F) (ASBECHDAER
A. Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 01,2022 - 36.40 6.40 10.00 6.05 0.18 59.03 68.63 - 68.63 17.59 - 17.59
Addition - 14.22 044 6.76 342 025 25.09 141.91 - 141.91 1773 = 17.73
Disposal - 325 028 044 1.58 - 5.55 18.26 18.26 = -
Balance as at March 31,2023 - - 47.37 6.56 16.32 7.89 0.43 78.57 192.28 = 192.28 35.32 - 3532
Addition 0.02 1536 0.84 838 3oz - 27.62 8573 - 85.73 8794 0.06 88.00
Disposal - 067 2.08 1.40 0.06 4.21 35011 L 35.11 e - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 0.02 62.06 5.32 23.30 10.91 0.37 101.98 242.90 - 242.90 123.26 0.06 123.32
B. Accumulated Depreciation / amortisation
Balance as at April 01,2022 - 2548 4.54 7.87 3.25 0.13 41.27 21.80 21.80 12.26 - 12.26
Depreciation / Amoriisation expense - 10.98 0.54 206 108 0.03 14.69 27.51 27.51 T .27
Disposal - 3.09 022 041 1.15 & 4.87 11.80 - 11.80 - - -
Balance as at March 31,2023 - - 3337 4.86 9.52 3.18 .16 51.09 37.51 - 37.51 19.53 - 19.53
Depreciation / Amortisation expense - 16.59 052 4 88 1.75 007 23.81 38.89 38.89 15.78 15.78
Disposal - 0.64 1.73 132 005 3.74 16.76 - 16.76 = = =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - 49.32 3.08 13.08 4.93 0.18 71.16 59.04 59.64 35.31 - 35.31
C. Net carrying amount (A-B)
As at March 31,2022 - - 10,92 1.86 2.13 2.80 0.05 17.76 46.83 - 46,83 533 - 5.33
As at March 31,2023 - - 14.00 L.70 6.80 4.71 0.27 27.48 154.77 - 154.77 15.79 - 15.79
As at March 31, 2024 - 0.02 12.74 1.67 10.22 5.98 0.19 30.82 183.26 - 183.26 87.95 0.06 88.01
*Refer Note - 43
D. Depreciation and Amortisations for the year For year ended  For year ended
March 31,2024  March 31,2023
a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipments 2381 14.69
b) Depreciation on right-of-use assets 38 89 27.51
¢} Amortisation of intangible assets 1578 127
Total 78.48 49.47
E. Aging of Capital work-in-progress & Intangible assets under development
As at March 31,2024
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year: Total
| Intangible Assets under development 7931 15:27 536 - 99.94
2 Capital work in progress - - - - -
As at March 31,2023
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 year: Total
- 74.33

| Intangible Assets under development 63.73 10.60 -

2 Capital work in progress -

o
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12.F Intangible assets under development
Opening as at April 1 74.33 10.82
Addition 77.90 64.55
Deduction (52.29) (1.04)
Closing as at March 31 99.94 74.33

13. Other non financial assets

a) Prepaid Expenses 19.28 9.97
b) Advance to vendor 59.80 10.22
¢) Other Assets 0.66 0.92

Total 79.74 21.11

14. Derivative financial instruments

14.A Fair value derivative assets / (Liabilities)

a) Currency Derivatives - Forwards 9.82 (17.67)
Total Net 9.82 (17.67)
Derivative Assets (A) 9.82 -
Derivative Liabilities (B) - 17.67
Total Net (A-B) 9.82 (17.67)

14.B As at March 31, 2024

Notional Amounts *  Fair Value - Assets Fair Value - Liabilities

Part |
(i) Currency Derivatives:
Forwards 4,847.40 9.82 -
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 4,847.40 9.82 -
Part 11

Included in above (Part ) are derivatives held for hedging and risk
management purposes as follows:

(i) Cashflow Hedging:

Currency Derivatives : Forwards 4,847.40 9.82 -
(i1) Others = = =
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 4,847.40 9.82 -

14.C As at March 31, 2023

Notional Amounts * Fair Value - Assets Fair Value - Liabilities

Part1
(i) Currency Derivatives:
Forwards 4,598.97 - 17.67
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 4,598.97 - 17.67
Part 11

Included in above (Part I) are derivatives held for hedging and risk
(i) Cashflow Hedging:

Currency Derivatives : Forwards 4,598.97 - 17.67
(11) Others - - -
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 4,598.97 - 17.67

Note: * Notional amount of the respective currency has been converted at exchange rate of March 31 of the respective year.

a




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

15. Trade payables

a) Micro and small enterprises 0.82 0.36

b) Due to related parties - -

¢) Due to Others 261.74 121.63
Total 262.56 121.99

16. Other Payables

a) Micro and small enterprises 2 -
b) Due to related parties = -
¢) Due to Others 19.56 39.07

Total 19.56 39.07

Notes:
| The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

16.C Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The details of amounts outstanding to Micro and Small enterprises based on information available with the Company is as under:

i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end of each accounting year:

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises (Not overdue) 0.82 0.36
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises (Overdue) - -
- Interest due on overdue - -

ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small - -
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting E -
year.

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section
23 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

.~
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

16.D Trade and other Payables Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Unbilled Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More thag3
years

a) Micro and small enterprises - “ 0.82 - - - 0.82
b) Others - 236.23 44.87 0.14 0.06 - 281.30
¢) Disputed - Micro and small enterprises - - - - - - -
d) Disputed - Others - - - - - - =
Total - 236.23 45.69 0.14 0.06 - 282.12

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments

Unbilled Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3 Years Marethan 3
years

a) Micro and small enterprises - - 0.36 - - - 0.36
b) Others - 115.93 44.51 0.12 0.14 - 160.70
¢) Disputed - Micro and small enterprises - - - - - - -
d) Disputed - Others - - - - - - -
Total - 115.93 44.87 0.12 0.14 - 161.06

Ageing of the trade and other payable is determined from the date of transaction




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
17.  Debt securities
17.A At amortised cost
A. Secured
a) Non convertible debentures (listed. fully paid and privately placed) - -
B. Unsecured
a) Commercial Paper & -
Total - B
17.B i) Debt securities in India - -
ii) Debt secunities outside India~ - -
Total - =
18  Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
18.A I At amortised cost
a) Term Loans (Secured)
i) from banks 24,329.47 15,875.02
ii) from other financial institutions 750.00 -
ii1) from National Housing Bank 7,553.15 535411
b) Loans repayable on demand from Banks
i) Cash credit facility - -
i) Overdraft facility - -
Rotal — wene 2120913
I1 a) Borrowings in India 32,632.62 21,229.13
b) Borrowings outside India = -
Total 32!632.62 21329.13

18.B Security and cost

a) Term loans from banks
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of C ompany’s loan receivables, bank balances with asset cover of 1.20 times in favour of borrowing from SBI of T

1,075.34 Millions.

Borrowings other than above: First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the company’s loan receivables / book debts, bank balances and investments with
asset cover of 1,10 to 1.25 times.

Weighted average cost for FY 2023-24 is 9% p.a. and for FY 2022-23 is 8.23% p.a.

Term loans from National Housing Bank
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of the company’s loan receivables / book debts with asset cover of 1.11 to 1.35 times and weighted average cost for FY

2023 - 24 is 6.07% p.a. and for FY 2022 -23i5s 5.36 %o p.a.

b

18.C Terms of repayment & rate of interest in case of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

No. of installments
No. Nature of Facility Maturity Range Interest Range Due As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
(Range)
1 Term Loans 0-3 years 8.37% - 9.90% 3-10 3,949.42 3.447.09
2 Term Loans 3-5 years 8.37%-9.90% 14 -20 5,191.70 5,169.45
3 Term Loans 5-7 years 8.37%-9.90% 21-28 13,438.48 7,348.57
4 Term Loans Beyond 7 years 8.37% - 9.90% 28-32 2,685.20 -
Less: EIR (188.06) (90.09)
Sub Total (A) 25,076.74 15,875.02
1 Refinance from NHB 0-3 years 2.8%-8.10% 0-4 94.40 222.69
2 Refinance from NHB 3-5 years 2.8% - 8.10% 0-16 434.18 582.78
3 Refinance from NHB 5-7 years 2.8%-8.10% 20-27 2,950.87 2,431.50
4 Refinance from NHB Beyond 7 years 2.8%-8.10% 32-40 4,073.70 2,117.14
Less: EIR - -
(B) 7,553.15 5,354.11
Total (A+B) 32!629.89 21 i22‘).13
Notes:
The company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings (other than debt) and interest thereon for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
respectively.

The quarterly returns / statements of current assets filed by the company with the banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

a~
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

Particulars

19. Other financial liabilities

a) Margin Money from customers
b) Book overdraft

¢) Payable to Holding Company
d) Advances from customers

e) Lease liability (Refer note - 45)
f) Others

20. Provisions

a) Provision for Employee Benefits - Gratutiy
b) Provision for Employee Benefits - Compensated absences
¢) Provision for undrawn commitments

21. Other non-financial liabilities

a) Statutory dues payable
b) Others

\

Total

Total

Total

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

58.77 38.61
3.586.87 1,396.72
1.47 1.61
13.95 11.88
194.30 158.49
69.97 0.38
3,925.33 1,607.69
9.64 8.70
37.15 22.57
1.95 6.83
48.74 38.10
27.03 20.94
27.03 20.94




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3 1,2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

22. Equity share capital
22.A Share capital authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particul
SEESUSES No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised
Equity Shares of Z 10 each 9,00,00,000 900.00 9,00,00,000 900.00
Issued, Subscribed And Fully Paid Up
Equity Shares of Z 10 each 7,88.08.353 788.08 7,12,03,790 712.04

22.B Reconciliations of the number of equity shares and share capital

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 7.12,03,790 712.04 7.12,03,790 712.04
Prior period - - - -
Shares Issued during the year 76.,04,563 76.04 - -
Shares issued for Split of face value - - - -
Bonus Shares [ssued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 7.88.,08,353 788.08 7.12,03,790 712.04

22.C Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

i The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of 210/-

share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.

ii In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares

per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

i During the year ended March 31, 2024 the amount of dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was 2 Nil (Previous year : T Nil)

22.D Shareholder holding more than 5% of equity shares as at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding
i Capri Global Capital Limited (Holding Company) 7,88,08,353 100.00% 7.12,03,790 100.00%
22.E Details of shares held by promoters
N Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
0. No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding

Bodies Corporate

1 Capri Global Capital Limited 7.88,08,353  100.00% 7,12,03,790 100.00%
(Holding Company)
Total 7.88.08,353  100.00% 7,12,03.790 100.00%

22.F Objective for managing capital:

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is m
the local regulator, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Com

issued by RBL

There are no shares reserved for issue under options, contracts, commitments for the sale of shares or divestments.
There are no shares in the preceding 5 years allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash/bonus shares/ bought back.

V. 2

—

eeting the capital adequacy requirements of
pany’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

23. Other equity

Particulars A5 AL At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act
(Taken into account for Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987)
Opening balance as at beginning of the year 409.69 244.70
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 143.40 164.99
Add/Less: Other changes - -
Closing balance 553.09 409.69
b) Securities Premium
Opening balance as at beginning of the vear 2,537.96 2,537.96
Add: Changes during the period 1.923.96 -
Closing balance 4.461.92 2,537.96
¢) General reserve
Opening balance as at beginning of the year - -
Add: Changes during the period 2.85 -
Closing balance 2.85 -
d) OCI Reserve
Opening balance as at beginning of the year (13.52) (1.75)
Add: Changes during the period (7.11) (11.77)
Closing balance (20.63) (13.52)
) Retained earnings (Surplus in profit & loss account)

Opening balance as at beginning of the year 1,542.66 1,087.18
Add: Profit for the period 716.99 620.47
Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund under Section 45 I C(1) of Reserve Bank of India Act.1934 (143.40) (164.99)
Add/ Less: other adjustments - =

Balance before dividend and other adjustments 2,116.25 1,542.66
Less: Dividend paid & other adjustments - -

Closing balance 2,116.25 1,542.66

Total 7,113.48 4.476.79

W-
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(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

24.

26.

27.

28.

29,

Particulars

Interest income

On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost *
a) Interest on Loans

b) Interest income from investments

¢) Interest on deposits with banks

d) Interest on Others

Total
* - As per effective interest rate - Refer Note No. - 2.03.1

. Fee and commission income

a) Application fees

Total

Net gain on fair value change

a) Profit/(loss) at FVTPL on Trading portfolio - investment in shares
b) Profit/(loss) on Trading portfolio - Mutual Fund & Bonds

Total Net Gain / (loss)
Total Gain (Net)
Total Loss (Net)

Of the above
Realised
Unrealised

Total

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

a) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments
b) Gain/(loss) on sale of investments not designated at fair value

Total

Other operating income

a) Other Charges
b) Legal charges received
c) Other operating revenue

Total

Other income

a) Credit balance / Provision no longer required written back
b) Profit on sale of Investment Property

¢) Service fees income from related parties

d) Other income

Total

For year ended

For year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3,905.15 2,672.87
49.06 69.38
57.74 26.00
1.27 0.94
4,013.22 2,769.19
49.75 46.10
49.75 46.10
59.70 4.46
79.18 105.55
138.88 110.01
138.88 110.01
149.25 96.22
(10.37) 13.79
138.88 110.01
23993 33.56

13:57 -
253.50 33.56
107.69 72.12
2512 20.19
5.46 1.41
138.27 93.72
0.22 0.38
= 6.30
8533 56.05
4.45 1.44
90.00 64.17
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Particulars For year ended For year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
30. Finance costs

On Financials Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

a) Interest on Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,139.14 1,466.54
b) Interest - Lease liabilities 19.48 13.26
Total 2,158.62 1,479.80

31. Impairment on financial instruments

a) Impairment on Loans

1) At amortised cost 121.08 65.80
b) Impairment on Undrawn commitments (4.87) (10.55)
c) Write off of Loans 88.80 98.77
Total 205.01 154.02

32. Employee benefits expenses

a) Salaries and wages 1.031.67 456.40
b) Contribution to Provident fund and other funds

i) Contribution to Provident fund and funds other than gratuity 53.26 18.33

ii) Contribution to Gratuity 5.70 2.81

d) Share Based Payments to employees 15.07 19.84

e) Staff welfare expenses 9.10 13.14

Total 1,114.80 510.52

34. Others expenses

a) Advertising - 395
b) Auditors' Remuneration (Refer note 34.A) 229 1.05
¢) Banking charges 14.27 9.21
d) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note 34.8) 11.40 8.45
€) Directors' Fees and Commission 341 245
f)  Electricity Charges 12.06 8.22
g) Filing & Other Fees to ROC - 0.05
h) Legal and Professional Expenses 123.15 100.91
i) Loss On Sale of Fixed Assets 0.13 0.26
1) Miscellaneous Expenses 47.68 24.37
k) Postage, Telephone and Fax 19.26 11.47
1) Printing and Stationery 16.59 6.16
m) Rent (Refer note - 45) 593 6.19
n) Service fees 44.44 44.44
0) Software Expenses 32.95 12.30
p) Travelling and Conveyance 74.48 28.96
q) Write off - Fixed Assets 0.14 1.19
Total 408.18 269.63

-
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Particulars For year ended For year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
34.A Auditors' Remuneration

a) For Audit 0.22 0.25
b) For Tax Audit 0.08 0.08
¢) For Limited Review 0.13 0.16
d) For other services (Certification Fees) 1.85 0.48

e) For reimbursement of expenses 0.01 -
f) GST Expense - 0.09
2:29 1.06

34.B Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Amount of CSR spent by Company during the year is for purposes other than construction / acquisition of any asset. Gross amount of CSR
required to be spent by the Company for the year aggregates to Rs. 11 4 million (Previous year Rs. 8.45 million)

1) Amount required to be spent during the year 11.40 8.45
i)  Amount spent during the year
a) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
b) On purposes other than (a) above 11.40 8.45
iii)) Amount offset against CSR Liability - -

iv)  Amount of shortfall at the end of the year, out of the amount required to be spent - -
during the year

V) Amount spent from unspent CSR A/c during the financial year - -
vi) Total of previous year shortfall - -
vii) Nature of CSR activities Refer note 1 below Refer note 1 below
vii) Details of related party transactions - -

Notes:
1 Nature of CSR activities
Women Empowerment, Livelihood Initiative, Education Initiative, Health Initiative and Animal Welfare,

34.C Details of Crypto currency or Virtual currency
Not applicable

s
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35. Earning per Share (Ind AS -33)
Particulars

A. Basic Earnings per Share

a)  Profit after tax attributable to equity sharcholders

b)  Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (No.s)
¢)  Nominal value of equity shares (%)

d) Basic earnings per share (EPS) (%)

B. Diluted Earnings per Share

a)  Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for diluted EPS

b)  Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS (No.s)
¢)  Nominal value of equity shares (%)

d)  Diluted earnings per share (EPS) (3)

C. No. of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS

Add : Equity shares for no consideration arising on grant of stock options under ESOP

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS
36. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Income Tax matters under dispute

37. Capital and Other Commitments

i)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
1i) Other Commitments- Pending disbursements of sanctioned loans

For the year ended March 31,

2024

716.99
7,54,12.343
10.00

9.51

716.99
7.54,12.343
10.00

9.51

7.54,12,343

7,54,12,343

2023

620.47
7,12,03,790
10.00

8.71

620.47
7.12,03,790
10.00

8.71

7.12,03,790

7,12,03,790

As at March 31,

2024
3.16

2023
221

As at March 31,

2024

4348
1,705.63

2023

51.30
3.115.90

38. There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

39. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision is required for the foreseeable losses.

40. Segment reporting (Ind AS 108)

The Company operates mainly in the business segment of fund based financing activity. All other activities revolve around the main business.
Further, all activities are carried out within India. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on

‘Operating Segments’.

41. Details of loans given, investments made and guarantee given covered u/s 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013
The Company has not provided loan, investments and guarantee to parties covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013.

V2

—
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42 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

42.A Income Tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Income-tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss

Current income tax:
i) Current income tax expense
i) (Excess)/ Short provision for tax relating to prior years
Total

Deferred tax (benefit) / charge

Total Income tax expense recognised relating to continous operations

42.B Reconciliation of income tax expense for the year:

For the year ended March 31,

2024 2023
213.83 178.09
(2.43) (14.46)
211.40 163.63
(21.59) (10.81)
189.81 152.82

A reconciliation of income-tax expense applicable to profit before income-tax at statutory rate to income-tax expense at the Company's

effective income-tax rate for the year ended March 31 is as follows :

Particulars

Profit before tax

Total tax expense (As per Statement of Profit and loss)
i) Current tax
ii) Deferred tax

Total Tax Expenses

Effective tax rate (%)
Adjustments of allowable and non-allowable income and expenses:

Effect on Effective Tax rate due to Permanent Difference
a) non-deductible expenses
b) Income considered separately and other allowable deductions
¢) Deduction under Chapter VI A

Total (A)

a) Capital Gain on sale of shares, mutual funds, interest etc
b) Capital Gain on sale of bonds

Total (B)

Total of items affecting tax rate (A+B)

42.C Reconciliation of income tax rate is as follows:

a) Normal Tax Rate
b) Surcharge (@ 10% of Normal Tax Rate)
¢) Health and Education Cess

Total Tax Rate (%)

Effect in Tax rate due to permenant difference
Difference due to Tax Rate of STCG

Effecttive Tax Rate (%)

st

For the year ended March 31,

2024 2023
906.80 773.29
213.83 178.09
(21.59) (10.81)
192.24 167.28

21.20 21.63
13.18 9.30
(128.28) (114.62)
(7.70) (1.81)

(122.80) (107.13)
(59.70) (4.46)
(13.57)

(73.27) (4.46)

(196.07) (111.59)

22.00 22.00
220 2.20
0.97 0.97

25.17 2517

(3.41) (3.49)

(0.56) (0.06)

21.20 21.63
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43 Movement in Deferred Taxes

A. Movement in deferred tax balances For the year ended March 31,2024

As at March 31,
Particulars As at March 31

Recognised in

Recognised in

As at March 31,

2023 profit or loss OCI 2024

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
a) Difference between WDV as per books and tax books 4.53 1.39 - 5.92
b) Impairment allowance for financial assets 93.71 27.04 - 120.75
¢) Provision for Employee benefits 6.19 6.61 - 12.80
d) Amortised Fees Income 0.53 (0.53) - -
e) ECL on Interest on NPA 11.43 8.51 - 19.94
f) Others (net) 4.01 1.81 - 5.82
2) Amortised Finance Cost (0.39) 0.24 - (0.15)
h) Unrealised gain on Financial Instruments at FVTPL (0.90) 2.61 - 1.71
i) Gain on derecognition of financial instruments (8.12) (23.87) - (31.99)

Total 110.99 23.81 - 134.80

B. Movement in deferred tax balances For the year ended March 31, 2023

As at April 01,

Pt Recognised in Recognised in As at March 31,
2022 profit or loss OCI 2023
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
a) Difference between WDV as per books and tax books 3.98 0.55 - 4.53
b) Impairment allowance for financial assets 61.40 3231 - 93.71
¢) Provision for Employee benefits 2.93 3.26 - 6.19
d) Amortised Fees Income 1.41 (0.88) - 0.53
e) ECL on Interest on NPA - 11.43 - 11.43
f) Others (net) 2.10 1.91 - 4.01
g) Amortised Finance Cost (0.74) 0.35 - (0.39)
h) Unrealised gain on Financial Instruments at FVTPL 257 (3.47) - (0.90)
i) Gain on derecognition of financial instruments - (8.12) - (8.12)
Total 73.65 37.34 - 110.99
Notes:

1 *As per Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, on derecognition of loans, the Company recognise difference between the carrying amount
(measured at the date of derecognition) and consideration received (including new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) as gain
in Statement of profit and loss account. Such gain recognised on derecognition of loans is not a real income as per Income tax Act,
1961, hence is offered to tax over the tenure of loans. Accordingly, deferred tax liability has been created on the Spread receivable on

assigned portfolio (Co-lending portfolio).

2 Deferred Tax assets created on account of past years tax adjustments has been shown and adj

earlier vears.

e

usted against tax expenses provided for
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44,
44.A

44.B

Employee benefits - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'
Defined contribution plans

The Company’s state governed provident fund scheme are defined contribution plan for its employees. The Contribution by the employer
and employee together with interest accumulated there on are payable to the employee at the time of separation from company or retirement
whichever is earlier. The benefit vests immediately on rendering of services by the employee.

For the year ended March 31,

2024 2023
i) Employer's contribution to provident fund 4961 16.72
1) Employer's contribution to National Pension Scheme 0.66 046

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The Company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for its
employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits
provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at separation/retirement. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed
by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible
for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

a) Principal assumptions used for the actuarial valuations are as follows: As at March 31
2024 2023
Discount Rate 714 %pa. 720%pa.
Rate of return on plan assets 7.14 % p.a. 720%p.a.
Salary Escalation 850%pa. 850%p.a.
Attrition Rate
For service 4 years and below 35.00% 35.00%
For service 5 years and above 20.00% 20.00%
Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Mortality

2012-14 (Urban)

b) The following table sets out the status of the Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan as per the actuarial valuation by the independent Actuary
appointed by the Company:-

Change in present value of defined benefit obligations: For the year ended March 31,
2024 2023

Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 18.55 10.58
Current service cost 5.07 2.65
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 1.34 0.60

Actuarial (gains) / losses - -
arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (1.88)
ansing from changes in financial assumptions 0.07 1.44
arising from changes in experience adjustments 4.03 6.55
Benefits paid from plan assets (1.94) (1.39)
Net transfer in / (out) (and effect of any business combinations/ divestures/transfers) - -
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 27.12 18.55
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 9.87 7.79
Interest income 0.71 0.44
Return on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net Interest expense) 0.14 0.13
Employer’s contributions 8.71 290

Transfer in/(out) of assets - N
Net transfer in / (out) (and effect of any business combinations/ divestures/transfers) - =

Benefits paid (1.94) (1.39)

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 17.49 9.87
¢) Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of: As at March 31
2024 2023

Present value of defined benefit obligation 27.12 18.55
Fair value of plan assets 17.49 9.87
Funded status (Surplus / (Deficit)) 963 8.68
Net liability / (assets) recognised in balance sheet 9.63 8.68

o
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d) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows: For the year ended March 31,
2024 2023
Service Cost
Current service cost 5.07 265
Past service cost - -
Total Service cost (1) 5.07 2.65
Net interest cost
Interest expense on DBO 1.34 0.60
Interest (income) on plan assets (0.71) (0.44)
Total Interest cost (ii) 0.63 0.16
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and Loss (iii) = (i+ii) 5.70 2.81
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on defined benefit obligation
Due to changes in demographic assumptions - (1.88)
Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.07 1.44
Due to changes in experience adjustments 4.03 6.55
Return on plan assets (excl. interest income) (0.14) (0.13)
Total remeasurement in other comprehensive income (OCI) (iv) 3.96 5.98
Total Defined benefit cost included in Statement of P&L and OCI (v) = (iii + iv) 9.66 8.79
¢) The fair value of the plan assets for India are as follows: As at March 31,
2024 2023
a) Insurer managed funds 17.49 9.77
b) Cash and Cash Equivalents - 0.1
f) Maturity Analysis of benefit payments As at March 31,
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 2024 2023
Ist Following Year 394 2.67
2nd Following Year 3.63 2.80
3rd Following Year 358 252
4th Following Year 3 239
5th Following Year 346 245
Sum of Years 6 To 10 11.51 7.66
Sum of Years 11 and above 971 6.50
Code of security
The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and
rules there under. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on 13 November 2020, and has
invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess
the impact, if any, and account for the same once the rules are notified and become effective.
The estimates of future salary growth, factored in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. Such estimates are very long term and are not based on limited past
experience / immediate future. Empirical evidence also suggests that in very long term, consistent high salary growth rates are not
possible. The said estimates and assumptions have been relied upon by the auditors.
f) Sensitivity analysis For the year ended March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% increase 1% decrease 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation
1) Discount Rate (1.14) (0.76) 1.25 0.83
i1) Future Salary Increases 1.22 0.82 (1.13) (0.76)
iii) Employee Turnover (0.35) (0.20) 036 0.21
Note :

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected
benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

e
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45. Leases

A.

B.

C.

A contract is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The details of Right to use Asset of the company are as follows:

Asset Class Leasehold Property
As at March 31,
2024 2023

Balance as at beginning of the year (Net) 154.77 46.83

Add: Additions during the year 85.73 141.91

Less: Deductions during the year on account of modification / termination of (18.33) (6.46)

leases

Less: Depreciation (38.89) (27.51)
Closing Balance as at March 31 183.26 154.77

D Following is the movement in lease liabilities for the period

E.

Balance as at beginning of the year 158.50 51.99
Add: Additions / modification during the year 83.20 134.23
Less: Deductions / modification during the year (19.79) (7.81)
Add: Interest Expense 19.48 13.26
Less: Lease Payments 47.07) (33.17)

Closing Balance as at March 31 194.32 158.50

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis

Tenure 2024 2023
Less than 1 year 51.26 41.29
1-3 years 93.52 73.83
3-5 years 59.36 54.12
More than 5 years 57.93 57.58
Total 262.07 226.82

F. Right-of-use Assets and Lease liabilities related expenses booked in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended March 31,

2024 2023
a. Depreciation on Right-of-use Assets 38.89 27:51
b. Interest on Lease liabilities 19.48 13.26
Total 58.37 40.77
G. Short term Leases (in Statement of Profit and Loss) For the year ended March 31,
2024 2023
i) Office premises / Branch offices 5.93 6.19
Total 5.93 6.19

Notes:
The entity has adequate liquidity for payment of lease liabilities. The Company regularly monitor and pays lease rentals on timely manner
as per the terms of respective leave and license agreement.

The Company has right to extend lease term as per mutually agreed terms laid down in respective leave and license agreement. The
Company takes into account effect of extended lease term while recording the lease assets and lease liabilities accordingly.
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46.
46.A

Credit Risk
Individual Loans

46.A.1 Credit quality of assets

46.A.2

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Stage | Stage I1 Stage III Total
Internal rating grade *
Performing
High grade 36,390.00 - - 36,390.00
Standard grade 849.73 - - 849,73
Sub-standard grade - 569.80 - 569.80
Past due but not impaired - 489.15 - 489.15
Restructured - 92.84 - 92.84
Credit Impaired - - - -
Non Performing
Individually impaired = S 464.29 464.29
Gross exposure (A) 37,239.73 1,151.79 464.29 38,855.81
Less: ECL (B) 106.24 185.44 204.45 496.13
Net exposure (C)=(A-B) 37,133.49 966.35 259.84 38,359.68
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Stage | Stage I1 Stage I1I Total
Internal rating grade *
Performing
High grade 24.213.99 - - 24,213,99
Standard grade 662.93 - - 662,93
Sub-standard grade - 84188 - 841.88
Past due but not impaired - - - -
Restructured - 104.99 - 104.99
Credit Impaired - - - -
Non Performing
Individually impaired - - 324.46 324.46
Gross exposure (A) 24,876.92 946.87 324.46 26,148.25
Less: ECL (B) 8297 155.97 126.54 365.48
Net exposure C)=(A-B) 24,793.95 790.90 197.92 25,782.77
(Read above note with Note no. 59.40.C.)
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount (excluding interest) and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to lending is, as follows:
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Stage [ Stage II Stage 111 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 24,876.90 946.87 324.48 26,148.25
New Assets Originated or Purchased 17,313.15 26.71 1.21 17.341.07
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (4.342.21) (99.11) (81.46) (4,522.78)
Transfer to Stage | 23025 (198.08) (32.17) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (620.80) 629.21 (842) (0.01)
Transfer to Stage 3 (202.82) (135.59) 338.41 -
Amounts written off * (14.78) (18.23) (77.75) (110.76)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 37,239.69 1,151.78 464.30 38,855.77

* The amount written off are subject to enforcement of collaterals and other legal remedies that are available to the company.

L
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46.
46.A

Credit Risk
Individual Loans

46.A.2  As at March 31, 2023

46.A.3

Particulars

Stage | Stage IT Stage 111 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 16,114.74 1,096.90 261.94 17,473.58
New Assets Originated or Purchased 11,819.52 5591 3.74 11,879.17
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (2,982.21) (59.40) (51.10) (3,092.71)
Transfer to Stage 1 411.14 (361.07) (50.07) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (367.99) 370.37 (2.38) (0.00)
Transfer to Stage 3 (110.84) (137.26) 248.10 -
Amounts written off * (7.46) (18.58) (85.75) (111.79)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 24,876.90 946.87 324.48 26,148.25
* The amount written off are subject to enforcement of collaterals and other legal remedies that are available to the company.
Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Stage I Stage 11 Stage I11 Total
ECL Allowance - Opening Balance 82.96 155.98 126.54 365.48
New Assets Originated or Purchased 37179 3.29 0.43 40.89
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (7.33) (1.67) 15.02 6.02
Transfer to Stage | 240 (3L51) (12.39) (41.50)
Transfer to Stage 2 (6.27) 87.87 (3.28) 78.32
Transfer to Stage 3 (2.34) (20.36) 132:77 110.07
Other movements (on account of change in EAD) = - - 3
Amounts written off (0.36) (8.15) (54.64) (63.15)
ECL Allowance - Closing Balance 106.23 185.45 204.45 496.13
As at March 31, 2023
Stage | Stage I1 Stage 111 Total
ECL Allowance - Opening Balance 80.29 141.28 77.84 299.41
New Assets Originated or Purchased 4233 27.72 8.65 78.70
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (40.79) (2.13) 110 (41.82)
Transfer to Stage 1 4.59 (39.79) (14.38) (49.58)
Transfer to Stage 2 (2.34) 60.90 (0.68) 57.88
Transfer to Stage 3 (0.89) (24.00) 93.19 68.30
Other movements (on account of change in EAD) ) . 5 -
Amounts written off (0.23) (8.00) (39.18) (47.41)
ECL Allowance - Closing Balance 82.96 155.98 126.54 365.48
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

46.
46.B

46.B.1

46.B.2

46.B.2

Credit Risk
Individual Loans - POCI

Credit quality of assets

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Stage [

Stage II

Stage 11

Total

Internal rating grade *
Performing
High grade
Standard grade
Sub-standard grade
Past due but not impaired
Restructured
Credit Impaired
Non Performing
Individually impaired

45.20

Gross exposure (A)
Less: ECL (B)

4.78
0.08

45.20
(9.16)

Net exposure (C)=(A-B)

4.70

54.36

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Stage I

Stage I1

Stage II1

Total

Internal rating grade *
Performing
High grade
Standard grade
Sub-standard grade
Past due but not impaired
Restructured
Credit Impaired
Non Performing
Individually impaired

Gross exposure (A)
Less: ECL (B)

43.55
(0.27)

43.55
(0.27)

Net exposure (C)=(A-B)

43.82

43.82

(Read above note with Note no. 59.40.C.)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount (excluding interest) and the corr

follows:

As at March 31, 2024

ding ECL all

in relation to lending is, as

Particulars

Stage |

Stage I1

Stage 111

Total

Gross carrying amount opening balance

New Assets Originated or Purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs)
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Amounts written off *

18.84
0.53
(3.53)
1.44

(12.50)

24.71
(7.94)
(1.44)

(15.34)

24.67
(7.31)
15.34
12.50

43.55
25,20
(18.78)

Gross carrying amount closing balance

4.78

(0.01)

45.20

49.97

* The amount written off are subject to enforcement of collaterals and other legal remedies that are available to the company.

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Stage |

Stage 11

Stage IT1

Total

Gross carrying amount opening balance

New Assets Originated or Purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs)
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Amounts written off *

Gross carrying amount closing balance

18.84

24.71

* The amount written off are subject to enforcement of collaterals and other legal remedies that are available to the company.
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Capri

Global Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

46.
46.B

46.B.3

Credit Risk
Individual Loans - POCI

Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Stage |

Stage 11

Stage I11

Total

ECL Allowance - Opening Balance
New Assets Originated or Purchased

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs)

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Other movements (on account of change in EAD)
Amounts written off

(0.27)

0.08

(3.44)

(0.27)
(3.06)

(0.04)

(0.18)

(5.54)

ECL Allowance - Closing Balance

0.08

(9.09)

As at March 31, 2023

Stage |

Stage II

Stage I11

Total

ECL Allowance - Opening Balance
New Assets Originated or Purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs)

Transfer to Stage |

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Other movements (on account of change in EAD)
Amounts written off

(0.27)

ECL Allowance - Closing Balance

(0.27)

(0.27)

46.B.4

#Internal rating grades are classified on below basis

Grade

Classification Basis

Stage

High grade

Standard grade
Sub-standard grade

Past due but not impaired
Restructured

Credit Impaired

Individually impaired

0DPD

1-30 DPD

31-60 DPD

61-90 DPD

0 DPD & Restructured
POCI Loans

>90 DPD & Restructured

Stage 1
Stage |
Stage 2
Stage 2
Stage 2
Stage | & 2

Stage 3

46.B.5

46.B.6

Note - Higher grade has been considered for Customers having 2 or more loans based on the highest DP

Details of collateral received against loan portfolio :

Nature of security against advances :

Underline securities for the assets secured by tangible assets - Property & book debts

Advances (LTV band wise) :

D

LTV ratio

Gross carrying
amount of advances

Cumulative loss
allowance

<=50%

>50% <= 70%
>70% <=90%
>90% <=100%

12,583.08
11,523.58
14,799.11

134 44
107.13
24428

46.B.7

* Includes POCT Assets

Credit impaired advances (LTV band wise) :

LTV ratio

Gross carrying
amount of advances

Cumulative loss
allowance

<=50%
>50% <=T70%
>70% <=90%

>90% <=100%

139.60
114.28
255.60

43.90
33.04
117.73
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currengy  [ndian Rupees in millions}

47, Maturity analysis of assets 2nd liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to

customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment as used for estimating the EIR.

be recovered or setfled. They have been classified (0 mature and or be repaid within 12 months With tegards to loans and advances o

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
ASSETS Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 moenths After 12 months ‘Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,227 82 - 422782 31862 . 318.02
Bank Balanccs other than cash and cash equivalents - 211 14 21114 8169 119.13 20082
Derivative financial instruments 9.82 - 9.82 - - -
Receivables 478 - 478 214 - 214
[.oans 2,399 81 3557171 37,97 52 74710 2471119 25158 29
Investments 1,559.54 3729 1,596.83 1,149 93 65548 1,805 41
Other financial Asseis 89128 73.16 162,44 1083 34.67 7550
Total Financial Assets 8,291.05 35,893.30 44,184.35 2,340.31 25,520.47 27,860,78
Non-Financial assets
Current Tax Assets {Net) 1928 - 1928 529 - 529
Deferred tax assets (Net) - 134 80 134.80 - 110,99 11049
Property, plant and equipment - 214.08 214.08 - 18225 18225
[ntangible Assets Linder Development 9994 - 9694 7433 - 7433
Other intangible assets - 88.01 8801 . 1579 15.79
Other non-financyal assels 76.93 281 76.74 1782 3.29 21,11
Total Non financial Assets 196.15 439,70 635.85 97.44 312.32 409.76
Total Assets 8,487.20 36,333.00 44,820.20 243775 25,832.79 18,270.54
LIABILITEES N
Financial Liabilitics
Dervative financial instruments - - - 17.67 - 1707
Payables
-Trade Payables 262.56 - 262.56 12199 - 12199
-Other Payables 19.56 - 19.56 39907 - Q07
Debt Secunties - N - - - -
Borrowngs (Other than debt secuntics) 6,501 71 26,1309 32.632.62 4,108 82 17,120.31 2122913
Other financial liabilities - 3,925 33 3.925.33 1.434 66 173.03 1,607.69
‘Total Financial Liabilities 5,783.83 30,056.24 36,840.07 5,722.21 17,293.34 23,015.58
Mon-Financial Liabi
Current tax hability 280 - 280 712 - 712
Provisions 2421 24 53 48.74 2503 1507 3810
Qther Non Financials [iabilifics 2703 - 27.03 2094 " 20.94
Total Non-Financial Liabilities 54.04 24.53 78.57 55.09 i5.07 66,16
‘Total Liabilities 6,837.87 30,080.77 36,918.64 5,773.30 17,308.41 23,081.71
Net Assets 1,64%.33 6,252.23 7.901.56 (3,335.55) 8,524.38 5,188.83

Classification of assets and liabilities under the mawnty buckets 15 based on the same estimates and assumplions as used by the Company for cempiling the return submitted 1o the RBI The above is based on the jo

company which has been relied upan by the auditors
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Cuapri Global Housing Finunee Limited
Noutes W D fuaneial taterwnts bor e year sided Rarch 31, 2024

Currency Iindian Rupees m malhors)

48, Caphlat Management
The Cempaey < capial imanagement s wdeled o cedte s alue foe Sardwilders by facilitating the meetmg of long-tem and <hartaerm geals of He Compars Tl Compan
\etermites the amour of capnal requened cnt the besss of aaal spemirg plas and clher sialege onesenent plaw The [axdng seguranens o ary wilt b met Iheorglh
bank horriavings and erputy (o the reed acse

The prumary objectnes of the Company s capital manesgement pohicy are to ewure that te *Compaly cotrplus witl externally mposed caputal Fequerements axd maurisns
strong credil rabngs aisd lealtiy capital ratos 1 order to support s businem aid W maxsnsse shareholders vaiue The Company marsges its capilal stsetine ard wakes
adjusiients W 1 secordig o dumaes i econuue condlions mid e reh daactastes of s activites Capital Marapenmen Paliey. olrectives anl processs are under
Qutlstad res tew by U Loard

For details of Capital to Rusk Assets Rato (CRAR refer hoke s 59001

+3. Change in linbilities urisng from finuncing aclivitics

FY 2023-24 Sl April 0F, 2023 Caxh flows Other* As at Vlarch 31, 2024
Trehr Secruinies w N R .
Bortowmgs other tha debi securties N.2591% 11,3428 6621 32.632.62
Total liabilities Trom financing activities 2123013 11,343 28 61 2] e 31632 62
FY 202223 AsatApal 01,2022 Cash flows Others 6oL ;‘;:;““ it
Debt Secufies - E S -
TPramowngs atlier than deldt securiies 14578 35 6671 61 12083} 2122013
Tatal liabilities from linancing activities H,‘TSE 6,671 6l 20 E3) 21.229.13

*mcludes the effect of anortisanon of borrowing cost, mterest acorued vn borrmangs, comensation factor of lem ative wstrume ks

s0. Fair volue measurements
Faw valie s the prod that would be recuved £ sell an asset or pand (o tnasler & Dainlny 1 an orderdy wesacton e prinapal for mest sl antogeotst market al the
casarenen <ate under cuzent market condimons, tegardies of whetwr t poce s directly olsan able o extumated usg 2 v shution teckmgue
Ind AS 107 "Financial Tratnument - Disclosme” requmes classificanon of the valwaren method of financial instruments measured at farr value m the Balance Sheet. uing a
three level fan-value-tyerarchy (which reflect the signsficance of wputs used v the messunements 1 The tesrarchy gives te highest pnemo to uwneadiusted quoted prees in
active markets for 1demmical assets or habilities (Lavel | meanremenss) @xl lowest prionty b uobseevable gxputs (Level 3 measurements: The three bevels of the fair-s alwe-
lugrarchy wxder Ind AS 107 are desenbed below

£0.A  Fiosnciul ingtruments by category

S0.3-1 As at March 31, 2024

Particulnss FYTPL Amortised cost FVTOCT Total Carrying Value Fsir Value
Financiol ascets
Tiw estmenis
- hureal Guwls 1.843 35 - ] "853 35 1,333 %
- Pass Through Certilicates - 1348 - 118 =
Trade recenablas - s 154 -
her recenvahiey - 124 - E24 -
foams - TS - R i -
Denvatie fmancal wstmenia - - QR ag: -
Zash and cash equn akents - 422782 - 452782 “
Bank Balasioes ather then aborve - MINE - 2114 -
wither fimancial Asses - 16244 - tel 44 -
Total Mxancial ussels 1,353.35 £2,621.18 9.82 S 18435 1,855.35
Finonclal llabilities
Borrowngs (eeliding Dels Seeamityes) 32A2A2 - 1288062 5
Frade pas ables - ;|2 - 2R12 -
Nher financial habslites - 392833 - 12533 -
Total financtal Bubilities - 36,840.07 - 3684007
242 Asat March 31,2023
Particulars FYTPL Ansortived oot FVTOCT Totul { “arrying Value Fair Value
Finapcial nssets
T eguments
« Mtal funds 1063 74 - - 10637 §0OR3 Y
- Pass Throsgh Certiicates - 46 - A AT -
Teade recenables - 091 - 91 .
Other recevables - 1.23 - 122 -
Loamns - Z5A5R 05 - 25458 2% -
Cash and cash equn alents - EIE L - ApR 6 -
Bank Balances cllier thakabore - 200 82 - LY -
Uther Lusancl Assets - "3 . T8 S -
Total firancinl axsels 1,063.74 26.797.04 - 27 860.78

M‘"




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

- - 17.67 17.67 17.67
Borrowings (including Debt Securities) - 21,229.13 - 21,229.13 -
Trade payables - 161.06 - 161.06 -
Other financial liabilities - 1,607.69 - 1.607.69 -
Total financial liabilities - 22,997.88 17.67 23,015.55 17.67

50.B  Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows

underneath the table.

50.B.1 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

As at March 31, 2024 Carriias Amoen Fair Value Total
i Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Financial [nvestments at FVTPL
Listed equity investments - - - - -
Mutual funds 1,553.35 - 1,553.35 - 1,553.35
Financial Investments at FVTOCI
Derivative financial instruments 9.82 - 9.82 - 9.82
Total financial assets 1,563.17 - 1,563.17 - 1,563.17
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 Fair Value
< Carrying A Total
Eryig Aount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 i
Financial assets
Financial [nvestments at FVTPL
Listed equity investments - - - - -
Mutual funds 1.063.74 1,063.74 - - 1,063.74
Financial Investments at FVTOCI
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
Total financial assets 1,063.74 1,063.74 - - 1,063.74
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 17.67 - 17.67 - 17.67
Total financial liabilities 17.67 - 17.67 - 17.67
50.B.2 Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
As at March 31, 2024 " Fair Value
C ing A t T ir Val
arrying Amoun T Tevdld Tevals otal Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 422782 422782 - - 422782
Bank Balance other than above 211.14 211.14 - - 211.14
Trade Receivable 3.54 - - 3.54 3.54
Loans
Loans to employees 0.17 - - 0.17 0.17
Loans 37.971.35 - - 38,709.79 38,709.79
Investments
Pass Through Certificates 43.48 - - 4348 43.48
Other financial assets 162.44 - - 162.44 162.44
Total financial assets 42,619.94 4,438.96 - 38,919.42 43,358.38
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable 282.12 - - 282.12 282.12
Debt Securities - - = a2 =
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 32,632.62 - - 32,632.62 32,632.62
Other Financial Liabilities 3,92533 - - 3.925.33 3,925.33
Total financial liabilities 36,840.07 - - 36,840.07 36,840.07
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

As at March 31, 2023 3 Fair Value 5
C Amount Total Fair V.
Anying AR Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 gnlBairyaties
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 318.62 318.62 - - 31862
Bank Balance other than above 200.82 200.82 - - 200.82
Trade Receivable 0.91 - - 0.91 0.91
Loans
Loans to employees 0.39 - - 0.39 039
Loans 25,457.90 - - 25,603.82 25,603.82
Investments
Pass Through Certificates 741.67 - - 741.67 741.67
Other financial assets 75.50 - - 75.50 75.50
Total financial assets 26,795.81 519.44 - 26,422.29 26,941.73
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable 161.06 - - 161.06 161.06
Debt Secunties = R - = i
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 21,229.13 - - 21,229.13 21,229.13
Other Financial Liabilities 1.607.69 - - 1,607.69 1,607.69
Total financial liabilities 22,997.88 - - 22,997.88 22,997.88

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted
price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds
are valued using the closing NAV

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent
consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

Short-term financial assets and liabilities For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of
impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, balances other than cash and cash equivalents
and trade payables without a specific maturity

The company gives loan at floating rate with terms including the fixed interest rate for initial period. The fair value of these loans approximates the carrying amount.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

The Company's borrowings are at floating rates therefore fair value of these borrowings approximates the carrying values

o




Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

51.

SLA

51.A.1

Risk Disclosures

Company’s risk is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing
profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The
Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. It is the Company’s policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness
is embedded in its organisational risk culture.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual

obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties.

Impairment assessment

a) Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date including the undrawn commitments. EAD is taken as
the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor. The principal outstanding, overdue principal, accrued interest, overdue
interest less excess received from the customers is considered as EAD for the purpose of ECL computation.

The advances have been bifurcated into following three stages:

Stage 1 — All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk
at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all
standard advances and advances up to 0-30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk
has reduced and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2 — All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired
are classified under this stage. Financial assets past due for 31 to 90 days are classified under this stage. Stage 2 loans also include
facilities where the credit risk has reduced, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3 — All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than
the gross carrying amount. more than 90 days past due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

b) Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of
instruments is subject to 12 months ECL or lifetime ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk if contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.

¢) Definition of default and cure

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when
the borrower becomes more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may
indicate inability to pay. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not consider otherwise; or
d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

-~ s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)

51.

51.A.2

51.A.3

S1.B

Risk Disclosures

It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as “cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the borrower
makes necessary payments & the borrower is not 90 days past due after such payments. The decision whether to classify an asset as
Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure. and whether this indicates there has been a
significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition.

d) Probability of Default ("PD") estimation process
Probability of default (*PD”) is defined as the likelihood of default over a particular time horizon. The PD of an obligor is a
fundamental risk parameter in credit risk analysis and depends on obligor specific as well as macroeconomic risk factors.

e) Loss Given Default ("LGD")
Loss Given Default (“LGD™) is defined as the loss rate on the exposure, given the borrower has defaulted. LGD is being calculated for

all financial instruments under risk parameter approach by way of evaluation of historical data on defaults, recovery amounts, direct
expenses.

f) Forward looking information

In its EGL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such as. GDP growth,
Consumer Price Index, Unemployment rate, Lending Interest Rate etc The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not
always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this. qualitative adjustments or
overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

Analysis of risk concentration - Refer Note 59.16

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Company has Guidelines in
place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral. The Company also adheres to the NHB guidelines in respect of
maintenance of adequate Loan to Value Ratios.

The main types of collateral for home loans are mortgages over residential properties.

Management monitors the market value of collateral and requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement.

In case of defaults by customers, where the Company is unable to recover the dues, the Company through a legal process enforces the
security and recovers the dues.

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company
might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both
normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available to the
Company on acceptable terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy of
managing assets by monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a regular intervals.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with our Asset Liability Management Policy. This policy is framed as per the current
regulatory guidelines and is approved by the Board of Directors. The Asset Liability Management Policy is reviewed periodically to
incorporate changes as required by regulatory stipulation or to realign the policy with changes in the economic landscape. The Asset
Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Company formulates and reviews strategies and provides guidance for management of liquidity
risk within the framework laid out in the Asset Liability Management Policy.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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5L
5LB.1

51.C

51.C.1

Risk Disclosures

The table below summarises the maturi

As at March 31, 2024

ty profile of the undiscounted cash flow of the Company’s financial liabilities:

Other Financial

Debt Securities Borrowings Trade Payable Lease liability Libility
I upto 30/31 days - 252.85 282.12 4.30 3,672.26
2 Over | month upto 2 months - 239.98 - 4.30 -
3 Over 2 months upto 3 months - 838.30 - 429 58.77
4 Over 3 monthsto 6months - 1,692.75 - 12.83 -
5 Over 6 monthsto | year - 3,477.65 - 25.54 -
6 Over | yearto 3 vears - 11,775.28 - 93.52 -
7 Over 3 yearto 5 years - 8,791.85 - 59.36 -
8  Over 5 years - 5,563.97 - 57.93 -
Total - 32,632.63 282.12 262.07 3,731.03
As at March 31, 2023
Debt Securities Borrowings Trade Payable  Lease liability ~ Other Financial
Liability
1 upto 30/31 days - 29876 161.06 355 1,410 58
2 Over | month upto 2 months - 31828 - 351 -
3 Over 2 months upto 3 months - 627.36 . 3.51 3861
4 Over 3 monthsto 6months - 1,494.60 - 1041 -
5 Over 6 monthsto | year - 293117 - 2031 -
6  Over | yearto 3 years - 10,061 52 - 7383 -
7 Over 3 yearto 5 years - 6,647 31 - 54.12 -
8 Over 5 years - 3.813.02 - 57.58 -
Total - 26,192.02 161.06 226.82 1,449.19

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The
core business of the company is providing Housing Loans. The company borrows through various financial instruments to finance its core lending
activity. These activities expose the company to interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is measured through earnings at risk from an earnings perspective and through duration of equity from an economic value
perspective. Further, exposure to fluctuations in interest rates is also measured by way of gap analysis, providing a static view of the maturity and re-
pricing characteristic of Balance sheet positions. An interest rate sensitivity gap report is prepared by classifying all rate sensitive assets and rate
sensitive liabilities into various time period categories according to contracted/behavioural maturities or anticipated re-pricing date. The difference in
the amount of rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabilities maturing or being re-priced in any time period category, gives an indication of the
extent of exposure to the risk of potential changes in the margins on new or re-priced assets and liabilities. The interest rate risk is monitored through

above measures on a quarterly basis.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being considered as constant) of
the Company's statement of profit and loss and equity.

FY 2023-24
Increase / s
4 fi ri :
Financial Instruments Type  (decrease) in basis Se“s“:‘:? ;; i Sensitivity of equity
points (bps) g

a. Loans 50 bps Up 193.38 144 71
100 bps Up Impact on Profit 386.75 : 289.4]
50 bps Down before Tax (193.33) mpact on equity (144.71)
100 bps Down (386.75) (289.41)

b. Borrowings 50 bps Up (164.10) (122.80)
100 bps Up Impact on Profit (32821 i (245.60)
50 bps Down before Tax 164,00  1MPact on equity 122.80
100 bps Down 32821 245.60
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51.C.2 _FY 2022-23

51.D

51LE

Increase /

Sensitivity of profit
Financial Instruments Type (decrease) in basis itivity of pro

Sensitivity of equity

points (bps) ela

a. Loans 50 bps Up 130.21 9744
100 bps Up Impact on Profi 2043 , 194.88
40 b Dowi before Tax (130.21) mpacton equity (97.44)
100 bps Down (260.43) (194 88)

b. Borrowings 50 bps Up (106.60) (79.77)
100 bps Up i o B @119 _ (159.54)
50 bps Down before Tax 106,60 PAactonequity 79.77
100 bps Down 213.19 159.54

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to
eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential
risks. Controls include maker-checker controls, effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.

During the year, the Company has not come across any instances of fraud.
Capital Management :

Company’s capital management objective is primarily to safeguard business continuity. The Company’s capital raising policy is aligned to macro
economic situation and incidental risk factors. The Company’s cashflows are regularly monitored in sync with annual operating plans and long-term
and other strategic investment plans. The operational funding requirements are met through debt and operating cash flows generated. The company
believes this approach would create shareholder value in long run. Also, the company has adopted a conservative approach for ALM management
with primacy to adequate liquidity. At present a large portion of the company’s resource base is equity. Therefore the company enjoys a low gearing.

The Company maintains its capital structure in line with economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities and the board reviews the
capital position on a regular basis.

Gearing ratio :
The gearing ratio at each date were as follows :

Paitisilirs As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
a. Debt () * 32.826.92 21,387.62
b. Cash and bank balances (II) 4,227.82 318.62
c. Netdebt (I-1I) 28,599.10 21,069.00
d. Total equity 7.901.56 5,188.83
€. Net debt to equity ratio 3.62 4.06

* Debt includes debt securities, borrowings and lease liabilities.

2

—
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52,

52.A

52.B

Related Party Disclosure

List of Related parties

List of related parties and relationship with related parties where control exists or transactions have taken place during the year:

No. Name of the Related Party

Relationship

I Holding Company

Capri Global Capital Limited Holding Company

I Enterprises over which Management and/or their relatives have control

Capri Global Holdings Private Limited

Parshwanath Buildcon Priva

Il Key Management Personn
Mr. Rajesh Sharma
Mr. Partha Chakraborti
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka
Mr. T.R. Bajalia
Mr. Yashesh Bhatt

te Limited

el

Managing Director (Chief Financial Officer upto October 30, 2023)

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. October 31, 2023)
Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)
Independent Director (upto March 31, 2024)
Independent Director

Company Secretary

IV Trust under common control

Capri Foundation

CGHFL Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme

Transactions with Related parties during the year

No.  Nature of Transaction Relationship Name of Party For the year Ended March 31,
2024 2023
I.  Statement of Profit or loss items
1 Service fees income Holding Company Capri Global Capital Limited 86.55 51.60
2 Rent Paid Enterprises over which Capri Global Holding Private Limited - 0.14
management and/or their
relatives have control Parshwanath Buildcon Private Limited 0.15 0.21
3 Service Fees expenses Holding Company Capri Global Capital Limited 40.77 40.77
4 Short-term employment Key Management Personnel Mr. Rajesh Sharma 1.20 1.20
benefits
Mr. Yashesh Bhatt 1.00 -
Mr. Partha Chakraborti 1.67 -
5  Director Sitting Fees Key Management Personnel Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka 1.13 0.85
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani 1.05 0.80
Mr. T.R. Bajalia 0.15 0.60
Mr. S Ranganathan 0.80 -
6  Employee Benefits Trust under common control CGHFL Employees Group Gratuity 8.71 2.90

7  Donation - Corporate Social
Responsibility

Lt

—

Assurance Scheme

Trust under common control Capri Foundation
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52. Related Party Disclosure

No.  Nature of Transaction Relationship Name of Party For the year Ended March 31,
2024 2023

I1L. Balance Sheet Items (Transaction during year):
1 Issue of shares to Holding Company Capri Global Capital Limited 76.05 -

2 Stress Assets Acquired =
a) Consideration Paid Holding Company Capri Global Capital Limited 19.37 2344

b) Interest Paid Holding Company Capn Global Capital Limited - 1.04
3 Purchase of Investment Holding Company Capn Global Capital Limited - 361.86

Purchase of PTC units

52.C Closing balances with Related parties as at year end

Nature of Transaction Relationship Name of Party As at March 31,
2024 2023
1 Equity share capital Holding Company Capn Global Capital Limited 788.08 712.04
2 Other financial liabilties Holding Company Capri Global Capital Limited 1.47 1.61

53. Fraud Reporting

Particulars For the year Ended March 31,
2024 2023

Frauds reported by the Company based on management reporting to risk committee and to the > 2
RBI through prescribed returns.

54.  Details of all collateral used as security for liabilities

. Carrying amount of financial assets pledged as at
Particulars rrying ul ial a pledgy

March 31,
2024 2023
Assets type
2. Loans receivable as collateral under lending agreements 38,396.30 25.842.63
b.  Loans receivable as collateral under PTC agreements 4348 741.67
¢.  Receivables from investment in securities as collateral 1,55335 1,063.74
d.  Cash and other bank balance collateral under lending agreements 4.438.96 519.44

55. The Company believes that no impairment of assets arises during the year as required under IND AS 36 "Impairment of Assets”.

56.  In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are realizable in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount
at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

57. Employee Stock Option

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
a. Number of ESOPs granted by Capri Global Capital Ltd (Holding Company) to the employees of - -
the Company.
b. Amount of expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss for ESOP cost 15.07 19.84

e
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58.  Analytical Ratios

58.A Analytical Ratios as per Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notification dated 24th March 2021 on additional disclosure for Division III
to Schedule II1 are as below:

No. Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 202223 % Change  Notes
1 Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 30.51% 33.13% -7.9% a
2 Tier[ CRAR 30.07% 32.57% -7.7% b
3 Tier I CRAR 0.44% 0.56% -21.4% &
4 Liquidity Coverage Ratio NA NA NA
* Liquidity Coverage Ratio is not applicable to the Company
S8.B N, Ratios Numerator Denominator
I Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio Total Capital Funds Total risk weighted assets/ exposures
(CRAR)
2 Tier] CRAR Net Owned Fund Total risk weighted assets/ exposures
3 Tierl1 CRAR Aggregate Tier [l Capital Total risk weighted assets/ exposures
4 Liquidity Coverage Ratio Stock of High Quality Liquid Assets Total Cash Net Outflows over the next 30
calendar days.
- S
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59. Regulatory disclosures - RBI

The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 issued vide RBL/2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-2 1 dated February 17, 2021 amended from time to time and Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106

DoR.FIN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 as amended from time to time.

The additional disclosure notes required by the Reserve Bank of India (the 'RB') are prepared under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA). unless otherwise stated. Disclosures are provided in the currency in which financial statements are prepared.

59.01  Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
CRAR (%) 30.51% 33.13%
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 30.07% 32.57%
CRAR - Tier 11 Capital (%) 0.44% 0.56%
Amount of hybrid debt raised as tier I1 capital - Z
Amount of Subordinated debt raised as tier 11 capital - &
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -
59.02  Investments
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I) Value of Investment
(i) Gross value of investments
(a) InIndia 1,596.83 1.805.41
(b) Outside India - -
(ii) Provisions for depreciation
(a) InIndia - -
(b) Outside India = E
(iii) Net value of investments
(a) InIndia 1,596.83 1.805.41
(b) Outside India P -
II) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance x "
Add : Provisions made during the year - -
Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
Closing balance - =
59.03  Derivatives
59.03.1 Forward rate agr /interest rate swap
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1) The notional principal of swap agreements 484740 4,598.97
i)  Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the agreements - -
i) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps - NA
iv)  Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps* - NA
v)  The fair value of the swap book 9.82 17.67

* % of concentration of credit risk arising from swaps with banks

b

—
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59.
59.03.2

59.03.3

59.03.4

59.04
59.04.A

Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivatives (instrument wise)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year - -
a. Instrument a - .
b. Instrument b - *

ii)  Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding - =
a. Instrument a = 2
b. Instrument b s =

ii)  Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” - -
a. Instrument a - "
b. Instrument b N #

1v)  Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" - -
a. Instrument a - -
b. Instrument b - -

Discl es on risk exp e in derivatives

Qualitative disclosure

The company has to manage various risks associated with the lending business. These risks include liquidity risk, exchange risk, interest rate risk and counterparty
risk. The Financial Risk Management and Hedging Policy as approved by the Board sets limits for exposures on currency and other parameters. The Corporation
manages its interest rate and currency risk in accordance with the guidelines prescribed therein. Liquidity risk and Interest rate risks arising out of maturity mismatch
of assets and liabilities are managed through regular monitoring of maturity profiles. The currency risk on the borrowings is actively managed mainly through forward
contracts.

All derivative contracts are recognised on the balance sheet and measured at fair value. Hedge accounting is applied to all the derivative instruments as per IND AS
109. Gain / loss arising on account of fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent of ineffective portion of hedge instruments
and hedged items. The gains / losses of effective portion of hedge instrument are offset against gain / losses of hedged items in Other Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date, are recorded at fair value. The premium or discount arising at the inception of such forward
exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. The C. ompnany has entered into cashflow hedges to hedge currency risk on certain
foreign currency loans and to cover future interest on foreign currency borrowings.

Quantitative disclosure

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Currency Derivatives Interest Rate Currency Derivatives Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives

Derivatives (notional principal )

For hedging 4,847 40 - 4.598.97 -
Marked to market positions

Assets (+) 982 - = =
Liability (-) - - (17.67) -
Credit exposure = - & .
Unhedged exposures - - - -

Unhedged foreign currency exposures
There are no Unhedged foreign currency exposures as at Current year end. (Previoys year - Nil)

Asset liability management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities As at March 31, 2024

Al Assets
Loans Investments Deposits Forelgn Curtedey
Assets

I day to 7 days 022 - 750.60 -
8 day to 14 days 0.55 0.80 1,000.22 -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 1,364.50 1.553.35 = =
Over One months to 2 months 86.26 0.49 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 87.27 0.50 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 270.29 1.51 82.54 -
Over 6 months to | year 590.75 2.88 - -
Over | year to 3 years 2,929.99 10.89 - =
Over 3 years to 5 years 4,072.79 1147 118.70 =
Over 5 years 29,055.94 14.94 9.89 -

38;458.56 1,596.83 1,961.95 -

=
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59. Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Aii Liabilities
Borrowings and Debt : Foreign Currency
Securities Defosity Liabilities
1 day to 7 days - - -
8 day to 14 days - - -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 253.04 - -
Over One months to 2 months 239.98 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 838.30 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 1,692.75 - -
Over 6 months to | year 3,477.65 - -
Over | year to 3 years 11,775.28 . %
Over 3 years to 5 years 8.791.85 - =
Over 5 years 5.563.78 - -
32,632.63 - -
59.04.B Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities As at March 31,2023
B.i Assets
Loans Investments Deposits Forcign Currency
Assets
1 day to 7 days - 1,063.74 - -
8 day to 14 days - 6.53 - -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 59.67 - - -
Over One months to 2 months 59.67 6.52 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 67.38 6.58 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 179.00 20.16 - -
Over 6 months to | year 381.42 41.95 - -
Over | year to 3 years 1,757.46 163.94 - -
Over 3 years to 5 years 2,098.14 168.00 - -
Over 5 years 21,220.78 327.99 - -
25,823.52 1,805.41 - -
B.ii Liabilities
Borrowings and Debt Deposits Foreign Currency
Securities Liabilities
1 day to 7 days = = -
8 day to 14 days - - -
15 day to 30/31 days (One month) 160.86 - -
Over One months to 2 months 176.88 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 491.86 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 1,095.30 - -
Over 6 months to | year 2.202.87 - -
Over | year to 3 years 8.014.12 - -
Over 3 years to 5 years 5.671.41 - -
Over 5 years 341583 - -
21,229.13 - -

59.05  Details of financing of parent Company products:

Details of financing of parent Company products: Nil (Previous year : Nil)

59.06  Details of single borrower limit and borrower group limit exceeded by the Company:

During the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 the C

by the RBL

59.07 Unsecured advances

As at
March 31, 2024

ompany’s credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were within the limits prescribed

As at
March 31, 2023

i The exposure to unsecured advances : 0.17 0.39

The portfolio of Company include unsecured loans. Details of loans are provided in Note No. - 7
During the year, the Company has not given any advance against collateral of rights. licenses, authority, etc. (Previous year : Nil).

59.08  Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators (Financial regulators as described by Ministry of Finance):
i) Registration No with NHB : 07.139.16
ii) Ministry of Corporate Affairs

59.09  Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators- ¥ Nil (Previous year - ¥ Nil)

59.10  Details of transaction with non executive directors - ¥ Nil (Previous year - ¥ Nil)

&,
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59.

59.11

59.12

59.13

59.14

59.15

Regulatory disclosures - RBI

Non-Executive Directors have no pecuniary relationship with the Company, except receiving sitting fees for the meetings attended.

Provisions and contingencies

As at As at
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Breakup of provisions and contingencies shown under the head other expenses in the Statement of Profit and loss

Provision for depreciation on investments
Provision towards non-performing assets
Provision made towards income taxes
Provision for standard assets including restructured and others
Provision for other financial assets
Other Provision and Contingencies *
*Other provisions and contingencies
Provision for depreciation

Provision for gratuity expense
Provision for compensated absences

Break up of Loans & Advances in to Housing and Non Housi g & Provisions thereon

Housing Portfolio

68.74 51.15
189.81 152.82
53.09 4.10
98.77 64.36
78.49 4946

5.70 281
14.58 12.09

Non Housing Portfolio

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Standard Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount 26,430.46 21,258.64

b) Provisions made 235.38 199.48
Sub- Standard Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount 317.07 211.85

b) Provisions made 125.88 8239
Doubtful Assets — Category 1

a) Total Outstanding Amount 64,13 3758

b) Provisions made 35.84 14,80
Doubtful Assets — Category [1

a) Total Outstanding Amount 14.43 3232

b) Provisions made 11.40 12.72
Doubtful Assets — Category I11

a) Total Outstanding Amount 6.10 0.57

b) Provisions made 6.10 0.22
Loss Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount - -

b) Provisions made z =
Total

a) Total Outstanding Amount * 26,832.19 21,540.96
b) Provisions made 414.60 309.61

11,965.82 4,608.70
56.39 39.20
97.31 3338
10.91 1295

8.49 3.57
3.80 1.40
1.35 517
0.74 2.04
0.60 0.02
0.60 0.01

12,073.57 4,650.83

72.44 55.60

* Amount as per Note 7 is net off provision on ECL, Unamortised processing fees and other accounting adjustments as compared to above disclosure.

Draw down from reserves
During the current year the Company has not made any draw down from any reserve. (Previous year : Nil)

Intra-group exposures

1) Total amount of intra-group exposures
ii) Total amount of top 20 intra-group

i) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers
* - Exposure includes investment made in wholly owned subsidiary and other receivables there of

Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

As at March 31, 2024
Amount % of owned fund
Exposure to
i} any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business - 0.00%
i) all entities in a group engaged in real estate business - 0.00%

T

-

As at As at
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Amount

As at March 31, 2023
% of owned fund

- 0.00%

- 0.00%
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59, Regulatory disclosures - RBI

59.16

Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposures and NPA assels

A.

Concentration of Public Deposits

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

The disclosure of the concentration of public deposits taken is not applicable as the Company carries on the

business of a housing finance institution without accepting public deposits

Concentration of advances

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers

% of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances

. Concentration of exposures

Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / Customers

% of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / Customers to Total exposure on borrowers / customers

. Concentration of NPA Advances

Total Exposures to top ten NPA Assets

1,655.56
4.28%

1,702 84

422%

70.72

257.17
099%

271.00
093%

3863

E. Sector-wise NPA Assets % of NPA assets to Total Advances in that sector
Asal As at

Sectors March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Housing Loans

Individuals 1 50% 1.31%
Builders/Project loans Nil Nil
Corporates Nil Nil
Orhers Nil Nil
Non-Housing Loans
Individuals 089% 0.91%
Builders/Project loans Nil Nil
Corporates Nil Nil
Others Nil Nil
The amount of NPAs and advances considered while calculating the above percentages are excluding notional Ind AS adjustment
5§9.17  Rating assigned by credit rating agencies
Rating assigned Rating assigned ¥ 5
1 Rating A
Instruments March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Credit ing Agency Amoount
- Infi ics Valuati i { Limited
| Long Term Bank Facilities IVR AA/ Positive Nil Aloietion v bhstio s Rting Riiva) iné 36,000 00
(Assigned)
2 Bank Loan ACUITE AA Stable Nil Asaté Haings & Rescarch Liniited §.250 00
(Assigned)
CARE Rati imi
3 Long Term Bank Facilities CARE A+/Stable  CARE A+/ Stable ke Raings Limited 25,000.00
(Reaffirmed)
Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited
4 Term Loans BWR AA-/ Stable BWR AA-/ Stable (Reaffirmed, applied for withdrawal in Feb'24) 20.942.70
59.18  Movement in non-performing assets (NPAs)
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of Stage 3 assets net of provision (Also refer note 46)
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
(i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) (Net of provisions on NPA) 081% 0.76%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (gross)
(a) Opening balance 324 46 26194
(b) Additions during the year 37679 25183
(c) Reductions during the year (191.75) (18931)
(d) Closing balance 509.50 324.46
(iii) Movement of net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 197 92 182 42
(b) Additions during the year 2527 165 640
(c) Reductions during the year (136.46) (150.14)
(d) Closing balance 31422 197.92
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
(a) Opening Balance 126.54 79.52
(b) Additions during the year 124.03 86.19
(c) Wnte off/ write back of excess provision (55.29) (39.17)
(d) Closing balance 195.28 126.54

—_—
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59. Regulatory disclosures - RBI

59.19  Customer complaints

59.19.1 Summary information on complaints received by the HFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman (applicable in case included under The
Reserve Bank — Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021)

Faor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Complaints received by the HFC from its customers
i) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 5 0
ii) No. of complaints received during the year 137 182
1ii) Number of complaints disposed during the vear 137 177
a) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the HFC 61 65
iv) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 5 5
59.19.2 Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Ofice of Ombudsman
1) Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman Not applicable Not applicable
1) Of (i), number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman Not applicable Not applicable
1i1) Of (1), number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation’ advisones issued by Office of Not applicable Not applicable
Ombudsman
iv) Of (1), number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC Not applicable Not applicable
v) Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) Not applicable Not applicable
59.19.3 Top 5 Grounds of complaints received by NBFC from customers
March 31, 2024
) N voFcomplatais ) ) % increase/ de:re?se in ) ) i of ‘S, ,
Grounds of complaints, £ No. of complaints received the no. of c 1 No. of ¢ 1 pending no. of complaints pending
{i.e. complaints relating to) !M:n‘dmg b during the year received over the previous at the end of the year beyond 30
beginning of the year o ik
18] 2) 3) 4) 5 (6)
1)  Charges Related : Reversal / Warver 0 25 127.27% 2 (1]
i) Disbursement Related 2 23 21.05% 0 0
ii1) Documents Related 1 12 -20.00% 0 0
iv) Collection / Settlement 0 10 150.00% 1 Q
v) PMAY Subsidy Claim related 0 ] -70.00% 0 0
vi) Others 2 S8 -43.69% 2 0
Total 5 137 -24.73% 5 0
March 31, 2023
7 No. of complaints . ) Yo increase/ decrel;se in ) ) of .5. )
Grounds of complaints, . No. of complaints received the no. of compl No. of ¢ ! pending no. of complaints pending
(i.e. complaints relating to) |.3en.d|ng Akt during the year received over the previous at the end of the year beyond 30
beginning of the vear
vear days
(1) 2) 3) (4) (5) 6)
i) Charges Related : Reversal / Waiver 0 11 32.00% 0 0
it) Disbursement Related ] 19 -40.00% 0 0
i1) Documents Related 0 15 58.33% 2 0
iv) Collection / Settlement 0 4 114.29% 1 0
v) PMAY Subsidy Claim related 0 30 75.00% 0 0
vi) Others 0 103 91.89% 2 0
Total 0 182 30.94% 5 0

59.20 Divergence In Asset Classification And Provisioning
Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2021 issued vide RBI/2020-
21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-2 | dated February 17, 2021 amended from time to time and Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 issued vide RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October
19, 2023 as amended from time to time.

A.  The additional provisioning requirements assessed by RBI (or National Housing Bank(NHB) in the case of Housing Finance Companies) exceeds 5%
of the reported profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the reference period

Not applicable

59.21 Disclose of all instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.

There are no instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued during the current year as well as previous year.

—
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59, Regulatory disclosures - RBI

59.22 Disclosure on Frauds Pursuant to RBI Master Direction
The frauds detected and reported for the year amounted to  Nil million (Previous year Z Nil million )

59.23 Advances Against Intangible Securities

The Company has not given any loans against intangible securities.

59.24 Overseas Assets (For Those With Joint Ventures And Subsidiaries Abroad)

There are no overseas asset owned by the Company.

59.25  Off-Balance Sheet SPVs Sponsored
The Company has not sponsored any SPVs. Accordingly. the disclosure is not applicable

59.26 Net profit / loss for the year, prior period, changes in accounting policies
There are no prior period items and changes in accounting policies imapcting net profit for the year

59.27 Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition have not been postponed on account of pending resolution of significant uncertainties in respect of any revenue stream of the Company

59.28 C lidated Fi ial St ts (CFS)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture accordingly CFS is not applicable.

59.29  Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023

1 Directors and their relatives - "

5 Entities associated with directors and their relatives s <

3 Senior Officers and their relatives - -
59.30 Remuneration of Directors

Refer note 52 to the standalone financial statements.

59.31 Management
The annual report has a detailed chapter on Management Discussion and Analysis.

59.32 Details of dividend declared during the financial year
During the year, the Company has not declared dividend.

59.33 _Off balancesheet exposure

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023

a.  Undrawn commitments
Loan tenure less than one year = &
Loan tenure more than one year 5 -
b.  Leases entered but not executed - -

¢c. Others = -

59.34 Group Structure

Capri Global Capital Limited
(Holding Company)

100%

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

o
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59.35 Exposure

Disclosure Pursuant To Reserve Bank Of India Scale Based Regulation RBI/DoR/2023

-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 amended from

time to time.
59.35.1  Exposure to real estate sector
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Direct exposure - -
a) Residential mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. 36,279.36 25,458 85
(Exposure includes non-fund based (NFB) limits.)
b) Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, - -
multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure includes non-fund based ( NFB) limits.
c) Investments in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residential = -
- Commercial Real Estate - -
ii) Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 1,261.91 -
Total 37,541.27 25,458.85
= —_—
59.35.2  Exposure to capital market
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the - -
corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
1i) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares - -
(including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds
iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual - -
funds are taken as primary security.
iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds ie. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances.
v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers. - -
vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for - -
meeting promoter’s contribution to the €quity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources
vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -
x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:

Xii)

(i) Category |

(i1) Category II

(iii) Category Il

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)
others (not covered above)

Total exposure to capital market

. Spen
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59.35.3 Sectoral Exposure

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
. e _ % of GNPAs to
Gross NPAs to total Gross NPAs i
Total Exposure * . H Total Exposure * y total exposure in
(GNPA) exposure in (GNPA) "
that sector %
that sector %

Total sectors exposure 40,611.40 509.48 1.25% 29,307.69 137.10 0.47%
1 |Agriculture and Allied Activities 0.94 0.94 100.00% - = 0.00%
2 |Industry

(1) Micro and Small - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(ii) Medium - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(1ii) Others - -

Chemicals & chemical products 1.15 1.15 100.00% - - 0.00%
Engineering 2.12 - 0.00% 1.49 - 0.00%
Food Manufacturing and 2.78 2.78 100.00% - - 0.00%
Processing

Textiles 2.70 270 100.00% - - 0.00%

Total of Industry 8.75 6.63 75.77% 1.49 - 0.00%
3 |Services

(1) Transport Operators - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(ii) Computer Software - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(iii) Tourism, Hotel and Restaurants - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(iv) Shipping - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(v) Professional Services 20.66 19.49 94 34% 40.57 - 0.00%

(vi) Total of Trade

(a) wholesale Trade (other - = 0.00% = = 0.00%
than Food Procurement)
(b) Retail Trade - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(vii) Commercial Real Estate - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(viii) NBFCs 1.364.50 - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(ix) Aviation - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(x) Others - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

Total of Services 1,385.16 19.49 141% 40.57 - 0.00%
4 |Personal Loans

(i) Housing Loans (incl. priority 28,537.83 401.73 1.41% 24,613.30 120.71 0.49%

sector Housing)

Home Equity 10,639.10 62.56 0.59% 4,650.84 16.39 0.35%

(ii) Consumer Durables - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(iii) Credit Card Receivables - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(iv) Vehicle/Auto Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(v) Education Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(vi) Advances against Fixed Deposit - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(vi1) Advances to Individuals against - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

Shares, Bonds

(viii) Advances to Individuals against - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

Gold

(ix) Micro finance loan/SHG Loan - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(x) Others - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

Total of Personal Loans 39,196.93 464.29 1.18% 29,264.14 137.10 0.47%
5 |Others, if any (please specify)

5.1 Trade

(i) Retail Trade 0.19 0.19 100.00% - - 0.00%

(i1) Wholesale Trade 6.08 6.05 99.51% - - 0.00%
5.2 Financials intermediation

(i) Banking and Finance Service - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

(11) Investment Company - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

5.3 Transport and other support 0.50 " 0.00% 1.49 - 0.00%

services

5.4 Construction - - 0.00% - - 0.00%

5.5 others 12.85 11.89 92.53% - - 0.00%

Total of Others 19.62 18.13 92.41% 1.49 - 0.00%

2
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59. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

59.36  Disclosures relating to securitisation, assignments and sale of loan exposures

Disclosure as per requirements of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets) Directions, 2021 (RBI/DOR/2021-22/85
DOR.ST’R,REC.53"21.04,17752021-22} dated September 24, 2021 amended from time to time and Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan
Exposures) Directions, 2021 (RBI circular no RBI'DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/ 21.04 048/2021-22) dated September 24, 2021 updated as on

December 05, 202 and amended from time to time is provided below

59.36.1 Disclosure for Non STC Securitisation Transaction (STC - Simple, transparent, and comparable)

The Company has not entered into any Non STC securitisation transactions during the current year,

59.36.2 Disclosure for STC Securitisation Transactions (STC - Simple, transparent, and comparable)
Not applicable

59.36.3 Details of transfer through Assignment in respect of loans (not in default)

The below transaction is pursuant to Co-Lending option II (Direct Assignment) pursuant to RBI notification RB1/2020-21/63/FIDD.CO.Plan.BC No 8

/04.09.01/2020-21, dated September 04, 2020

No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

i) Number of accounts 1.701.00 356.00
ii) Amount of loans transferred through assignment 2,188.50 381.79
iii) Retention of beneficial economic interest 20%/25% 20%/25%
iv) Weighted average residual maturity 18.03 19.13
v) Weighted average holding period 0.49 0.33
vi) Coverage of tangible security cover 172.19% 148.34%

The below details of loans not in default transferred through Direct Assignment executed with NBFC

No. Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1) Number of accounts 734.00
i) Amount of loans transferred through assignment 865.83
1i1) Retention of beneficial economic interest 10.00%
1v) Weighted average residual maturity 18.26
v) Weighted average holding period 2.20
vi) Coverage of tangible security cover 144.59%

59.36.4 Details of loans (not in default) acquired through assignment
No loans were acquired through assignment during the year (previous year : NIL), hence relevant disclosure is not applicable.

59.36.5 Details of non-performing financial assets sold by the Company

During the current and previous vear, no non-performing financial assets has been sold by the Company.

59.36.6 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / acquired by the Company

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. Particul i i
articulars From ARCs From permitted From other From ARCs From permitted From other
transferees transferees transferees transferees
i) Number of accounts - 29 - . 32 -
1i) Aggregate principal outstanding of - 34.47 - 4395 -
loans purchased
1ii) Weighted average residual tenor of - 173 - - 177 -
the loans purchased (months)
iv) Net book value of loans purchased 2755 - - 34.60 -
(at the time of transfer)
v) Aggregate consideration - 19.37 - - 23.44 -

vi) Additional consideration realised in - " & -
respect of accounts purchased in
earlier years

vii) Provision reversed to the statement - = B 3 -
of profit and loss

G
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59, Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)
59.36.7 Security Receipts (SRs) rating for the transactions during the year

No transactions were done during the current and previous year, hence this disclsoure is not applicable.
59.37  Disclosure pursuant to Resolution framework for COVID-19 stress

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank Of India Circular DOR.NO.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 06, 2020 pertaining to resolution framework for
Covid-19-related stress read with RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 2021 pursuant to Resolution Framework 2.0 —
Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) and disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank Of India Circular RBI/2021-
22/31 DOR STR.REC. 11/21.04.048 /2021-22 dated May 05, 2021 pertaining to Resolution Framework - 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of

individuals and small businesses

Format-B For Resolution framework

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
consequent to
implementation of

Of (A), aggregate debt OF (A) amount written Of (A) amount Paid by

Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard
consequent to

Type of borrower Year 5 that slipped into NPA off during the the borrowers during the implementation of
resolution plan - 2 3 .
i during the half-year halfyear half-year resolution plan — Position
Position as at the end 4
o as at the end of this half-
of the previous half- ear
year (A} h i
Personal loans Current year - - - - -
Previous year - - - - -
Corporate persons * Current year - - - - -
Previous year - - - - -
of which, MSMEs Current year - - - - -
Previous vear - - - - -
Others Current year 137.54 0.30 - 21.46 115.77
Previous year 120.35 - - 334 117.01

* - As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

59.38  Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India circular Resolution Framework -

2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises (MSMEs) - Revision in the threshold for aggregate exposure issued vide circular no. RBI/2021-22/47 DOR.STR. REC 21/21 .04.048/2021-22 dated
June 04, 2021 read with circular RBI/2018-19/100 DBR.No.BPBC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01, 2019 (MSME Sector- Restructuring of Advances

having exposure less than or equal to Rs. 25 C rores)

(A)
Number of accounts where resolution
plan has been implemented under this
window

Type of borrower Year

(B)
exposure to accounts mentioned at (A)
before implementation of the plan

MSMEs Current year

Previous year s

59.39 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Special reserve u/s

Statutory Reserve 36(1)(viii) of

Total

Special reserve u/s

Statutery Resseve o 1yvill) of Income

Total

u/s 29C Income Tax Act, u/s 29C Tax Act, 1961
1961
Balance at the beginning of the year 34.59 375.10 409.69 34.59 210.11 244.70
Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal
during the year
Add: Amt. transferred to reserve - 143 40 143.40 - 164.99 164.99
Less: Amt. appropriated / withdrawn - - - - - -
from reserve fund
Balance at the end of the year 34.59 518.50 553.09 34.59 375.10 409.69
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59.

Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

59.40 Comparison of Regulatory Provision for NPA and Impairment Provision as per Ind AS

A,

As at March 31, 2024

Asset Classification

Loss Allowances

Difference between

Gross Carrying Amount (Provisions) as Net Carryine A " Pravisions required Ind AS 109
as per Ind as per Ind AS required underInd 00 -2TTYINg Amoun as per IRACP norms provisions and
as per RBI Norms
AS 109 AS 109 IRACP norms
Performing
Standard Stage-| 37,244 51 106.32 37,138.19 112.03 (5.71)
Stage-2 1,151.79 18545 966.34 10.81 174.64
Sub total 38,396.30 291.77 38,104.53 122.84 168.93
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage-3 41438 13679 277.59 66.30 70.49
Doubtful
up to 1 year Stage-3 72.62 3964 3298 1816 2148
1 to 3 Years Stage-3 1579 12.14 365 631 583
More than 3 years Stage-3 670 6.70 - 670 -
Sub total for Doubtful 95.11 58.48 36.63 3117 2731
Loss Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 509,49 19527 314.22 97.47 97.80
Other 1tems Stage-1 1,691 41 115 1,690.26 - 1.15
Other items Stage-2 14,22 0.80 1342 - 0.80
Other items Stage-3 - - = -
1.705.63 1.95 1,703.68 - 1.95
Stage-1 37,244.51 107.47 37,137.04 112.03 (4.56)
Total Stage-2 1,151.79 186.25 965.54 10.81 175.44
Stage-3 509.49 195.27 314.22 97.47 97.80
Total 38.905.79 488.99 38,416.80 22031 268.68
B. As at March 31,2023
= 2 Loss Allowances Difference between
Cl.
Amer Clissification Gross Carrying Amount (Provisions) as . . Provisions required Ind AS 109
A Net Carrying Amount s
RBIN as per Ind as per Ind AS required under Ind as per IRACP norms provisions and
Snper RS AS 109 AS 109 IRACP norms
Performing
Standard Stage-1 2489576 8297 2481279 71.20 11.77
Stage-2 971.58 155.71 815.87 13.24 142 47
Sub total 25,867.34 238.68 25,628.66 84.44 154.24
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage-3 24523 95.34 14989 36.79 5855
Doubtful
up to | year Stage-3 41.15 1620 2495 10.29 591
1 to 3 Years Stage-3 37.50 1476 2274 15.00 (0.24)
More than 3 vears Stage-3 0.58 023 035 0.58 (0.35)
Sub total for Doubtful 79.23 31.19 48,04 25.87 5.32
Loss Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 324.46 126.53 197.93 62,66 63.87
Other items Stage-1 3,091.57 202 3,089.55 - 2.02
Other items Stage-2 1374 0.67 13.07 - 067
Other items Stage-3 1059 4.14 6.45 - 414
3,115.90 6.83 3,109.07 - 6.83
Stage-1 24,895.76 84.99 24,810.77 71.20 13.79
Total Stage-2 971.58 156.38 815.20 13.24 143.14
Stage-3 324.46 130.67 193.79 62.66 68.01
Total 26,191.80 372.04 25.819.76 147.10 224.94

Other items include - guarantees, loan commitments, etc. w

Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms.

Disclosure in note no. 7 is as per the books of accounts and after
considering the Ind AS adjustments such as amortization of processi

hich are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered

considering the impact on account on Ind AS. However, d
ng fees etc

under current Income Recognition, Asset

In addition POCI Assets is considered at its gross value of % 49.97 Millions (as against it acquisition cost of T19.37 Millions)
In table above - under the column "gross carrying amount as per [IND AS"

(ECL) provision has been computed. In this case also, POCI is stated at i

o

isclosure in note no. 46 1s without

» amount disclosed is at Exposure at Default (EAD) against which the Expected Credit Loss
1S gross value
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Regulatory disclasures - RBI (Continucd)

Disclosure on Vigaidity risk under RBI ciccular ne. RB12019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No. 102703, 160017201 9-20 dated November 04, 2089 on
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Compenies and Core Investment Companies fram March 31, 2023 onwards

Liquidits Risk Manugement disclosuse
Nt applicable

Funding Concentration based oi significant counterparty (barrowings, debt securities)

As at March 3,

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 2033
No ol Sigmlicant {ounterparyes* [ u
Sanount (% n mrulhor)e 37 i8R0 “is RS e
Percentage of fundiog concentration 1o total deposits NA MNA
Percentage o [unding coneeniration 1o tatal labslitesd R7 8% N 3o
Top 20 large deposits
Moot apphicable as the Companay does not aceept depimits
Top 10 Borrowings
As ut March 31,
Particulurs s nt March 31, 2024 s at March
2023
Total amount of top 10 bopmwangs (¥ 10 lakh)= Aanks RERIER LA .G85 43
Percentage of amaunt ol op 10 borrowmgs to otal borrowngs Banks OB a8 30,
Tatal amount of tap 18 barrewngs (2 m lakh)s Financial Inst mations 830315
Perventage ol amount ol top 110 borrowings w wolal borrowirgs Finuancial Instiutions 25 3Ry ANy
[ otal amaunt of top 10 borcowings (2 lakh)= Ron Cenvertible Debentures
Pereentage of amount of fap 10 borrowings to tatal barrowangs hon Convertible Debentures e, [ERL
Funding concentration based on significant instrarent / produet®~:
As at March 31, 2024 As it March 31, 2023
% of Total %o of Total liabilities
Pt T in lukh in lakh
nrticulurs n I lisbilities # T in lal M
41 Term Loans from Bank 32047 B, 1587502 6k TRog
B Term Lrans from Financial nstetutions Fai 2034 - -
21 Refinance [t Matmaal Housmg Bank 758315 X3 dffte S3sa1 23 2P
Stock Ratios:
yath 3,
Parliculars AsatMarch 3, 2024 Pt Morch 31
2023
1 Uemmercial Papers @ Total Luabaliies N NA
1y Commeteiat Papers 12 Total Assets AYY NA
nr) Commercial Tapers to Public funds NA RAY
) NCLronigmal Matupty  1vrs 1to Total Liabilites N& N&
v N Cniganal Maturiy 7 Tvrs ) 10 Tota! Assers NA NA
i NCBiOngmal Muturay 1vrs 110 Publw burds R A NA
v} her Shon Terr Liabilities to Iatal Liabiities o2 18 329% 240000
viln) Other Short Term 1 iabilities to Toinl Assets £ 13 26 200,
x)  ther Short Term Lubuies te Public funds o= 26938, 27 1v°e

* All the abuve numbers are excluding nettoral Ind AS adpustments.
# lotal Liabdiues represents lotal habulities as per balance sheet legs total equity

= Other short term Habibities include all the finaneial hab:hities maturng within nest 12 months other than Commercial Paper and NCDs

The apeve ratos reftect the strength oF the Campany as the short term habilies are adequuch funded b shart term assets indicatme the financsal

stabilitv of the nraansation
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59.

59.41.g

59.42

59.43

Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Board
has constituted the Risk Management Committee (RMC) which is responsible for monitoring the overall risk process within the Company.

The meetings of RMC are held at quarterly interval. The Risk owners are responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and limits across
the Company. RMC ensures that the credit and investment exposure to any party / Company / group of parties or companies does not exceed the internally set
limits as well as statutory limits as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. RMC Develops risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to
various risk parameters and prudential limits: review the risk monitoring system and ensure effective risk management.

The Company's Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for the funding
and liquidity risks of the Company.

The Board of Directors has constitution of Asset Liability Committee (ALCO). The Company’s ALCO monitors asset liability mismatches to ensure that there
are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on either side of the balance sheet. ALCO conducts quarterly reviews relating to the liquidity position and stress
test assuming various “what if” scenarios. The ALCO is a decision-making unit responsible for balance sheet planning from risk-return perspective including
strategic management of interest rate and liquidity risks. The ALCO also evaluates the Borrowing Plan of subsequent quarters based on previous borrowings of
the Company.

In assessing the Company's liquidity position, consideration is given to: (1) present and anticipated asset quality (2) present and future earnings capacity (3)
historical funding requirements (4) current liquidity position (5) anticipated future funding needs, and (6) sources of funds. The Company maintains a portfolio
of marketable assets that are assumed to be casily liquidated and undrawn cash credit limits which can be used in the event of an unforeseen interruption in cash
flow. In accordance with the Company’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating
to both the market in general and specifically to the Company. Net liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank deposits and investments in mutual fund
available for immediate sale. Borrowings from banks and financial institutions and issue of debentures are considered as important sources of funds to finance
lending to customers.

The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC and the Board of Directors meeting for noting.

Note - Total liabilities refer to the aggregate of financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities

Gold Loans

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
a) Loan against Gold portfolio to Total Assets (%) 0.00% 0.00%
b) Details of Gold Loan auctions conducted * NA NA

Details of principle business criteria :

RBI vide its circular number RBI/2020-21/60/DOR. NBFC (HFC) CC.NO 118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22, 2020 defined the principal business criteria
for HFCs. Further, it also states that those HFCs which does not fulfill the defined criteria as on October 22, 2020 has an option to submit a board approved plan
including a roadmap to fulfil the defined criteria and timeline for transition to RBI with in three months from the date of circular

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
a) % of total assets towards housing finance 60.58% 76.40%
b) % of total assets towards housing finance for individuals 60.58% 76.40%
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59.  Regulatory disclosures - RRI (Continued)

59.44 Related party transactions
A. Disclosure of pursuant to apara 4.3 fo the Annex to RBI Master direction No. RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 amended from time to time is provided below.
All material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 52

B. Related party disclosure of pursuant to Section [ of Annexure VIl to RBI Master direction No. RBI/DoR/2023-24/106 DoR FIN.REC.No.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023 amended from time to time is provided below.

March 31, 2024
T = . . 3 | .
| \ Pare‘nl (as per | Subsidiaries Associates / Joint | Key Manugel:nent Relatives of Key Others Total |
. " ownership or control) | ventures per Manag t personnel
Nature of Transactions | ; | | 1 | | i | | |
As on Date / for the ‘ Maximum | As on Date / for | Maximum | As on Date/ for, Maximum | As on Date/for,  Maximum  Ason Date/for  Maximum |As on Date / for‘ Maximum | As on Date / for the Maximum |
year Amt. the year Amt. | the year | Amt. the year | Amt. | the year | Ami, the year | Amt. year | Amt,
| Borrowings - | - | - ‘ - | - - _ = - R . |
Deposits | - { - ‘ - | - - - - - = - | = - | - -
Placement of deposits | - E | - x| | | | | ‘ il : -
| Advances | - - - - | ) - - & - | - '
Investments - - l = | " - | - - - [ | L | -
Purchase of fixed/other assets | | - - | | | - | | | il |
| Sale of fixed/other assets | - - - ‘ - | - - - - | | |
i Interest paid - - ‘ | - | - - | w . - J = | - | -
Interest received | s | - - - - | | | | | = | |
| Others | ‘ | ‘ |
| Issue of shares 76.05 . | : | p | " - S - 76.05 :
Others \ 146.69 | - . | - | | - i | | < 146.69 | = |
March 31, 2023
. Pare{ll (as per | Skl Associates / Joint | Key Management Relatives of Key | Others Total
| . . ownership or control) I ventures personnel | Management personnel
Nature of Transactions

Maximum | As on Date/ for the | Maximum

| As on Date / for the ‘ Maximum { As on Date / for | Maximum ‘A: on Date / I‘ar‘ Maximum  As on Date / f'or‘ Maximum | As on Date / fnr‘ Maximum !Au on Date / for
Amt. year Amt.

year | Amt. | the year Amt, the year | Amt, | the year | Amt. the year Amt. | the year
| | 1 1 |

‘ Placement of deposits

Borrowings

Deposits | -

i Advances | %

' Investments - - - | .
Purchase of fixed/other assets |

[Sle of fixed/other assets | = E [ - |

‘ Interest paid

|

Interest received | -

Others
Issue of shares

Others | 11581 | .

D
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Nates eo e tingiicmnt etatements 1oy the vesr ended March 31, 2024

(Curpency  Trdiant Rupees i smidoas)

59.

Regulatory disclosures - REI (Continsed)

58,48 Disclawres a5 required ander Viasicer Direction — Non-Banking Financlal Company - Hensing Finae<e Company (Reserve Bank) Pirections, 1021 dated February 17, 2821 sssaed by

the Reserve Bank of Tndia

Varticalars l

As af March 3, 202

A ok Mueek 31, 301

Ligbilitees side :

Amennt
ontstandimg

Amonnt overdie

Taizi

\mouni

e et
T
Awount overd s

Testai

1) Loans and advapces availed by the HFC inclusis e of|
tlerest accrued thereon but not peid;

(@) Deoemtmes Secored
1'nevred

tother than Euhng witlm the meaneg of public depesls:
'y Deferred credits

(.} ‘Term loans

41 Inter-corporate boans and b rrowmng

el Commescsl paper

() Publc deponts.

(hy Ovther [nans * Rononinget - Cosh credt OP
Fowad |

2) Break-up of (1) {) above [Ouistanding public
depasits igelusive of interest accrued \hereon but not
paid|

tar Tnthe form ol U nwcoured debentures

tb) T the form ot parily secired debmiuses 10

| debwentures where there w2 shosttall n the vafue 00 secunty

by ¢ither public degsns

TLedlel

31.632.62

Aneiied

32,632.62

ML RN

21,229.13

31,229.1%

1122313

Assoty aide :
3) Break-up of loans ard adances including bills
receivables [other than thote lucluded fu {4) below]

fuy Sestrest
hy L iwegured

RER IR
oL

1§, 439 17

(I

I5,500 7]
a3y

2UROO TN

[RD]

Tatal

3843934

38,439.04

15,801.10

15,801.10

4) Break up of Leased assais aad siock on hire and sther
asvets counting (ewands AFC activities
(1) Leare amsere mouding ketve renlals inder susulry debtors

i)} Fanaal fease
b Operuteg kas

1) Stnak on here mehidmg re charges tnder sundry
debtors
ta) Asgels on e

b Repossesved assets
(i) CHver gt ovnnbing oWands AFT achties

a1 [oans where amsets have been repossersed

*h1 Lo other than ra) sbove

53 Bresk-up of los estmendy

Currebt investments .

b Queied
‘) Shavs  fa) Equin

1b) Proterenca

nt Debertures amd bonds

o} Umie of nortnal finde

GV ETTENE R BeCiTHeY

(v) e Hlwers tlineetment, 1 ey Tlaongh Cerbvaion)

12 Unguoted

t1) Shares ta)y Lqmey

ib) Preference

it Dehentures and bends

i) Urin of nmimal funds

1] Gorenesent sectilies

tu) Uthers tplage spoaly

[RILET

o {8

106371

%171

1061 7%

Bi T4
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Moty to e fomiomd statanerts for vie Ve ended Macch, 31, 2024

(Cuereney T Rupees s millons

e - REB{ (Comiinned)

9 R ry dis cle

39.4% Disclourrey 2s requived under asier Direction - ¥on-Bruking Finenciai Company - Howving Fieanee Company (Roctve Bank) Directions, 202t dated Febrrary 17, 2021 faucd by

the Resers e Bank of Tndia

Ay gt Marck 31, 2024

A a2 March 31, 2023

Terticulars I

Amount
outstanding

Amomnt overdue [

Tatal

mount
otsta e ing

Amonnt overdue

Total

Long term Ins eslutents :
[ Quoted
r) Shumes 1&) Equaty
b} Preference
tu) Dehentures arad bends
im) Lrete vfmutal figds
i) ovemment secunties
tv) Gthers ( Investment n Paes Theough Cerlifivales)
3 Unnuoted
) Shewee  (0) Fymty
h) Preferene
fg) Debenturee and bords
tm} Unite of mutual fands
frv) Giveernment secunires

£ tv) Othery please speady)

LR

6) Barrower group-wise clavsdfication of nssets Mnanced
Ly i (3) and (4 ahone;

Amount oel of provision { Refer note 21)

Category

Secured

Lnsequred

Total

I Relnted Partics
(i) Sulsndianes
(b Companies i the Fme group
21 Other related parties

2 Oiher than related parhes

RERTE R

03"

a8,

Wit

2ERM D

Tetul

JB 43217

017

7} Investor group-wise clussiflcation of all iny estmenis
(current and long term) En shares and securities (both

guated and unguoled)

#4

2934

1580110

Cotegory

Markel Value /
Break up or fair
velpe or VY

Book \ alue (Nel of
provisions})

T'otal

Misrkel Vabue /
Break up or Bic
wabie or NAY

| Dook Value (Net
of provisians)

Totul

1 Helared Porties
{a) Snbmdranes

(b} Companes tn the same granp
o Hher telated pafliod
2. D00t abn rebited parnee

159 B3

166" 20

07 20 | 800 6

| I b

[P ol

Total

1,596.83

1,807.20

1!

607 20 1,800 %6

| 1,787.17
|

1,767.17

B} Mther Infarmatinn

Auigurt

Autounl

Total

\iq ount

1) Urods 1a0n- periunmng ascis
<a} Related parbies

iy £ tther 1wy refated parbies
{1} Med note PerRmAng Bess
1a} Related peries

b darher thean rebited particn

(13 ki pots acgned o vatstrclon of debt

o 40

L1 ey

Noles;

I Prosisoiung notess shail be applicable as presciibed ui Reserve Bank of badia (Son- Bandasg |l Company — Suale Baved Regilateon; Bsecbions, J023 whilaver 1 sy
2 Ul weounting, sndonds and guidiiee poetes wsued by [CAL e applwabie mebudme Lor vahyaton of mvestntente and olbws weecte o deo airete aoquucad i risiacuon of dubt

3 Lnrespect of tiesimen 1 proper?y, far value b been faben o secount ol anulgamation. Bond and yquoted equty shates have bees vabiret of por prevabng marlet stamda dy.

The Higues ere not petted with provision agemes! etendand azselr g o % ot 3 specific provkon,

L gt

2
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in millions)
60. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

a.  Software Expenses -
b. Professional Expenses - -

61.  Other Statutory Information:

61.1 The company's accounting software has audit trail functionality. This feature remained operational throughout the year,
capturing a chronological record of all relevant transactions processed within the software.

61.2 The Company had not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
(as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repavable on demand or
without specifving anv terms or period of repavment.

61.3 The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder.

61.4 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any
government authority.

61.5 The Company did not have any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956

. FY 2023-24
: ; Nature of
No. Name of the struck off company i " Relationship with Struck
Transactions Balance outstanding
off Company
1 Raj Rajeshwari Hotel Limited Conference Service - No
2 Netclick Infocomm Private Limited Internet Service - No
: FY 2022-23
: 2 Nature of
No. Name of the struck off company " = Relationship with Struck
Transactions Balance outstanding
: off Company
1 Payal Financial Services Private Limited Professional Fees - No
2 Jabalpur Jantantra Diginet Private Limited  Internet Service - No
3 Talopp HR Consulting Private Limited Recruitment Service - No
4 Netclick Infocomm Private Limited Internet Service - No

61.6 The Company did not have any charges or satisfaction which were yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

61.7 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries), with the understanding that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(a

—

(b) The Company has not received any funds from any persons or entitics, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™). with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

e

—
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61.8 The Company did not have any transaction which had not been recorded in the books of account that had been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey or any
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

61.9 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

61.10 The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

61.11 The Company has not revalued Intangible assets during the year.

61.12 Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with
the books of accounts

61.13 Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements: Not applicable

61.14 The Company confirms that it does not hold any immovable properties, and the lease agreements, where the Company is lessee,
are duly executed in favour of the Company.

61.15 During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits.

62. Figures for the previous years have been regrouped/rearranged wherever considered necessary to conform to the figures
presented in the current year.

In terms of our report attached

For G.M. Kapadia & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
(Firm's Registration No. 104767W) CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153
(
gt 3 ! %?'\"
yP—
Atul Shah Rajesh Sharma S. Ranganathan
Partner \ e Managing Director Independent Director
Membership No. - 039569 % DIN 00020037 DIN 00125493
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Yashesh Bhatt Partha Chakraborti
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS-20491

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

May 03, 2024 May 03, 2024 May 03, 2024
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